Public Document Pack

CITY OF ADELAIDE

CEO BRIEFING

Presentation Pack

for the Briefing on
Tuesday, 21 October 2025

at 5.15 pm

in the Queen Adelaide Room, Adelaide Town Hall

© 2025 City of Adelaide. All Rights Reserved.

Our Adelaide.
Bold.

Aspirational.
Innovative.




Our Places

—

Hutt Street Revitalisation__._f "

n.-.

s

CEO Briefing
21 October 2025

mmmmr|nmmrrrnnlorrn

sssealssssaannlzna

Program: Infrastructure

ENPCEnET EEEEEEEE FEFE
‘J-r-- MmO EE®S IIII". '-‘:.

Author: Mark Goudge, Associate D
Approving Officer; Tom McCre :

s ar
AR ARE

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

A




Hutt Street Revitalisation

Key Question

T
Q
«Q
D
w

KEY QUESTION

We are seeking
Council Members’
views on the
information and
options presented to
guide the
Administration in
finalising a design
for the Hutt Street
Main Street
Revitalisation
Project?

Slide 1 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Briefing agenda

Briefing Objectives

* Present information on the Hutt Street Revitalisation project to facilitate informed and strategic decision-
making.
+ To provide opportunity for discussion and feedback from Councillors to shape the next steps of the project.

Agenda Presenter

1. Hutt Street journey so far and strategic context Tom McCready
Director, City Infrastructure (CoA)

y abed

2. Overview of master planning and engagement

3. Concept Development Options consultation outcomes Anna Deller-Coombs, URPS
4. Economic impact assessment methodology and conclusions Phill Hudson, Hudson Howells
5. Design presentation Adrian Gray

Manager, Design and Technical Services (CoA)

6. Draft budget and cost Tom McCready

7. Next steps

8. Discussion and feedback Council Members

Slide 2 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

A main street journey

2020
Main Streets Revitalisation launched

G abed

2024
August: Concept Plan presented to Council

November: Car Parking Review (5 options)

2025
Feb/March: Concept Development Options Consultation

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025

Slide 3



9 abed

CITYTOE

ADELAIDE

City of Adelaide s M Integrated
. 5 P r
Strategic Plan = o ‘ Transport AEDA

2024-2028 et Strategy

Strategic Plan
Our Streets: Full of Life

F

OUR ADELAIDE
BOLD.
ASPIRATIONAL.
INNOVATIVE.

Our Adelaide.
Bold.

Aspirational.
Innovative.



) abed

v" Guide where residential growth should occur, complemented by revitalisation of our

CITYTOE
ADELAIDE

City of Adelaide

The Strategic Plan 2024-2028 was endorsed by Council on 12 December 2023. Strategic Plan i

2024-2028 .
Guide Council’s work over the next four years to deliver the vision for Adelaide and
achieve long-term goals across the economy, the environment and throughout
community.

Strategic directions:

Our Adelaide.
Bold

Aspiu:atlnnll.
Innovative.

streets and precincts.

v Promote social connectivity by making sure streets are lively and accessible and

putting people and nature first in the design of public spaces.

v" Our Places: Interesting, Purposeful and Safe

Outcomes Key Actions Indicator of

Success/Measures/Targets
Community assets are adaptable and Deliver quality street and laneway upgrades, Commence the design of the Hutt Street upgrade
responsibly maintained mainstreets, precincts, and neighbourhood project by 2024/2025.

revitalisation and improvements that make
Adelaide well-designed, safe and unique.




CITYTOE
ADELAIDE

« City Plan endorsed by Council on 10 September
Local Area 11: 2024,

Hutt Street

* Urban design framework to guide planning for growth
within the City of Adelaide to achieve a target
population of 50,000 residents by 2036.

Y]
QD At 2 ”
(i = » Strategic directions:
: . % v Coordinated planning for growth.
,, ._: v Articulate what the city and its different spatial areas

could become.

Sites with development potential

v Proactively plan for sustainable growth and change.

Existing Population 2 406 people

15 year Growth 4,400 - 5,400 v" Well-connected and efficient transportation network,
Pane 9.5% with a focus on mode shift to active transport and

of City Growth greater transport diversity.

105.3

people per hectare




Hutt Street Revitalisation

Integrated Transport Strategy

* Integrated Transport Strategy endorsed by Council on 22 July 2025. inegoted
ranspo
Strategy

* Underpinned by the Healthy Streets Approach aimed at making streets safer, e Ul

more welcoming and easier for everyone to use.

Strategic directions:

6 abed

v" Embrace bold, transformative policies, shaping a future e
where our streets are full of life.

v' Create places where people can connect, businesses can
thrive, and movement is safe, sustainable and equitable for
all.

v" Ensure that transport infrastructure supports increasing
population growth and development within the city.

I

Slide 7 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025

v' Foster stronger connections between transport, place-
making and community wellbeing.




Hutt Street Revitalisation

AEDA Strategic Plan 2024/2025 — 2028/29

* The Adelaide Economic Development Agency (AEDA) Strategic Plan
FY2024/25 - 2028/29 was endorsed by the AEDA Board in October 2024 and s )
noted by Council on 26 November 2024. Strategic Plan

+ The AEDA Strategic Plan aligns with and indicates how the Agency will deliver on
key strategies of the City of Adelaide. This is namely Council’s Strategic Plan and
Economic Development Strategy.

0T abed

+ Strategic Alignment:

v" Promote and develop mainstreet precincts as commercial hubs of economic,
cultural and social significance.

v' 30 Year Plan for Greater Adelaide: ...pedestrian friendly streets will support
universal access and be safe to walk at any time, both and night; and

v" Policy 17: Reinforce the special character of the main streets of Gouger,
Hindley, Rundle and Hutt Streets through contextual design responses that
increase activity and vibrancy whilst also preserving the elements that make
these places special.



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Master planning — community engagement

+ Engagement through the Place Model approach was the foundation of the Master Planning for Hutt Street. Hutt Street

« Community engagement and feedback informed the vision, objectives and design principles for the concept design.

* In February - April 2022, outcomes of feedback and prioritisation of principles and themes was shared with community
and subsequently reported to the Strategic Discussion Forum on 17 May 2022 as part of the Main street concept

design update.

Main Streets Revitalisation

Community Feedback — Hutt Street

TT abed

Vision
Hutt Street's leafy green streetscape, historic village charm with
an exciting variety of sial, dining and social

ensure it is the pride of its growing community and a popular
destination for locals and visitors alike.

®Online 4
BBrowsed FAQs |
——

'WDrop in session ".

Winteractive map

Themes (ranked in order of importance)

o 0 Weoming accessive and comloriadle

P —

2 Enhance amenity, green space and connections 3 Equity for pedestrians and vehicles
3 Embrace culture and music 4 Crealeanew and provide unique
4 Celebrate Heritage 5 [ for public art and activati

Strategic Discussion Forum, Tuesday 17 May 2022: Agenda Report Pack
- Item 4.3 — Main Streets Revitalisation — Concept Designs for Hindley
Street, Hutt Street and Melbourne Street

Slide 9

Hutt Street’s leafy green streetscape, historic village charm with an exciting
variety of commercial, dining and social experiences ensure it is the pride of
its growing community and a popular destination for locals and visitors alike.

Design principles

Provide a well-planned street that is
welcoming, accessible and comfortable,
that balances the needs of businesses,
residents, and visitors using all modes
of transport and contributes to our
wellbeing and sustainability goals.

Rationalise the reallocation of public
space from vehicle use (parking and traffic
lanes), to achieve a more equitable
allocation of public space and a good
balance between transport modes, trees/
landscaping, outdoor dining opportunities,

to support businesses and enhance social

hrd
interactions, and provide safer movement.

AENEEEL Celebrate and reinforce the existing Create a new public ‘heart’ as the
leafy green streetscape and historic epicentre and provide unique experiences
village charm. '\ 4 ensuring a robust local community.

Establish a business and retail identity Public art opportunities, activation and
ﬁ-l with a diverse offering to increase its L) improved amenity to support
C‘.ﬁ popularity as a destination for locals businesses and enhance the visitor
- and visitors. experience, driving future investment

and economic uplift.

Draft Master Plan for Hutt Street, December 2021

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Project definition

Main Strateqic Objective:

Our Places
Interesting, purposeful and safe

Facilitate and activate our places in a safe and accessible way for our community

21 abed

Benefits

* Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and comfortable, that balances
the needs of businesses, residents, and visitors using all modes of transport and contributes
to our wellbeing and sustainability goals.

* Precinct activation and economic development.

Slide 10 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Hutt Street Revitalisation scope

Hutt Street Revitalisation Project Area GN
TIE i e it St PR e e e (et =]

€T abed

Hutt Street Revitalisation Scope:
Upgrade of streetscape and renewal of key infrastructure assets, including road surface, stormwater,
public lighting, footpath and kerb and water table.

Asset Renewal — between Carrington Street and Pirie Street:

Asset renewal in the northern section of Hutt Street will be undertaken as per the Asset Management Plan. The road
surface and small sections of existing stormwater will require renewal within approximately 5 years. Other assets such
as footpaths, kerb and water table, lighting and electrical and traffic signals have been assessed to be in good-fair
condition, with renewals forecast beyond the 10-year planning horizon of their respective asset management plans.

Slide 11 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Concept Development Options — consultation and
engagement

Why did we consult with community?
On 26 November 2024, Council resolved that it:

1. Approved for the purposes of public consultation:
1.1 Option A (Existing conditions — footpath option only); and
1.2 Option B (Renewal with 60-degree angle parking) and
1.3 Option C (Renewal with 45-degree angle parking) and

T abed

1.4 Option D (Current Concept (interpeak parallel) and
1.5 Option E (Combined 45-degree angle parking).

As presented on the 19 November 2024 within the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project (Car Parking Review) Workshop and

contained within Attachment A to Item 7.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee held
on 19 November 2024.

What governs the way we consult?

The City of Adelaide Act 1998 (the Act), the City of Adelaide Community Engagement Charter and Draft Community Engagement
Policy (2025) set out the framework and requirements for how we consult with our community.

The Act defines the City of Adelaide community as including all people who live, work, study or conduct business in, or who visit,
use or enjoy the services, facilities and public places of, the City of Adelaide.

Attachment A - The Hutt Street — Main Street Revitalisation Concept Development Options Engagement Summary report

Slide 12 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

How engagement was promoted

* OurAdelaide

» Promoted via Our Adelaide Newsletter to subscriber base (11,672 recipients with 4,337 opened)
* Fact Sheet

» Letter box dropped to 3,375 properties on/in proximity to Hutt Street

» Posted to 2,295 owners of property on/in proximity to Hutt Street
« Social media

+ 8 posts; 5,950 impressions; 15% engagement (which is 5x the Facebook average) on organic socials; 330,887 impressions on
paid socials.

» Street signage

» 40x A2 corflute posters attached to all bins along Hutt Street from South Terrace to Bartels Road
» Posters and postcards

» 40 posters distributed by hand to businesses and commercial premises on Hutt Street

» ~300 postcards distributed by hand to businesses and commercial premises on Hutt Street

» Posters distributed to all City of Adelaide community centres and libraries
* Business forum invitation

+ Distributed by hand (A4 invitation letter) to 129 businesses and commercial premises on Hutt Street (53 received directly, 76 left
at premises). Invitation via email sent to 74 Hutt Street businesses (in addition to hard copy letter drop) by CoA Place Partner.

« Stakeholder workshop invitation

« Email invitation sent to 35 stakeholders, also included link to Our Adelaide page and survey should they not be able to
participate in the workshop.

GT abed

Slide 13 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



9T abed

CITYTOF
ADELAIDE

How we shared information and received feedback

Community Stakeholder Online In person

Our Adelaide page and survey v v v

Fact sheet v v v v
Drop-in sessions x2 v v v
Pop up and Fringe vibes v v v
Business Forum v v
Stakeholder workshop v v
Written submissions v v v v

(online submission) (hard copy submission)

Phone and email points of contact v v v v

(email) (phone)



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Participation rates

Our Drop ins Business Stakeholder

Adelaide & Pop up Forum workshops
6,057 unique Three Invite only Invite only Online and
visits sessions (129) (~40) hard copy

Organisations
\1/%’3,20 page EigtrtaStr&e)t 36 attendees and interest 46 received
ry groups

1,039 survey Fringe Vibes
responses event 8 attendees

92 attendees

Slide 15 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

What we engaged on

m:f?:::vilopmmomiom .T. ) ||n ' i
S TR FIRNRNERR] Imagine Hutt Street in 10 years — what is most important to you?

How do you see yourself using Hutt Street in the future?

% "“:_ - B e it What is your top/second priority for the future of Hutt Street?
o E

N The features of this concept design are:
+ Retains the existing 60-degree angle parking layout, maximising the provision of

parking but not complying with the current Australian Standards.

+ Provides high parking convenience, with many spaces located directly in front of
destinations.

= No changes to footpath width, cycle lane, or parking approach.

----- po==—=c=os + Targeted footpath maintenance of existing footpath to enhance the pedestrian
experience.

+ Minimal enhancement to street tree surrounds, due to limited space.
+ Retains approximately 132 on-street parking bays.

Detail Plan
Net o Scale

Slide 16 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



6T abed

CITYTOE
ADELAIDE

Option D was the clear preference across all respondent categories
including residents, ratepayers, and business owners in the South-East precinct.

Option A was the second most popular option.

Feedback from community on what they liked about Option D and Option A:

Option D
Protected and separated bike lanes
Wider footpaths
Greater opportunity for outdoor

dining and activation
Renewing the street and creating
more opportunities for business




0z abed

CITYTOE
ADELAIDE

Support for streetscape improvements

Such as better lighting, shade, public art, and green spaces to create a welcoming and vibrant
precinct.

The village feel of Hutt Street is valued and should be retained

Easy access, choice of shops, cafes and services is important. It is a hub for the community.

Parking emerged as the most topical issue

Strong support for retaining on-street parking and concerns about the impact of its removal on
local businesses.

Mixed views on cycling

Improving safety and access for cyclists was supported by some. Others suggested
alternative routes.



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Assessment of economic benefits

Why was an economic impact assessment undertaken?

+  To comply with Council’s obligations under Section 48 of the Local Government Act 1999 to develop and maintain prudential
management policies, practices and procedures for the assessment of projects. This includes analysing the expected
contribution of the project to the economic development of the local area and the impact that the project may have on
businesses carried out in the area (refer Part 3, Section 48, Clause (aa1) and (2) (c))

*  Provide information for decision making on expected long term economic outcomes

TZ abed

+ Determine the potential for increased investment and how the upgrade can attract more commercial development
+ Identify and analyse impacts to support better planning during construction

+ Examine the project’s strategic alignment and contribution to broader economic development strategy outcomes such as
population and job growth and creation of a sustainable local economy.

Attachment B - The Hutt Street Revitalisation - Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment — June 2025 report

Slide 19 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



2z abed

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Expected economic benefits

Benefits incorporated into the economic impact and benefit cost assessment

* Increased business activity: Attract existing visitors to precinct to spend more, and more visitors and
shoppers, leading to increased foot traffic and consumer spending. This boosts local economy and
supports the sustainability and growth of existing businesses.

+ Job creation and employment opportunities: Economic growth driven by revitalisation leads to job
creation and expanded employment opportunities both directly and indirectly resulting in spend of
salaries/wages.

+ Business diversification and entrepreneurship: Attracts new businesses and entrepreneurs looking to
capitalise on the improved environment.

« Attraction of investment and development: Upgraded environment acts as a catalyst for private
investment and development projects.

* Increased local spending and circulation of wealth: Thriving streets encourage residents to shop
locally. Local spending within the community circulates wealth within the local economy, creating a
multiplier effect.

+ Partnership opportunities: Revitalised streets open doors for partnerships and collaborations between
local businesses. Joint promotional and marketing initiatives can be developed to attract visitors/tourists
and encourage longer stays.

Expected benefits to be realised are based on analysis of case studies of main street
revitalisations/upgrades and the outputs of the Hudson Howells’ Input Output Model for South
Australia.

Slide 20 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation
Benefit of investment

Executive Summary

Option D Option A Do Nothing

Costs
Project Capital Costs $29,214,648 $701,674 S0
Potential Reduced Business Activity During Construction $2,965,115  $1,482,557 S0

U Benefits

%) Construction Contribution to Gross State Product $30,850,668 $740,968 SO

no Construction FTE Jobs Supported 198.51 4.77 0.00

W Additional Business Revenue Per Annum - Existing Visitors $5,930,230 S0 -$794,651
Additional Business Revenue Per Annum - New Visitors $593,023 S0 (0]
Total Additional Business Revenue Per Annum $6,523,253 S0 -$794,651
Additional Visitor Spending (New and Existing Visitors) Contribution to Gross State Product Per Annum $8,715,066 S0 -$1,061,653
Additional Visitor Spending (New and Existing Visitors) FTE Jobs Supported Per Annum 90.17 0.00 -10.98
Shadow Area Propert Value Uplift $1,598,995 S0 (0]
Community 30 Year NPV and BCR
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Benefits $183,089,368 $740,968 -518,358,146
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Costs $32,179,763 | 52,184,231 (o]
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Costs and Benefits (NPVCB) $150,909,605 -$1,443,263 -518,358,146
Community 30 Year Benefit Cost Ratio (Total NPV Benefits/Total NPV Costs) 5.69 0.34 N/A

Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR)
Compares the present value of all benefits expected from project to the present value of the costs.
A BCR greater than 1.0 indicates that the project is expected to generate more benefits than it costs.

Slide 21 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Economic impact assessment conclusions

Economic Impact and Benefit Cost Assessment conclusions

+ Avrevitalisation that delivers an upgraded main street is expected to provide both community based and state
benefits through a boost to local business activity, creation of job opportunities, attraction of new business and investment

and increased local spending.

+ The ‘do nothing’ (ongoing maintenance to required level of service) may result in Hutt Street facing economic decline,
infrastructure deterioration, and reduced community engagement.

72 obed

» Delivery of Option A (footpath repair) is expected to provide a very low level of economic return and will not achieve the
typical expected economic benefits of a main street revitalisation.

« Option D delivers the highest Benefit Cost Ratio (5.69) and Community Net Present Value ($150.5 million over 30
years).

Slide 22 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Design vision & principles

Vision:

Hutt Street’s leafy green streetscape, historic village charm with an exciting variety of commercial,
dining and social experiences ensure it is the pride of its growing community and a popular destination

for locals and visitors alike.

SDesign Principles:

Accessibility & Sustainability

Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and comfortable, that balances
the needs of businesses, residents, and visitors using all modes of transport and contributes
to our wellbeing and sustainability goals.

Gz obe

o)

Cultural Significance & Amenity
Celebrate and reinforce the existing leafy green streetscape and historic village charm.

Multi-modal Transport and Connectivity

Rationalise the reallocation of public space from vehicle use (parking and traffic lanes), to
achieve a more equitable allocation of public space and a good balance between transport
modes, trees,/landscaping, outdoor dining opportunities, to support businesses and enhance
social interactions, and provide safer movement.,

Slide 23

Public Heart & Community

Create a new public 'heart’ as the epicentre and provide unigue experiences ensuring a robust
local community.

Public Art & Activation

Public art opportunities, activation and improved amenity to support businesses and enhance
the visitor experience, driving future investment and economic uplift.

Destination & Economic Vitality

Establish a business and retail identity with a diverse offering to increase its popularity as a
destination for locals and visitors,

Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



Precinct Car Parking Map
Hutt Street

« Car parking along Hutt Street
is supplemented by on-street
parking in the surrounding
streets which is timed, largely

400m - 5min wal :

unticketed and doesn't require e
a permit during business hours. »”
,
7 Pelzer Park /
+  Qutside of business hours, i ’;gg’f{:‘;
demand for parking rebalances I

as city workers leave the area,
residents return home, and
patrons arrive at evening
hospitality venues located
predominantly within the
southern sector of Hutt Street. 1
Peppermint Park / |
Parking controls are intended Wita Wirra (Park 18) :
to respond to the parking - —
demands of the street and p° 83
precinct across week days and
the weekend. They are reviewed
to assess how effectively they
are operating and adjusted as
required.

9¢z.9bed

Carriageway Park /
Tuthangga
(Park 17)

~
~
S0P, 109 63

R e

”
-
”,
wvi
+ .
N
©
i (=1}
v
!
v
w
22
s

Pulteney Street

Hurtle Square
/T_angkaira

Ityamai-itpina
(Park 15)

400m - 5min walk

Victoria Park /
Pakapakanthi (Park 16)

® Off-street car park [ Total 2130 on-street precinct
(paid parking) [ parking opportunities

684 on-street car parking spaces within 125m (sub 2min walk)
catchment of Hutt Street, excluding residential permit only,
and motorcycle.

]
King Rodney Park / |

e ——————

Reissued Novemeber 2024

Hindmarsh-
Square /

23BL3] 1IN

Rymill Park /
Murlawirrapurka

(P’rk ) Rundle Park /

Kadlitpina
(Park 13)

1446 on-street car parking spaces within 125 - 400m
(5min walk) catchment of Hutt Street, excluding residential
permit only, and motorcycle.



NOLONINYYD

Concept Development Options
Option A - Hutt Street

REELILS
aMETHYM
SHIANITS

ERLLLETS
HLAOS
s3119
PEELTL
XV4IVH
133415
SWONY

Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT

U

- o e ———

Development Option Plan Refer to Detail Plan below

Not to Scale

Bus stops Refreshed Tree cut-outs to
retained footpath asphalt trimmed to
available space
P ] -y,

The features of this concept design are:

« Retains the existing 60-degree angle parking layout, maximising the provision of
parking but not complying with the current Australian Standards.

1

]

]

! = Provides high parking convenience, with many spaces located directly in front of
destinations.

« No changes to footpath width, cycle lane, or parking approach.

+ Retains existing on-road cycle lane at 1.3m wide.

« Targeted footpath maintenance of existing footpath to enhance the pedestrian
experience.

« Minimal enhancement to street tree surrounds, due to limited space.
» Approximately 132 on-street parking bays.

Risks:

h T ————— - -

< - 60 degree angle car * 20 bays do no comply with Australian Standards, resulting in unsafe arrangement
Detail Plan Existing kerb ling of on-street parking bays. Current parking layout is non-compliant due to the
Not to Scale following:

- width of parking bays are too narrow
Legend - cycle lane width/layout is too narrow and without adequate separation from the
angled parking
Existing trees — — —  Existing kerb Foatpath and activity zone Bus stop and shelter mmmm Cycle lane (existing) i : '
y y . 4 - space behind parking bays between cycle lane is too narrow.
Existing awnings an Roadwa ree surroun

‘ New trees e R - i L « If any changes to traffic control devices are implemented, Council has a legal

obligation to implement a solution that complies with Australian Standards,
Australian Road Rules and Austroads Guidelines.

+ Visually not at all different to existing street conditions.



8z abed

NOLONINYYD
REELILS
aMETHYM
SHIANITS

HLAOS
s3119
PEELTL
XV4IVH
133415
SWONY

Concept Development Options
Option B - Hutt Street B—

Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT

- ;'_-___________-___-o'

Refer to Detail Plan below

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale

Bus stops
retained

Road resurfacing and ]

Full footpath In-road tree surrounds On-road cycle lane with
new linemarking

replacement enhanced for long term a linemarked bu
tree health zone

BaaEsamaa The features of this concept design are:

« Maintains 60-degree angle parking to maximise parking provision while improving
parking clearances from intersections and standardising bay widths to reflect road

————— ; safety guidelines.

* Widens the on-road cycle lane to 1.9m with added clearance and a line-marked
buffer from traffic.

« Retains most of the existing kerb alignment, keeping some footpaths narrow.

= Creates space for street furniture and outdoor dining, through removing non-
compliant parking bays adjacent intersections.

« Full footpath replacement, maintaining existing width and layout.

+ Enhances tree surrounds to support long-term tree health, through removing non-
compliant parking bays.

« Incorporating new vegetation and greening where suitable.

« Retains approximately 112 on-street parking bays due to non-compliance with
Australian Standards.

Vemmmm-- - - -

Detail Plan Kerby realignment Existing kerb line

60 degree angle car

compliant with mostly retained parking retained
Not to Scale Pa"';l'_::gr‘s’g:ﬁto;"’m Risks:
« On-road cycle lane behind angled parking will be slightly non-compliant between
Legend Halifax Street and Carrington Street (which can be mitigated with a documented
risk assessment as this is a short section with a speed limit of less than 60km/hr).
s Existing trees — — —  Existing kerb Foatpath and activity zone Bus stop and shelter B Cycle lane « Angled parking presents a greater hazard than parallel parking; mostly with

it ; d Road Tree surround reversing into moving traffic (noting that angled parking has been in place for 30+

‘ New trees e iR I oadhey L years along Hutt Street without too much of a crash history)

+ Visually not very different to existing street conditions.



Concept Development Options
Option C - Hutt Street

o
1 § G‘
=
° Fl =z 3 H z
g  E 2 % 9 z
Y 2 a 3 E 51 ElES F z -
2k 2 15 ] 2 g g nE g 3
o =z m I w - =z - - O in m

Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale

Road resurfacing and
new linemarking

In-road tree surrounds On-road cycle lane with a linemarked
enhanced for long term buffer zone and increased clearance

Full footpath J
tree health from parked vehicles

replacement

-,

: . o S—
I\.-----L_ ‘ITF -/ S A S e S (o S ) R S TR A

Refer to Detail Plan below

-

- Kerb realignment

Detail Plan compliant with

Mot to Scale parking offset from
intersection

Existing kerb line
mostly retained easier to park and unpark with improve

45 degree angle car parking makes
d|
sightlines to traffic

Legend

s Existing trees — — — Existing kerb

‘ New trees e EX'St‘ngﬁw”'”QS and [ Roadway

Footpath and activity zone Bus stop and shelter ~ mmmmm Cycle lane

B Tree surround
verandahs

U

The features of this concept design are:

« Changes parking to 45 degree angle, making it easier to access/egress than 60
degree parking whilst improving the bike lane design and standardising the bay widths
to reflect appropriate standards/guidelines.

« Improves reversing space and sightlines, enhancing safety for motorists and cyclists.

« Widens the on-road cycle lane to 1.9m with added clearance and a line-marked
buffer from traffic.

« Retains most of the existing kerb alignment, keeping some footpaths narrow.

« Creates space for street furniture and outdoor dining, by removing non-compliant
parking bays adjacent intersections.

+ Full footpath replacement, maintaining existing width and layout.

« Enhances tree surrounds to support long-term tree health, through removing non-
compliant parking bays.

« Incorporates new vegetation and greening where suitable.
« Retention of approximately 79 on-street parking bays (loss of 53).

Risks:

* Council is required to comply with Australian Standards and Ausroads Guidelines.
« On-road cycle lane behind angles parking is not the safest option.

«  Visually not very different to existing street conditions.



Concept Development Options T R T o

Option D - Hutt Street

Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT

On-street parking at all times (23)

On-street parking changes during AM and PM peak times

i 7 : I' ‘ e . 7;_;___}__ 'ir

- e e

Refer to Detail Plan below

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale

Raised thresholds for minor
side streets improving
accessibility for pedestrians

Full footpath Protected cycle path to
replacement support all wheeling modes pedestrian activity zone for long
term tree health and management

Street trees protected within the ]

-y,

0g abed

- -

The features of this concept design are:

Changes to parallel parking to provide greater footpath width, improved landscaping
opportunities, dedicated bike only path separated from footpath and a less hazard to
road users in terms of manoeuvring into and out of the carparks.

Off-peak parking in the outer traffic lane between Gilles Street and Carrington Street
(southbound in the AM, northbound in the PM). Parking between South Terrace and
Gilles Street is maintained at all times.

Creates a protected 2m wide cycle path separated from traffic to support all
wheeling modes, including e-scooters.

Provides raised thresholds at minor side streets, to improve pedestrian accessibility
and connectivity.

Expands pedestrian spaces for outdoor dining, public seating, and community
gathering areas.

Widens and declutters footpaths, improving accessibility.
Full footpath replacement, for enhanced pedestrian experience.

Introduces additional greening to reduce street temperatures and enhance
environmental amenity.

Enhances street trees’ long-term health and management within protected
footpath zone.

Traffic safety improvements including a dedicated turn lanes for McLaren Street
and Davaar Place.

Detail Plan Road resurfacing Expanded activit Dedi igh Interpeak parallel parking . . : i r
l and new linemarking For outdoor dinng, Dedicated night tum, improves sightlines to traffic and + Closure of the median gap between Gilles and Halifax Streets to mitigate vehicular
Not to Scale public seating, increased reduces collision risk conflict.
greening and community Wider less cluttered
event areas Toatpathe « Retains approximately 72 on-street parking bays (loss of 60).
Legend =
Risks:
i Existing trees — — —  Existing kerb Footpath and activity zone Bus stop and shelter ~ mmmmm Cycle path « There are 51 on-street parking bays during 7.30-9.30AM peak times.
_ Existingawningsand [ Roadway | Tree surround g Raised Threshold = There are &% on-street parking bays during 4.00-6.00PM peak times.
New trees verandahs

There are 72 on-street parking bays during off-peak times.

Speeds in the street are likely to be quicker as the reversing manoeuvres associated
with parallel parking is less disruptive than angle parking

Benefits:

Consistent street arrangement minimises conflict between different transport
modes.



Concept Development Options T R T o

Option E - Hutt Street

&

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale

Raised thresholds for minor
side streets improving
accessibility and connectivit

TE abed

- v 4
Detail Plan Road resurfacing elgt:::ge;mfgrsgl:g‘ggr; Dedicated right turn b degr:fk?: le car
Not to Scale and new linemarking tree health for McLaren Street
.

Legend

s Existing trees — — —  Existing kerb Foatpath and activity zone Bus stop and shelter s Cycle path E

Existing awnings and Roadwa Tree surround ﬁ Raised Threshold

‘ New trees - verand%hs g - i =

_____

Refer to Detail Plan below

Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT

The features of this concept option design are:

Changes parking to 45-degree angle, providing easier reversing manoeuvres into the
adjacent lane without bicycle conflict.

Creates a protected 1.5m wide cycle path separated from traffic to support all
wheeling modes, including e-scooters.

Widens the footpath, south of Halifax Street where space is limited.

Provides raised thresholds at minor side streets, to improve pedestrian accessibility
and connectivity.

Full footpath replacement, moving the kerb further into the road.
Improved tree surrounds to support long-term tree health,

Traffic safety improvements including a dedicated right-turn slip lane for McLaren
Street and Davaar Place.

Closure of the median gap between Gilles and Halifax Streets to mitigate vehicular
conflict.

Retains approximately 76 on-street parking bays (loss of 56).

Risks:

1.8m required footpath width for pedestrians (minimum for predicted pedestrian
volumes) leaves 1.8m for Outdoor Dining - impact to existing outdoor dining permit
areas.

Inconsistent arrangement of cycle path makes it difficult to predict where bikes will be
and may lead to increase in conflict between pedestrians and cyclists.

Cycle path has significant deviation, which may result in cyclists staying on road
rather than using the off-road bike path (particularly commuter or more confident
cyclists which provides limited provision for on-road cyclists).

Cycle path would be located very close to angled parking and those exiting angled
carparks will increase the conflict between cyclists and those carpark users.



Hutt Street Revitalisation

Next Steps

Governance:
A report will be provided to the Infrastructure and Public Works Committee on 18 November 2025 seeking
endorsement on a preferred option to be recommended to Council to proceed to detailed design.

o  Project Delivery Timeline
®  Following the approval of an option for Hutt Street by Council, the timing for delivery is expected to be as
5 follows:
Detailed Design 10 -12 months
Procurement (Construction Delivery) 3 - 4 months (overlap with end of design phase)
Construction Delivery 18 months

Slide 23 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



€€ abed

CITYTOE
ADELAIDE

GRANT FUNDING: $7.32M

In November 2024, Council was successful in attracting $7.32m of grant funding for Hutt Street via the Federal Government’s Thriving
Suburbs program.

Funding criteria and submission

«  Eligible projects must: Construct new community infrastructure or expand or upgrade existing infrastructure for wider community benefit'.

«  All (successful grant) activities must be strategically aligned to local place-based priorities and benefit a broad section of the community?.

*  The successful funding submission was based on the Concept Plan for Hutt Street (Option D layout), which featured a protected cycleway,
wider footpaths, access improvements and increased greening. Delivery of any option that does not deliver these key elements may put
the grant funding at risk.

Funding update

«  Originally, the grant funding was planned to offset Council's New and Upgrade budget of $12.5m. Current estimates suggest the grant
funding is required to top up the budget allocation.

* An extension has been requested for the timing of the grant funding and discussions will be progressed with the Federal Government
should the scope of the project change.

(1 & 2) Australian Government, Thriving Suburbs Program — Program Guidelines, 5.1 Eligible funding activities. https://www.infrastructure.gov.au



https://www.infrastructure.gov.au/sites/default/files/documents/thriving-suburbs-program-guidelines-august2024.pdf

Hutt Street Revitalisation

Key Question

-
Q
Q
)
w
N

KEY QUESTION

We are seeking
Council Members’
views on the
information and
options presented to
guide the
Administration in
finalising a design
for the Hutt Street
Main Street
Revitalisation
Project?

Slide 1 Hutt Street Revitalisation | 21 October 2025



24ADL-1418
11 JULY 2025

Hutt Street — Main
Street Revitalisation

Concept Development Options

Engagement Summary Report

CITY OF ADELAIDE

URPS



Hutt Street — Main Street Revitalisation

Engagement Summary Report

11 July 2025

Lead consultant

Prepared for

Consultant Project Manager

URPS Ref

Document history and status

URPS
27 Halifax Street

Enter via Symonds Pl
Adelaide SA 5000

(08) 8333 7999
urps.com.au

City of Adelaide

Anna Deller-Coombs, Associate Director
adellercoombs@urps.com.au

24ADL-1418

28/04/2025 A. Deller-Coombs N. Halsey
V2 26/05/2025 A. Deller-Coombs N. Halsey
V3 06/06/2025 A. Deller-Coombs N. Halsey
V4 11/07/24 A. Deller-Coombs N. Halsey

Initiation of report

Edits based on CoA and
further internal review

Edits based on CoA
review

Edits based on further
COA review




Contents

EXECULIVE SUMIMIGTY ettt 1
ENGAGEMENT SNAPSNOL ..ottt 2
1. INEFOAUCTION ...ttt st 3
1.1 Project Background and Previous ENGAgemMENT ... 3
2. HOW WE ENGAGEA ..ottt 5
2.1 PUrpoSe Of ENGUGEMENT . ..ottt ettt 5
2.2 Engagement UNAErtOKEN ... seesseseesss sttt 5
3. Our Adelide SUMNVEY RESUIES ...ttt 8
4, DemMOgraphiC SNAPSNOT. ...ttt 10
B. Hutt Street USe aNd Priorities ...ttt ssessssssss st ssssesessneees 16
6. Preferred Concept Development OptioN ... ... sssseseeesees 28
7. Community Events FEEADACK ... 37
7.1 CommMUNItY ArOP INS/POP=UD et ssseesssess sttt 37
7.2 Feedback 0N OPTIONS ...ttt 40
7.3 BUSINESS FOTUM .ottt bbbttt 42
7.4 StAKENOIAET WOTKSNOPS ..coviereee s 45
8. UG SIONS ottt 47
AADPENTICES .ottt 51
Appendix A — Letterbox Drop CatChment Area.......o.see s 52
APPENIX B — COATEIAL ...ttt 53
Appendix C — Weighted average methodolOgYy ... 74
APPENIX D = SUDMISSIONS ..ottt 78

We acknowledge the Kaurna People as the Traditional Custodians of the land on which we work and pay respect to their Elders past, present and emerging.

© URPS. All rights reserved; these materials are copyright. No part may be reproduced or copied in any way, form or by any means without prior permission.
This report has been prepared for URPS’ client. URPS and its associated consultants are not liable to any person or entity for any damage or loss that has occurred,
or may occur, in relation to that person or entity taking or not taking action in respect of any representation, statement, opinion or advice referred to herein.




Executive Summary

The City of Adelaide’s engagement about the revitalisation of Hutt Street has prompted strong community
interest and input, with over 1,000 survey responses and broad participation from local community and
stakeholder groups. The engagement, conducted between 21 February and 28 March 2025, focused on
seeking feedback on five concept development options to revitalise Hutt Street between South Terrace
and Carrington Street. Engagement sought to capture community priorities about parking, public realm
improvements, pedestrian and cycling infrastructure, and economic viability.

Key Findings of the engagement

e Parking emerged as the most topical issue. While many businesses and some residents stressed the
importance of maintaining on-street parking for economic and accessibility reasons, a large proportion
of respondents supported reducing parking to prioritise safety, amenity, and vibrancy.

e Option D was the clear preference across all respondent categories, including residents, ratepayers,
and business owners in the South-East precinct. It was supported by respondents as it offers wider
footpaths, protected cycle lanes, and enhanced greenery, aiming to transform Hutt Street into a safer,
more people-focused street.

e Mixed views on cycling infrastructure. Some welcomed protected bike lanes to improve safety and
encourage active transport, while others questioned their necessity, favouring existing routes like
Frome Street.

e Strong support for streetscape improvements such as better lighting, shade, public art, and green
spaces. Many saw these features as essential to creating a vibrant and welcoming precinct.

e Stakeholder feedback was generally aligned with broader community sentiment. Businesses voiced
concern over reduced parking, while planning, transport and resident groups backed improvements to
cycling, walking, and public spaces.

e Submissions reinforced these themes, with 46 received and 32 identifying a preferred option, with
Option D again the most favoured.

The engagement revealed a tension between preserving existing parking and embracing urban design
that supports broader community use and economic activation. Many called for a hybrid option blending
elements of all five concepts such as convenient car parking, safer cycling, retention of greenery and street
activation.

Engagement Summary Report | Executive Summary | 1




Engagement Snapshot

Who we heard from

Community survey: Community events: Stakeholder workshops:

Writt bmissions: i ;
» 50% CoA rate payers ritien submissions Business Forum:
» 46% CoA residents

@\ CoA's highest survey response rate to date for

» 7% business owners . .
an infrastructure project

What we heard

Revitalising Hutt Street is well Car parking is convenient for
supported most and is a priority for some
users

The green trees and local shops,
services, cafes and restaurants Safety could be improved,
are well loved particularly for cyclists

Accessibility, vibrancy and Village feel of Hutt Street is
activation of the street is valued and should be retained

important

Preferred option

Option E, 9%

Option A, 23%
‘ second mast popular option for nearly
a quarter of survey respondents

preferred by more than half of

survey respondents Option B, 9%

Option C, 3%

Engagement Summary Report | Engagement Snapshot | 2



1. Introduction

The Hutt Street Revitalisation is an exciting City of Adelaide street upgrade initiative involving multiple
stages from design to construction.

Between 21 February and 28 March 2025, the community was invited to provide feedback on five concept
development options for revitalising the section of Hutt Street between South Terrace and Carrington
Street. This area forms the Hutt Street Revitalisation.

This engagement was requested from the City of Adelaide’s Elected Members, following review of an
initial concept design in November 2024. That design was informed by community input gathered during
the master planning process in March/April 2022.

The Elected Members sought further community input, with particular focus on car parking
accommodations. In response, five distinct concept development options were presented to the
community, each offering a different approach to balancing amenity, movement and parking.

1.1 Project Background and Previous Engagement

In 2020 the City of Adelaide identified Hindley Street, Hutt Street, Melbourne Street and O’Connell Street
as priority main streets for Main Street Revitalisation, with Gouger Street added at a later stage.

Hutt Street is one of Adelaide’s main streets and is known for its village-like cluster of cafés and
restaurants, which operate alongside day-to-day essential community services. There has been no major
upgrade to Hutt Street in the last 30 years.

Community engagement and research has been undertaken over recent years to better understand the
community’s views on the priorities, needs and expectations for Hutt Street.

Key milestones are outlined below and demonstrated in Figure 1.

e Lord Mayor Roundtable Discussions — 2021
In 2021, the Lord Mayor held roundtable discussions as part of the City of Adelaide’s main streets
engagement that identified key themes to guide the planning for Hutt Street. These themes included
improved greening, more public space, improved lighting, increased street art, bike facilities and
opportunities for activation. Further engagement on main street master planning allowed the City of
Adelaide to develop a draft vision, and a set of design principles and objectives for Hutt Street. These
represented the community’s priorities for the street.

e Master Planning — 2022
Off the back of the street upgrade initiative, in 2022 the City of Adelaide undertook Master Planning for
Hutt Street which identified potential opportunities to enhance the street. These included upgrading the
public realm, creating more space for public activities and improving access.

Engagement Summary Report | Introduction | 3




e Early Concept Design — August 2024
In August 2024, the City of Adelaide reviewed an early concept design for revitalising Hutt Street. This
concept was shaped by community feedback gathered during master planning in March/April 2022.
Council sought review of the concept plans for Hutt Street Revitalisation with a particular focus on the
provision of car parking spaces. In response, five different concept development options were
developed.

e Grant Funding — November 2024
In late November 2024, the City of Adelaide was successful in securing a $7.32m grant funding
contribution for the revitalisation of Hutt Street under the Australian Government’s Thriving Suburbs
Program. This program aims to support projects that enhance liveability, strengthen social cohesion,
and support local amenity in urban and rural communities.

Figure 1: Key project and engagement milestones

16 March 2022 - 17 March 2022 November 2024 to April 2025
Drop-in Sessions to seck Hurr Street Revitalisation
community feedback - Site Investigations Detailed Design

November 2022 - Januvary 2024

. - Detailed Design developed
Footpath Extension Trial S A

with progressive updares
to community

Construction
" Delive
07 March - 04 April 2022 February to April 2025 c r}' I
Hutt Street Master Plan . . “onstruction for
utt: Mas 1 Hurr Strect Strecrscapes the Hurr Street
- Consultation April to November 2024 on Consultation Revitalisation
Hurt Street F,nrr}' Statement pm}ccl COMmMmences

- Delivery and Construction

Engagement Summary Report | Introduction | 4




2. How we Engaged

A range of engagement methods were used to share information with and seek feedback from Hutt Street
businesses, key stakeholders, local residents, and the wider community during the engagement period.

2.1 Purpose of Engagement

The objectives of this engagement were:

e Gather meaningful community feedback to support Elected Members in making informed decisions
about the Hutt Street Revitalisation design, while recognising that these views will be considered
alongside technical requirements and budget constraints.

e Design and deliver an engagement process to capture a broad range of perspectives, including input
from Hutt Street businesses, local residents, key stakeholders, and the wider community.

e Accurately and faithfully report the feedback to the project team and the public in order to close the
loop.

2.2 Engagement Undertaken

The engagement was open for a period of 4 weeks, commencing Friday 21 February and concluding on
Friday 28 March 2025. Table 1 outlines the engagement activities undertaken. Table 2 outlines the ways
in which the engagement was promoted and the tools used to engage. The outcomes of each
engagement activity are provided in Section 7. Copies of engagement materials are provided in Appendix
B.

Table 1: Engagement Undertaken

Online survey (Our Adelaide)

An online survey was developed to capture feedback on the five concept All interested
development options. This was available through the Our Adelaide community.
engagement platform.

Business forum

A specific business forum was held to provide opportunity for local businesses  Hutt Street
to learn about the five concept development options for Hutt Street, including businesses.
their approach to parking, access, safety, public space, and activation and

understand how to participate in the engagement.

The format of the business forum included a slide presentation by senior
project management and City of Adelaide staff. It was facilitated by an expert
facilitator from URPS and included a Q&A session.

All businesses on Hutt Street were hand-dropped a letter inviting them to
attend the forum and were asked to RSVP.

Engagement Summary Report | How we Engaged | 5




Community events

Two open community drop-in sessions and one pop-up session were held,
featuring key information and graphics of the five concept development
options. These sessions offered interactive opportunities for community
members to speak with project team members and share their feedback. To
support accessibility and encourage participation, the sessions were held at
different times and locations, two at the Hutt Street Library and one pop-up at
the Fringe Vibes event, with attendees only needing to attend one session.

Stakeholder workshops

Two stakeholder workshops were held with key stakeholder groups identified
as having an interest in Hutt Street.

These invite-only sessions curated attendance from representative groups
and subject matter experts to ensure perspectives were gathered from
relevant voices. Approximately 40 key stakeholder groups were identified and
invited to attend.

Other ways to provide feedback

As well as using the online survey, community members and stakeholders
were able to share their feedback with the project team through written
submissions, emails, and phone calls. This input has been documented in
Section 4.

Engagement Summary Report | How we Engaged | 6

All stakeholders who
live, work, play,
commute and own
property in and
nearby Hutt Street.

Key stakeholders
identified with the City
of Adelaide who may
have an interest in the
design.

All interested
community.




Table 2: Promotion and engagement tools

A link to the project page was provided on Council’s Our Adelaide
Our Adelaide webpage page. Our Adelaide also hosted the survey, fact sheet and concept
development options.

A fact sheet was developed to outline key information about the
engagement and how to provide feedback. It was uploaded to Our

Fact sheet Adelaide, delivered via letterbox drop to residents and businesses
surrounding Hutt Street, and posted to property owners within the
same catchment. See Appendix A for catchment area.

Promotion through Council social Posts were made across Council’s social media channels
media channels (Facebook, Instagram and LinkedIn) to promote the engagement.

) . Promotional signs were installed along Hutt Street, advising
Corflute promotional signs
commuters, shoppers and other passers-by of the engagement.

. Businesses on Hutt Street were doorknocked and offered to display
Other promotional posters ; . o
a promotional poster in their window.

. L All businesses on Hutt Street were hand delivered an invite to the
Business forum invite , .
business forum that also advised of the engagement.

Engagement Summary Report | How we Engaged | 7




3. Our Adelaide Survey Results

This survey was available on Our Adelaide during the engagement period and received 1,039 responses.
This is one of the highest response rates ever received for an infrastructure project through Our Adelaide.
This is testament to the high-quality promotion of the engagement and community interest in the subject
matter.

The survey consisted of 10 key questions (refer Table 3). Four questions sought basic demographic
information about the respondent, with additional questions asked to clarify answers based on
programmed logic (these are explained further in the individual question analysis below). Six questions
then sought to understand current and future use and priorities of respondents, and ultimately their
preferred concept development option from the five options provided. Optional open-ended questions
sought additional clarification on the option preference. Each question is analysed in detail in Sections 4 to
6 of this report.

At the conclusion of the survey, respondents were presented with all their selections summarised and
were able to review and go back and change anything or submit.

Table 3: Survey questions

uestion
Q Question Question structure/programmed logic
number
1. How do you participate in Select from 7 options and as many as applied
city life?

If selected ‘own a business’, respondent take to additional
question:

e What area of the city is your business located in?
A map was provided to assist respondents in selecting the

correct response regarding which part of the city their
business was located in.

2. Are you a City of Adelaide Yes/no response
ratepayer?
3. Age group Select from 17 preset age cohorts mostly within 5 year age
brackets
4, Postcode If a City of Adelaide postcode was identified, respondent

was taken to additional question:

e What area of the city do you live in?

A map was provided to assist respondents in selecting the
correct response.

Engagement Summary Report | Our Adelaide Survey Results | 8




Question
number

10

Question

Imagine Hutt Street in 10
years. What's most
important to you?

How do you currently use
Hutt Street?

How do you see yourself
using Hutt Street in the
future?

What is your top priority for
the future of Hutt Street?

What is your second priority
for the future of Hutt Street?

Please select your preferred
option

Question structure/programmed logic

Ranking of 5 options in order of importance

Select from 5 options and as many as applied

Select from 5 options and as many as applied

Selection of top priority from 5 options

Selection of second priority from the remaining 4 options

Respondent prompted to view all 5 Concept Development
Options for Hutt Steet Revitalisation before selecting their
preferred option

Opportunity to add free form comment regarding what
like/don't like about their preferred option

A note on interpreting the survey data

While the high number of survey responses can provide increasing confidence as to the reliability of the
data received, it is important to note that this survey was part of an opt-in engagement process and
does not represent statistically valid market research. That is, respondents chose to participate, and the
respondent group may not be statistically comparative to the impacted community.

As a result, caution should be applied to the use of quantitative data (i.e. numbers and percentages)
throughout. It is recommended that it be viewed as one source of data and balanced amongst feedback
received through other mechanisms (including at community events — refer section 4).

Engagement Summary Report | Our Adelaide Survey Results | 9




4. Demographic Snapshot

Question 1: How do you participate in city life?
Respondents were invited to indicate the ways that they participate in city life. Seven choices could be

selected from and respondents could choose as many that applied to them.

The most commonly selected choices (refer Figure 2) were shop (77%), play (leisure/recreation) (74%) and
work (55%). Strong numbers of respondents also indicated that they live (reside) in the city (45%). Smaller
numbers of respondents indicated that they own a business (11%) or are tourist (3%). All choices received
a response, indicating a wide range of respondent types.

Figure 2: Participation in city life (more than one response allowed)

900

77%, 803 o
800 74%, 770

700
600 55%,569

500 45%, 467

400

300

Number of respondents

200 9
14%, 142 11%, 112

100 . - 3%, 29
0 [ ]

Work Shop Play (Leisure/ Study Live (reside) Own a business Tourist
Recreation)

City of Adelaide business owners

If respondents selected that they ‘own a business’, they were then prompted to indicate what area of the
city their business is located — North Adelaide, East, West, South-East, South West. A map was provided
to assist respondents in selecting the correct response.

110 survey respondents indicated they own a business, with 70 of these indicating that their business is
located in the South-East precinct of the city (where Hutt Street is located) (refer Figure 3). Note: 2
respondents skipped this question.

Engagement Summary Report | Demographic Snapshot | 10




Figure 3: What area of the city is your business located in (percent of business owners)

80
70
60
50
40
30

63.6%

20 13.6% .
11.8% 91%

o e ] L] ]
0 | |

North Adelaide East West South East South West

Number of respondents

Question 2: Are you a City of Adelaide ratepayer?

Respondents were invited to indicate whether they were a City of Adelaide ratepayer.

The proportion of ratepayers to non-ratepayers within the respondent group was evenly split (refer Figure
4). This was a mandatory question and there was no option to decline or to state unsure.

Figure 4: City of Adelaide ratepayer as proportion of all respondents

49.6% 50.4%

m Ratepayer respondents m Not ratepayer respondents

Engagement Summary Report | Demographic Snapshot | 11




Question 3: Age group

Seventeen preset age cohorts could be selected by respondents, mostly within 5 year age brackets. The
survey responses indicate a high level of age diversity with almost all cohorts having some level of
participation (with the exception of 14 years and under) (refer Figure 5).

Figure 5: Age distribution (all respondents)

140
11.6%

120
0.6% 10.0% 10.0%
100 8.7%
7.8% 8.1% 7.9%
o ° 7.2% ’
6.1%
6
4.6% 4 504
A
2.2% 50,
2 _ 0.4%
0.0% 0.0% I 47
0 ||

Under 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75-79 80-84 85and
9 over

o o o

Number of respondents

o

Age Group

Question 4: Postcode

Respondents were required to provide their postcode. The data is presented in terms of whether
respondents indicated a City of Adelaide, metropolitan Adelaide, other South Australian or Interstate
postcode (refer Figure 6). The data indicates that almost half of respondents have City of Adelaide
postcodes and half metropolitan Adelaide postcodes. Very small numbers of respondents provided
interstate or other South Australian postcodes.

Engagement Summary Report | Demographic Snapshot | 12




Figure 6: Postcode by region (all respondents)

0.6%

m City of Adelaide = Adelaide Metro = Other South Australia = Interstate

To further understand participation, a ‘heat map’ of postcodes is provided (refer Figure 7). This shows
higher concentrations of respondents in inner city ring suburbs as well as a fairly consistent distribution of
respondents from both the northern and southern parts of metropolitan Adelaide.

Engagement Summary Report | Demographic Snapshot | 13




Figure 7: Postcode distribution heat map (all respondents)

Number of responses

1« » 50+

Engagement Summary Report | Demographic Snapshot | 14




City of Adelaide postcodes

If respondents provided 5000, 5001 and 5006 as postcodes, they were then prompted to indicate what
area of the city they live in — North Adelaide, East, West, South East, South West. A map was provided to
assist respondents in selecting the correct response.

332 (or 68.5%) of the 506 survey respondents with a City of Adelaide postcode indicated that they live
within the South-East precinct of the city (where Hutt Street is located) (refer Figure 8).

Figure 8: Area of the city where live (City of Adelaide postcodes)

350 68.5%
300
250
200
150

100 14.0%

0,
50 5.6% . 37% 8.2%
0 . — ]

North Adelaide East West South East South West

Number of respondents

This represents 31.9% (almost a third) of all survey respondents. This suggests that a strong number of
local residents participated in the survey, but that overall, more people who completed the survey self-
identified as being from outside the South-East precinct.

A note on survey design and response

It is noted that there are some differences in the data as a result of participants choosing different
response options relating to where they live. For example,

e 467 respondents indicated they live in the city (Question 1)
e 506 provided a City of Adelaide postcode (5000, 5001 or 5006) (Question 4)

e 485 responded to what part of the city they live in (eg South-East etc) (Question 5)

This discrepancy may be due to a number of factors, including some respondents potentially providing a
postcode for their place of business rather than their residential postcode.

Irrespective of which figure is most accurate, these numbers suggest that somewhere between 45%
and 49% of survey respondents are City of Adelaide residents.

Engagement Summary Report | Demographic Snapshot | 15




5.

Hutt Street Use and Priorities

Question 5: Imagine Hutt Street in 10 years — what’s most important to you?

Respondents were invited to rank the following 5 options in order of importance:

Protected space for people cycling and wheeling

An accessible street for everyone that improved the pedestrian experience

An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality
A greener, cooler street with trees and improved garden amenity

A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the highest level.

Figure 9: Imagining Hutt St in 10 years-what’s most important (all respondents)

Number of respondents
0 100 200 300 400 500 600

I 14%, 150

An accessible street for everyone thatimproves the pedestrian 23%, 241
experience 24%, 245
P I 21%, 223
Il 3%,32
I 22%,228
A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the ‘tz;’ 3;172
. b,
highest level B o 1

N 52%, 544
I 21%, 221

An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings 19%, 200
and outdoor hospitalit 19%, 197
P y I 22%, 232
Il 4%, 39
I 17%,177
A greener, cooler street with trees and improved garden 24%, 250
it 23%, 242
amentty I 20%, 205
W 2%, 18
. 16%, 171
17%, 172
Protected space for people cycling and wheeling 16%, 165

I 17%, 181
I 19%, 197

H RANK 1 RANK 2 RANK3 mRANK4 mRANKS5

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 16




The distribution of ranked responses provides the following information (refer Figure 9):

e ‘A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the highest level’ was the most common first
priority (by more than a fifth of respondents) and also the most common last priority (more than half of
respondents) indicating a highly polarised response. As a result of this, weighted average ranks should
be treated with caution.

e ‘Protected space for people cycling and wheeling’ had the greatest variation of respondent
prioritisation. It was the third most common first ranked option, but also the lowest priority by a fifth of
respondents.

e Priorities relating to accessibility, vibrancy and greening were most commonly mid-ranked responses
from participants.

Weighted average analysis

In order to try to further understand this data, weighted average rank analysis is provided (refer Table 4).
A weighted average takes into account both how many people selected each response and how highly
they ranked it. This gives more influence to higher-ranked responses, providing a clearer picture of overall
preferences or priorities. This is like giving more points to higher-ranked choices so it's clearer which ones
matter most to participants overall.

The weighted average is a common and practical method for presenting ranked survey results, especially
when it is desirable to present a single summary metric to show relative preferences. While a common
methodology, there are limitations to weighted averages. There is a loss of detail as the distribution of
responses is no longer clear (for example polarised vs consistently middling responses). It also can mask
extremes. That is, an item with strong 1st and last-place votes might look average. Further information on
the methodology for this analysis is provided in Appendix C.

This weighted analysis shows that greener, vibrant and accessible street design is preferred by
respondents. A street that has protected cycling infrastructure is more likely to be preferenced than a
street that maintains on street parking.

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 17




Table 4: Weighted average ranking - Hutt St in 10 years-what’s most important (all respondents)

Weighted )
Option
average rank
1 A greener, cooler street with trees and improved garden amenity
2 An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality
3 An accessible street for everyone that improves the pedestrian experience
4 Protected space for people cycling and wheeling
5 A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the highest level

Question 6: How do you currently use Hutt Street?

Respondents were invited to identify how they currently use Hutt Street and could choose as many of the
following options that apply to them:

e Accessing local businesses and services.

e Walking, cycling, or enjoying public spaces

e Commuting through the area

e Attending events or dining out

e Other (please specify)

‘Accessing local businesses and services’ along with ‘attending events or dining out’ were the most

common ways that respondents use Hutt Street currently (84% and 79% of respondents chose these
activities) (refer Figure 10).

‘Walking, cycling or enjoying public spaces’ was also chosen by three-quarters of respondents.
Over half of survey respondents (58%) indicated that they use Hutt Street as a commuter route.

48 respondents provided an ‘other’ response and were prompted to provide further detail. The most
common responses were that they worked/owned a business or lived in the area (15 responses and 10
responses respectively).

Eight responses indicated a range of social and recreational activities were pursued on Hutt Street
including meeting friends, dining out or visiting the library. Other comments highlighted that Hutt Street
was convenient for people with mobility or access requirements (5 responses).

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 18




Figure 10: Current use of Hutt St (all respondents, more than one response allowed)

Number of respondants
100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000

o

Accessing local businesses and services 84%

Attending events or dining out 79%

Commuting through the area 58%

Walking, cycling, or enjoying public spaces 73%

Other )

m I

A sample of verbatim comments that elaborated on responses are provided below:
“Enjoy my local village community - I live in Hutt Street - please don't change it! *

“l currently rarely use Hutt Street as | don't find it to be a pleasant area to be a pedestrian or cyclist, so |
tend to avoid and go to other areas of Adelaide with those amentities.” (sic)

“Utilising the services, meeting with others casually, enjoying the vehicle accessibility.”

“l dont. Its currently just a car park with heavy traffic flow through it. Its not a great environment to visit
with the amount of road traffic.”

“l want a better urban enviroment that doesn't prioritise car use. Accesability is important, but so is
livibility” (sic)

"I have mobility issues and need close parking to my local shops - this is essential for me.”

Question 7: How do you see yourself using Hutt Street in the future?

Respondents were invited to identify how they see themselves using Hutt Street in the future and could
choose as many of the following options that apply to them:

e Relaxing in green spaces

e Attending events or outdoor dining

e Using improved cycling and walking paths
e Parking for local businesses and services

e Other (please specify)

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 19




‘Attending events or outdoor dining’ was the most common way that respondents see themselves using
Hutt Street in the future (82% of respondents) (refer Figure 11). ‘Using improved cycling and walking
paths’ and ‘relaxing in green spaces’ were equally common with over half of respondents choosing these
options (65% and 59% respectively). Nearly half of respondents indicated that they see themselves using
‘parking for local businesses and services’ in the future (39%).

62 respondents provided an ‘other’ response and were prompted to provide comments. The most
common responses related to using Hutt Street for work, or running or patronising a local business (13
responses). An additional 10 responses referred to using the street for shopping and daily needs. Many
other responses related to dining, socialising and connecting with family and friends on the street. There
were a mix of responses as to the parking and traffic impacts and how this might change the way that
people interact with the street.

Figure 11: Future use of Hutt Street (all respondents, more than one response allowed)

Number of respondants
100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

o

Relaxing in green spaces. 59%

Attendin t td
geyep s or outdoor 829%

dining

Using improved cycling and 0

walking paths et

Parking for local businesses and

) 39%
services

Other:= 6%

A sample of verbatim comments is provided below:

“Despite my age, | hope to continue enjoying Hutt Street without too much change, much as | do now.”
“Coffee meet ups with friends particularly after a park run or a morning cycle.”

“Being able to easily park and see the businesses, all of which are tantamount to a vibrant community.”

“Using services and businesses but parking isn't essential.”

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 20




Question 8: What is your top priority for the future of Hutt Street?

For this question respondents were invited to click on the different priorities listed below to see the
concept development options aligned to that priority through programmed survey logic (refer Table 5).

The priority and corresponding options which were displayed based on that priority are listed below.

Table 5: Programmed survey logic — priority selection and concept development option

Priority selected Concept development option(s) that would be

displayed

Retention of on Street Parking Provision Option A
Option B

Long Term Tree Health and Increased Greening Option B
Option C
Option D
Option E

Increased Activity Zones and Pedestrian Areas Option D

Option E

Improved Road Safety Option D
Option E

Protected Cycle Path (separated from road) Option D
Option E

Preceding this page was an explanation that each design balances different community priorities,
including car parking, overall streetscape improvements and cycling access. This outlined that some
designs keep most or all car parking, while others make changes that may reduce the number of car
parking spaces. Figure 12 was used in the survey to explain the varying application of design features and
priorities across the 5 options.

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 21




Figure 12: Community priorities and concept development options matrix

Not at all To minimal Somewhat Significantly To th.e highest level
extent : practicable

Community priorities
s Support for Long Term 3
Concept Development  Increased Activity Zones Protected Cycle Path - Retention of on-street
5 & 5 : Tree Health & Increased Improved Road Safety 2 S
Design Option and Pedestrian Areas (Seperated from Road) Greening parking provision

Option A - Hutt St

Option B - Hutt St

Option C - Hutt St

Option D - Hutt St

Option E - Hutt St

SO0 OO0
CNCNCACH®,
il Nl HG
CECRGECH®.
SO0

Note, at this stage participants were not asked to select their preferred option, but rather what priority
was most important to them. Respondents could only select one priority.

Almost equal numbers of respondents indicated their top priorities are a separated protected cycle path
(29%) and retention of on street parking provision (28%) (refer Figure 13)

A quarter of respondents indicated their top priority as ‘increased activity zones and pedestrian areas’.
Smaller numbers prioritised tree health and greening (14%) and improved road safety (4%).

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 22




Figure 13: Top priority for the future of Hutt Street (all respondents)

Number of respondants
50 100 150 200 250 300 350

o

Increased Activity Zones and
) 25%
Pedestrian Areas

Protected Cycle Path (separated
29%
from road)

Long Term Tree Health and
) 14%
Increased Greening

Improved Road Safety 4%

Retention of on Street Parkin
' g 28%
Provision

Question 9: What is your second priority for the future of Hutt Street?

Participants were presented with the remaining 4 priorities (minus the one they selected as their first

preference) and asked to indicate their second priority. No concept development options were displayed
on screen during this selection.

Tree health and greening was a common second preference with a quarter of respondents choosing

this priority (refer Figure 14). This was followed by increased activity zones and pedestrian areas (16%)
and protected cycle path (16%).

Road safety continued to be a lower priority as a second preference (8% of respondents). Retention of on
street parking was the least common second preference (4%).

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 23




Figure 14: Second priority for the future of Hutt Street (all respondents)

Number of respondants
50 100 150 200 250 300

o

Increased Activity Zones and

0,
Pedestrian Areas 16%

Protected Cycle Path (separated

0,
from road) He

Long Term Tree Health and

0,
Increased Greening E30

Improved Road Safety 8%

Retention of on Street Parking

. 4%
Provision

Analysis of top and second priority by cohorts

Further analysis of responses to top and second priorities for the future of Hutt Street by different cohorts
is presented. For the purposes of this project, this compares all responses, to responses from those
respondents who identified as South-East residents and South-East businesses. The reason for selecting
these cohorts specifically is it provides insight into members of the community that may be more directly
impacted by this project (the logic being that a resident or business owner on or near Hutt Street would be
more regularly and directly impacted than a business in North Adelaide, for example).

The comparison of this data shows that:

e A number of people from each cohort identified retention of car parking as their top priority in the first
instance.

e Of those who didn't identify car parking as their top priority in the first instance, when asked for their
second priority, a very small number selected retention of car parking.

This shows that overall, across all cohorts, car parking is important to some people, but for the majority
of respondents other priorities are more important such as long-term tree health and greening, activity
zones and pedestrian areas, cycling paths and greening and protected cycle paths.

It is also important to look at both the proportion and actual numbers of responses regarding the top and
second priorities within the cohort analysis.

Figure 15 and Figure 16 and Table 6 and Table 7 summarise this data.

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 24




Figure 15: Top priority for future of Hutt Street by cohorts

Increased Activity Zones and Pedestrian Areas

Protected Cycle Path (separated from road)

Long Term Tree Health and |ncreased Greening

Improved Road Safety

Retention of on Street Parking Provision

29 abed

South East Resident only

W South East Business Owner only

50 100 300

(%]
[£,]
=]

-

g =

Both 3E Resident and SE Business Owner  MAl other respondents

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 25




Figure 16: Second priority for future of Hutt Street by cohorts

0 50 100 150 200 2

Increased Activity Zones and Pedestrian Areas 75 E_
Protected Cycle Path (separated from road) 34 9 _

n

=]
L

1
Improved Road Safety Y | H_

1
1
Retention of on Street Parking Provision [ 15 i-

€9 abed

South EastResident only M South East Business Owner only Both 3E Resident and SE Business Owner  MAl other respondents

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 26




Table 6: Top priority by cohorts (green=highest response, orange=next highest response)

South-East South-East
All respondents : .
Top priority residents businesses
% No. % No. % No.

Increased Activity Zones and Pedestrian

Areas 25%
Protected Cycle Path (separated from road) 29%
I(_;ggnTir?;m Tree Health and Increased 14%
Improved Road Safety 4%
Retention of on Street Parking Provision 28%

262 27% 91 41% 29
298 11% 37 9% 6
144 17% 55 3% 2

43 5% 18 4% 3
292 39% 131 43% 30

Table 7: Second priority by cohorts (green=highest response, orange=next highest response)

Second priority

%

Increased Activity Zones and Pedestrian 16%
Areas

Protected Cycle Path (separated from road) 16%
Long Term Tree Health and Increased 25%
Greening

Improved Road Safety 8%
Retention of on Street Parking Provision 4%

South-East South-East
All respondents - -
residents businesses

No. % No. % No.
170 25% 82 11% 8
167 14% 46 27% 19
262 30% 101 34% 24
87 11% 38 11% 8
37 5% 17 6% 4

Engagement Summary Report | Hutt Street Use and Priorities | 27




6. Preferred Concept Development Option

Question 10: Please select your preferred option — all respondents

Participants were prompted to look at all 5 Concept Development Options before selecting their preferred
option.

Option D was preferred by the majority of respondents and accounting for more than half (56%) of all
responses (refer Figure 17).

The next most commonly selected option was Option A, chosen by just under a quarter (23%) of
respondents.

Options B and E received the same level of responses (9% each) and option C was selected as by 3% of
respondents.

Figure 17: Preferred option for Hutt Street (all respondents)

600
500
400
300 56%

200

Number of respondents

0
100 23%

0

Hutt Street - Option A Hutt Street - Option B Hutt Street - Option C  Hutt Street - Option D  Hutt Street - Option E

Preferred Hutt Street option -ratepayers and non-ratepayers

515 survey respondents identified themselves as ratepayers of the City of Adelaide. When accounting
for whether respondents are ratepayers of the City of Adelaide, the pattern of option preference is
almost identical as to that outlined for all respondents above. Option D continues to be most preferred
(46%) followed by Option A (29%) and lower rates of preference for Options B, C and E (refer Figure
18).

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 28




Figure 18: Preferred Hutt Street option - ratepayers and non-ratepayers (all respondents)

600

500

400

300

200

Number of respondents

9
100 46%

29% P
0
. 1% ] 9%

Hutt Street - Option A Hutt Street - Option B Hutt Street - Option C  Hutt Street - Option D Hutt Street - Option E
W Ratepayer ® Not ratepayer

Preferred Hutt Street option — South-East residents and businesses

The preference pattern remains consistent for respondents who identified as being residents or business
owners in the South-East of the city (=332 and n=70 respectively) (refer Figure 19 and Figure 20).

Even when separating out the views of ratepayers, residents of the South-East of the City of Adelaide, or
business owners of the South-East of the City of Adelaide, all groups show a clear preference for Option
D.

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 29




Figure 19: Preferred Hutt Street option- South-East residents

Number of respondents

160

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

42%

10%

Hutt Street - Option A Hutt Street - Option B Hutt Street - Option C  Hutt Street - Option D  Hutt Street - Option E

Figure 20: Preferred Hutt Street option — South-East businesses

Number of respondents

35

30

25

20

15

10

Hutt Street - Option A Hutt Street - Option B Hutt Street - Option C  Hutt Street - Option D  Hutt Street - Option E

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 30




Figure 21: Preferred Hutt Street option — All cohorts

]

0 100 200 300 400 500

5
1
Hutt Street - Option B 49 -
Hutt Street - Option C 7.

1
Hutt Street - Option E n -
South East Resident only M South East Business Owner only Both SE Resident and SE Business Cwner BAILL other respondents

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 31




What do/don't you like about this option (free form)

Subsequent questions asked respondents to indicate what they did and didn'’t like about the options. They

were able to provide this feedback in their own words in free form text. Table 8 provides a summary of the
free form responses that accompanied respondents’ preferred option. They have been paraphrased for
consistency and ease of reading.

Table 8: Free form responses (all respondents)

What do you like about this option? | What don't you like about this option?

Option A o

Residents with mobility issues rely
on nearby parking to access shops
and local businesses.

Maintaining parking is vital for the
survival of Hutt Street businesses.

Parking is already limited, and
further reductions would harm both
residents and businesses.

The Hutt Street community values
its residential, village-style
character.

There is some opposition to more
bars and nightlife venues in the
area.

Retaining parking supports a mix of
small businesses that locals
frequently use.

Hutt Street’s accessible parking
sets it apart from other city
locations.

Some business owners report
significant loss of trade when
parking is reduced.

Residents struggle to find on-street
parking due to demand from
workers and visitors.

Improvements like fixing footpaths
are supported if parking remains
unaffected.

Many residents have lived in the
area for years and want to
preserve its current feel.

Free short-term parking
encourages visits for appointments,
shopping, and social catch-ups.

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 32

Many people feel Hutt Street functions well
currently and should be left unchanged.

Numerous respondents explicitly said
“nothing” needs changing, preferring the
status quo.

Maintaining car parking is a top priority, with
strong opposition to any reduction in parking
spaces.

Some support minor upgrades, such as
repairing footpaths or improving trip hazards,
without altering layout or reducing parking.

Respondents expressed concerns that
greening efforts (e.g. increasing tree canopy)
may compromise parking or accessibility.
While some support more greenery, it should
not come at the expense of car access or
usability for residents and businesses.

There is division on bike lane, some see them
as unnecessary, others see them as critical,
but not at the cost of parking.

Several respondents believe the real issues
affecting Hutt Street (e.g. homelessness, anti-
social behaviour) are not being addressed.

A few would like to see modest
enhancements like new seating, better
lighting, and small plantings.

Comments highlighted that it was difficult to
choose between parking and greening and
that some people found both of these
important.

Others noted the plan lacked enough
information, creativity, or did not address
inconsistencies and broader city connectivity.

Many expressed satisfaction with Hutt
Street’s current mix of business, access, and




What do you like about this option? | What don't you like about this option?

Option B

Reducing parking risks making Hutt
Street unliveable for residents and
unattractive for customers.

Strong support for retaining on-
street parking to maintain local
business viability and community
access.

Some consider this option a well-
balanced compromise between
improving the streetscape and
protecting car parking.

Several respondents value
increased greenery and tree
protection, as long as parking and
access aren't reduced.

There is support for minimal or
moderate upgrades to footpaths,
street furniture, and outdoor dining
areas.

Respondents want bike lanes
improved for safety, but not
expanded at the expense of car
parks or pedestrian zones.

Maintaining traffic flow and U-turn
access is important, especially near
Halifax and McLaren Streets.

Locals appreciate the current
“village feel” and don’t want
changes that could lead to
business closures or loss of
character.

Some support limited
enhancements like seating,
greenery, and safer pedestrian
areas if done without major
disruption.

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 33

streetscape, and see major changes as
unnecessary or harmful.

Strong concern about reduction in car parking,
with many fearing it will hurt small businesses
and make visits difficult.

Support for maintaining or modestly
enhancing greenery, especially if it doesn't
compromise parking or the street’s current
charm.

Mixed views on bike infrastructure, with some
calling for better bike paths and others
questioning the need due to proximity to
Frome Street bikeway.

Some support for more outdoor dining space,
as long as parking and access are preserved.

Desire for consistent and sensible footpath
upgrades, rather than partial replacements or
unnecessary expense.

Criticism of missing features, including lack of
electric vehicle charging and little support for
homelessness services in the plan.

Preference for minimal changes to preserve
the current “village feel” and functionality of
Hutt Street.

Concerns over unnecessary costs, especially
for full footpath replacements or aesthetic
upgrades that don't address core access
issues.

Appreciation for balance in the proposal, with
some seeing it as a reasonable compromise
between greening, parking, and accessibility.

Calls for better road safety and heat
mitigation, with suggestions like restricted
turns or alternative road materials.




What do you like about this option? | What don't you like about this option?

Option C

Parking is described as already “a
nightmare,” and any reduction
would deter visits and strain
nearby residential streets.

Respondents want the existing
strengths of Hutt Street preserved,
with only subtle refinements rather
than a full overhaul.

Broad support for balanced
outcomes, with many noting the
option achieves a strong mix of
greenery, parking, pedestrian
space, and traffic flow.

Improved pedestrian accessibility
and outdoor dining opportunities
are seen as valuable
enhancements to Hutt Street's
amenity.

Wider bike lanes and better cycling
safety are welcomed, though some
prefer these improvements without
full separation like on Frome Street.

Retention of on-street parking is
still a priority, especially to support
local businesses and ensure short-
stay visits remain viable.

Maintaining two traffic lanes is
appreciated for preserving north-
south vehicle movement and
avoiding congestion.

Increased greenery and enhanced
tree health are viewed positively
when balanced with parking and
access.

Some see this option as a practical
upgrade to the current layout
without major disruption to the
existing business environment.

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 34

Concerns about reduction in car parking
remain strong, particularly from residents
already experiencing parking difficulties
nearby.

Support for the option as a reasonable
compromise, with improvements noted
despite not solving all issues.

Some worry about favouring cycling too
heavily, especially given the proximity of the
Frome Street bikeway.

Desire to minimise disruption from roadworks,
especially to outdoor dining and business
operations.

Requests for more information and planning
regarding speed limits, tram allowances, and
activation of public spaces.

Suggestions to include more creative features,
such as entertainment zones or raised
thresholds for minor intersections.

Mixed feelings about safety improvements for
cyclists, with some acknowledging progress
but still feeling unsafe.

Concerns over cost and financial sustainability
of the proposal, with questions about
potential debt or rate increases.




What do you like about this option? | What don't you like about this option?

Option D

Improved reversing safety and
parking angles are noted as helpful
features for drivers and cyclists
alike.

Described as a plan that “keeps
everyone happy”, some
respondents regard this as the best
compromise among all options.

Protected and separated bike lanes
are strongly supported as essential
for safety and encouraging more
cycling.

The design prioritises pedestrian
and cyclist safety, making Hutt
Street more welcoming and
accessible.

Wider footpaths will improve
walkability, especially for people
using prams, mobility aids, or
wheelchairs.

Increased greenery and shade are
valued for cooling the street and
creating a more comfortable
environment.

Green infrastructure like
raingardens is seen as a
sustainable and future-focused
improvement.

The option allows for more outdoor
dining and social activity, adding
vibrancy to the street.

It helps transform Hutt Street into a
community destination rather than
a traffic corridor.

Many believe it will attract more
foot traffic, increasing dwell time
and supporting local businesses.

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 35

Too much on-street parking is retained, with
some calling for greater reductions or full
pedestrianisation.

Parallel parking and lane reductions raise
concerns about congestion, safety, and
access for businesses.

There is strong support for prioritising
pedestrians through wider footpaths, slower
speeds, and improved crossings.

Protected cycling lanes are welcomed, but
some raise safety concerns about their
placement near parked cars or intersections.

Greening is valued, but many want more
trees, native species, and sustainable
landscaping features.

Respondents advocate for future tram
connections and better public transport to
reduce car reliance.

There are calls for clearer design
communication and minimal construction
disruption during upgrades.




What do you like about this option? | What don't you like about this option?

Option E

The proposal reflects best-practice
urban design with more people-
focused planning.

While some car parking is removed,
this is seen as a worthwhile trade-
off for broader public benefits.

Respondents feel that nearby off-
street parking remains sufficient for
access needs.

The design offers long-term social,
economic, and environmental
benefits for the precinct.

The option improves pedestrian
access and safety with wider
footpaths, raised thresholds, and
more space for walking and
outdoor dining.

A protected and separated cycle
path is strongly supported for
improving safety and encouraging
active transport.

Increased greenery and tree
retention are valued for enhancing
amenity, shade, and the village
character of Hutt Street.

Retaining 45-degree angle parking
is preferred for its safety,
accessibility, and compatibility with
cycling infrastructure.

This option is seen as the best-
balanced design, meeting the
needs of pedestrians, cyclists,
businesses, and drivers alike.

Engagement Summary Report | Preferred Concept Development Option | 36

The option reduces car parking, which some
fear may impact local businesses, increase
congestion, or shift pressure to nearby streets.

While pedestrian access is improved, it is seen
as less generous than other options and could
be more ambitious in reclaiming space.

The cycling infrastructure is generally
supported, though concerns were raised
about path curvature, separation from
pedestrians, and preference for a straight,
protected lane.

The design is seen as less green and vibrant
than other options like Option D, with calls for
more trees and usable outdoor space.

Some appreciate the overall balance of
features, but others feel it lacks creativity or
boldness and could go further to prioritise
people over cars.




7. Community Events Feedback

7.1 Community drop ins/pop-up
Approximately 92 people participated across two community drop-in sessions and one pop-up session

held as follows:

e Pop-up session — 10am-2pm Saturday 1 March 2025 at the Fringe Vibes event, corner of Hutt and
Halifax Street.

e Drop-in sessions — 10:30am-12:30pm Wednesday 5 March and 3pm to 5pm Thursday 6 March 2025,
Hutt Street Library.

Each session featured plans of the five concept development options and offered multiple ways for
participants to share their feedback, including written input via “sticky notes” that could be stuck onto the
concept designs. Most feedback, however, was provided through direct conversations with staff. Across

the three community events, participants expressed strong views on car parking, pedestrian and cyclist
safety, amenity upgrades, and the overall vibrancy and functionality of Hutt Street.

Figure 212: Fringe Vibes "pop-up" on Hutt Street

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 37




7.1.1 Feedback summary

Table 9 provides a summary of feedback received from these community events. As it is drawn from staff
notes, it is thematic in nature and is intended as a high-level summary rather than a verbatim transcript.

Table 9: Community events feedback summary

Theme #Approximate number of

people who raised this

Car parking
Support for retaining on street parking for convenience and 24
accessibility
Concern that the removal of on street parking spaces will negatively 19

impact businesses along Hutt Street

Would like car parks reserved for particular uses (such as residential, 2
key businesses etc)

Parallel parking spaces (such as those proposed in Option D) are too 2
difficult to access and block traffic

Would like a dedicated centralised carpark (such as a multi storey car 1
park) to make up for any parking spaces being removed

Support for shorter parking times to increase turnover 1
Car parking off Hutt Street is required 1
Pedestrians, bikes, safety

Support for pedestrianisation of Hutt Street 8

Concern that improved bike lanes would cause issues for pedestrians 5
(ie points where they cross over may cause incidents)

Concern that e-scooters and bikes on footpaths will impact 5
pedestrian safety

Concern that pollen and leaf litter generation from trees will impact 3
pedestrian safety

Support for designing footpaths to be more user-friendly 3
The footpath does not need to be widened 4
Concern about the impact of homeless people on visitor safety, 3

particularly at night

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 38




#Approximate number of

people who raised this

Concern about interaction between bike lane and other users 3

Concern about need for separated bike lane due to Frome bikeway/ 4
thinks cycling should be encouraged on Frome instead of Hutt Street

Support for separated bike lanes 2
Support for reducing speeds (30/40km/h) 3
Providing a protected bike path is important 2
Concern that irregular footpaths cause tripping hazards for users with 1

decreased mobility

The bike path is not required 1
Support prioritisation of cars over bikes 1
Amenities and design

Support for upgrades to amenities such as lighting, shade, seating, 7
water fountains and trees

Concern that recent greening initiatives have not lasted and since 2
been removed (such as rosemary planting)

Support for centralised car parks at either end 2
Support for creating a street atmosphere that is peopled and vibrant 2
Support for more outdoor dining 2
Concern that tree planters will interfere with movement of cars/car 1
doors

Mixed views on investment in public art 1
Support for raised planter beds as rocks interfere with irrigation 1
Support for a greater range of family friendly activities (other than 1

pubs and bars) encourage more families to visit
Support for the cycle paths to be painted green 1

No change is needed to Hutt Street 1

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 39




Other

Removing on street parking will lead to more congestion within side streets which will impact 3
residents.

Would like operating times for businesses to be extended 1
Concern that the project might lose funding 1
Would like to see more small businesses brought to the area 1

During the various community events undertaken, car parking was the most frequently raised theme,
with strong support for retaining on-street parking and concerns about the impact of its removal on
local businesses. Feedback on pedestrian and cyclist safety was mixed, some supported
pedestrianisation and protected bike lanes, while others raised concerns about shared space, footpath
safety, and bike lane placement. Many supported upgrades to street amenities and a more vibrant,
family-friendly environment. There were also concerns about increased congestion on side streets and
interest in attracting more small businesses to the area.

7.2 Feedback on Options

In addition to the feedback summarised above, attendees provided feedback directly on the five concept
development options. These are summarised in Table 10.

Table 10: Feedback on options — Community events

Concept
) Summary of comments
option
Option A e Support for free 60-degree parking, with some calling for more free parking on Hutt
Street.

e Mixed views on cycling and pedestrian experience:

- Some feel bikes and pedestrians already have enough space or benefit from
greening.

— Others express serious safety concerns for cyclists, particularly with angle
parking and risk from reversing cars.

— Concerns about comfort and appeal for pedestrians and cyclists, with one person
saying they would avoid the area due to the design.

e Appreciation for current street character, including comments like “like it like it is”
and mention of it being a “multi-cultural street”.

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 40




Concept
option

Option B

Option C

Option D

Option E

Summary of comments

e Concerns about cost, with one comment labelling the option a “waste of money”.

e Worry about reduced parking, particularly its potential negative impact on
businesses.

e Concern that the location of the bike lane may lead some cyclists and scooters to
use footpaths, with a preference for them to stay on the road.

e Support for relocating parking to nearby streets to reduce pressure on Hutt Street.
e Suggestions for public art, including sculptures and lighting features.

e Recommendation to enhance visibility of the cycle path, such as painting it green.

e Support for reduced car dependency, with many praising Option D as a bold step
towards a more people-focused street.

e Positive feedback on protected cycleways, highlighting improved safety and
increased likelihood of visiting local businesses.

e Suggestions for urban design improvements, including:
— Street greening and trees to address urban heat.
— Human-scale planning and treating Hutt Street as more than a traffic corridor.
- Possible green-walled car park offsite to reduce visual impact.

e Mixed views on footpath width, with some supportive of better pedestrian areas
and others questioning the need for widening.

e Concerns from some about traffic impacts, including congestion, limited through
traffic, and negative effects on local businesses.

e Calls for specific traffic and parking changes, such as:
— Reduced speed limits on side streets like McLaren Street.
- No right-turn out of McLaren Street.

- Provision for elderly or mobility-impaired parking with safe access across bike
paths.

e Desire for full pedestrianisation from some commenters.

e Some strong objection due to reduction in parking.

e Recognition of Hutt Street as an important bike route, especially for recreational
cyclists.

e Support for the separated cycleway, noting it improves access and encourages
visits to local businesses and venues.

e Question raised about traffic flow, specifically whether McLaren Street is changing
to one-way.

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 41




7.3 Business Forum

Approximately 36 local businesses attended the dedicated business forum held at the General Havelock
Hotel between 5-7pm on Wednesday 5 March 2025.

This forum provided local businesses the opportunity to learn about the five concept development options
for Hutt Street, covering key elements such as parking, access, safety, public space, and street activation,
as well as how to participate in the engagement process. The session featured a slide presentation and
was supported by senior project management and City of Adelaide staff. It was facilitated by an
experienced URPS facilitator and included a Q&A session to enable questions to be asked, clarification
sought about the concept development options and feedback provided.

Feedback from the business forum highlighted strong support for retaining car parking due to its perceived
importance to business viability and concerns about the economic impact of parking loss, mixed views on
active transport and safety, calls for thoughtful, future-focused planning and a range of detailed questions
about design, implementation, and potential disruption during construction. This feedback is summarised
below.

e Support for retaining car parking
Parking was the most prominent concern, with many participants highlighting its vital role in
supporting business viability. Key points raised included:

- A strong belief that if customers cannot find parking, they will stop visiting Hutt Street.

- Concerns that removing parking could significantly impact local businesses, with one participant
estimating it could “destroy 37% of the local industry” (this was not further qualified).

- Option D was seen by some as the most invasive and least favourable design.
- Calls were made for a revitalised Hutt Street that maintains existing parking provision.

- A health-related business raised specific concerns about the impact on accessibility for frail or
seriously ill clients.

- Some discussion focused on existing car parking pressures, with approximately “30%" of spaces
reportedly used by tradespeople and workers relating to ongoing development in this part of the
city.

- Suggestions were made to offset any loss of parking on Hutt Street by providing replacement

spaces in nearby locations.

e Concerns about businesses
Several business owners linked the potential removal of parking with a loss of trade and increased
economic pressure. Key concerns included:

— One business reported that 80% of its customers travel from the Hills and expressed concern that
reduced parking would make it harder to attract and retain these customers.

- Another business shared that 63% of its clients come from outside the city and feared that losing
parking would negatively affect both accessibility and overall sales.

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 42




- A further business explained that customers already struggle to find parking, and staff often have to
run out to serve double-parked customers to avoid losing business.

- Request for a “redlistic” economic impact study on street upgrades/loss of carparking and impacts
on business.

o Safety and active transport concerns
There was a mix of support for and concern about active transport infrastructure, particularly in relation
to safety. Key concerns and comments included:

- Cycling on Hutt Street was described by one participant as extremely dangerous.

- Concerns were raised about the safety of bikes using footpaths and the need for better separation
between pedestrians and cyclists.

- One participant expressed support for reducing the speed limit on Hutt Street to 40km/h.
- A call was made for improved lighting along Hutt Street to enhance nighttime safety.

- A question was raised about whether Council has invested in traffic studies to support planning
decisions.

- One participant disagreed that there are any cycling safety issues on Hutt Street, a view that
received strong audience support, including clapping.

- Difficulty crossing Hutt Street as a pedestrian was highlighted, with particular concern about the
lack of pedestrian refuges, especially for older residents.

e Future outlook and infrastructure needs
Participants acknowledged the need for upgrades but called for thoughtful, future-focused planning.
Key comments included:

- A desire for investment in Hutt Street, noting it has been 30 years since the last upgrade.

- A call for a broader cultural shift away from private vehicle use, with greater emphasis on active
and public transport.

- Suggestions to improve public transport access to Hutt Street as an alternative to reliance on car

parking.

o Questions
During the business forum, participants asked a range of questions reflecting their interest in the
design, implementation, and potential impacts of the Hutt Street upgrade. These questions included:

- How many car parks currently exist on Hutt Street, and does Option A remove any?
- How many of the proposed car parks are allocated for electric vehicles?

- What type of vegetation is being proposed, and will it be irrigated?

— Are the bike lanes in Option E separated from pedestrians?

- Is Option B compliant with AustRoads standards, especially in relation to buses?

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 43




- Has Council conducted any modelling on the economic impact of removing car parking?
— Can Council provide a map distinguishing essential upgrades from cosmetic improvements?

- Will Council use technology, such as in-ground sensors or signage, to help visitors find available
parking?

- If parking is removed from Hutt Street, will it be reinstated elsewhere nearby?
- How would designated "slow wheeling zones" be enforced?

- How long will construction take, and will Hutt Street be completely closed?

- When is construction expected to commence?

- How will construction be managed to minimise disruption for businesses?

- Will the chosen option affect Council rates?

- Where is the funding for the project coming from?

- How will fees for parklet and outdoor dining licences be determined and applied fairly?

Feedback from the business forum reflected strong concern about the potential loss of car parking on Hutt
Street, with many participants emphasising its importance for business accessibility and viability.
Business owners expressed fears that removing parking would reduce customer visits and lead to
economic hardship, particularly for those whose clientele travel from outside the city.

While there was some support for active transport and public realm improvements, concerns were raised
about pedestrian and cyclist safety, accessibility, and the practicality of certain concept development
options. Participants also called for greater investment in public transport, clearer communication about
the project’s scope and timeline, and a balanced approach that considers both business needs and long-
term urban improvement.

There were a number of vocal participants at the forum who shared their views, which were recorded and
reflected in this summary; however, it is noted that some participants remained quiet, and their
perspectives were not shared at the forum. All participants were encouraged to complete the online
survey to ensure their views were captured. It is noted that figures/data provided by participants
regarding the impact of loss of car parking have not been verified.

7.3.1 Additional information

In response to the significant number of questions raised during the business forum regarding access and
safety, the City of Adelaide developed an Access and Safety document. This was shared with businesses
via email following the session and is provided in Appendix B.

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 44




7.4 Stakeholder Workshops

Two invite-only key stakeholder workshops were held at the Hutt Street library conference room as
follows:

e 10am-12pm Wednesday 19 March.
e 2-4pm Thursday 20 March.

A total of eight key stakeholder representatives, out of an approximate 40 invitees, attended the two
sessions. Councillor Carmel Noon was also present at the first session.

Participants represented the following organisations:

Workshop one
o RAA
e SA Active Living Coalition

e Small Business Commission South Australia

Workshop two

e Property Council of South Australia

e South-East Corner Residents’ Association (SECRA)
e Green Adelaide

e Transport Action Network

e Bike Adelaide

Each session included detailed maps of the five concept development options, with the project manager
and landscape architect guiding participants through the features and implications of each. The
discussions were facilitated by a URPS engagement specialist to ensure a focused and inclusive
conversation.

7.4.1 Feedback summary - stakeholder workshops

Across both stakeholder workshops, participants discussed the trade-offs between car parking, safety,
accessibility, and the long-term vision for Hutt Street.

In the first workshop, stakeholders generally viewed Option E as the best balance, providing
improvements to safety and accessibility while retaining a greater number of car parks. There was also
recognition that Options A or B would result in the least disruption for businesses, although Option D was
acknowledged for its potential to enhance outdoor dining, walkability, and overall street vibrancy. The
group broadly agreed that Option E was the most politically and practically achievable, whereas Option D
offers the strongest long-term community benefit.

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 45




In the second workshop, involving local residents’ association representatives, and planning-focused
stakeholders, there was strong support for Option D. It was seen as offering the greatest opportunity to
transform Hutt Street into a safer, more vibrant and pedestrian-friendly destination. However, some
participants noted that parts of the community were divided, some favouring Option B for its convenience
and parking retention, while others preferred Option D for its future-focused improvements to safety and
urban quality. The benefits of improved cycling and pedestrian infrastructure were strongly emphasised,
particularly in relation to encouraging local visitation and supporting retail activity.

Concerns were raised in both workshops around reduced parking availability for businesses and their
customers, the impact of reducing traffic to one lane, and the importance of connecting Hutt Street with
the wider active transport network. There was also a clear desire for further analysis, such as intercept
surveys, to better understand how people travel to the area and how changes might affect them.
Suggestions for detailed design included safer pedestrian crossings and better bike and scooter parking.

Engagement Summary Report | Community Events Feedback | 46




8. Submissions

During the engagement period, the City of Adelaide received 46 submissions from local businesses,
residents, stakeholders and wider community. These can be read in full in Appendix D and the most
common themes summarised in Table 11 with some example quotes extracted from the submissions. The
most common themes raised included concern around car parking removal, mixed views on bike lanes and
appetite for pedestrian and public space improvements.

Data assumptions

All written feedback provided to the City of Adelaide during the engagement period has been treated as
formal submissions for the purposes of this report. This includes feedback emails, relevant queries
regarding the design, and formal written submissions received from members of the local community,
businesses, and the broader public.

Where individuals provided multiple pieces of feedback, such as an email comment and a separate
submission, these have been consolidated into a single submission to ensure clarity and avoid duplication
(refer to Appendix D for further detail). In a small number of cases, the same individual contributed in
different capacities (e.g. as a resident and as a representative of an organisation); these instances were
noted and considered accordingly.

Late submissions

Late written submissions were accepted until 5pm, Friday 4 April 2025. There were four late submissions
received (of the total 46 submissions). These submissions have been included in the report and summaries
and are specifically marked as late in the Appendices. No submissions were accepted after this deadline.

Table 11: Summary of top themes - Submission

Car parking e ‘If customers can’t find parking, they won't come to Hutt Street.’
Widespread concern that e ‘Please don't reduce parking — it will destroy 37% of our trade.’

reducing car parking will e ‘Short-term parks near IGA and pharmacies are essential.’

harm business viability _ _ _ o _
e ‘Losing parking means losing foot traffic —it's that simple.’

and accessibility,
especially for the elderly e ‘We already have issues with tradespeople using customer parking
and people with limited bays.’

mobility. Some suggested

_ e Parking is critical for elderly patients accessing our medical services.’
alternatives to any

carparking reduction as a e ‘Werely on quick stop-ins — this change could drive customers

good compromise. away.

‘Has Council assessed the economic impact of parking removal?’

Engagement Summary Report | Submissions | 47




Bike lanes

Mixed views on separated
bike lanes. Support for
safer infrastructure, but

some argue existing routes

(e.g. Frome Street) are
sufficient.

Pedestrian and public
space improvements
Support for wider
footpaths, greening,
lighting, and community-
focused design. Calls for
enhanced safety,
accessibility and
aesthetics.

Traffic and road design
Concerns about lane
narrowing, bus safety,

congestion, and adherence

to Australian road
standards. Calls for more
transparency and
modelling.

‘Weekday and night-time trade will drop if parking is harder.’
‘Parking changes could halve our turnover.’
‘Have you modelled what happens to retail if access drops?’

‘We're not against improvements — just don’t cut off our customers.’

‘A protected bike lane would make Hutt Street safer and more
accessible.

‘The bike path isn’t necessary — Frome Street already serves this
purpose.’

‘Current bike lanes are dangerous due to reversing cars.’

‘I've stopped cycling on Hutt Street because I've had too many near
misses.’

‘Separated bike lanes will attract more customers who ride.’

‘The bike lane should be on the median or moved to another route
entirely.’

‘We need more fairy lights, trees, and better lighting at night.’
‘Footpaths should be wide enough for prams and wheelchairs.’
‘Create more places for people to gather and relax.’

‘Let’s create more gathering places — not just car space.’

‘Shaded, well-lit footpaths will help everyone feel safer.’

‘Footpath widths need to accommodate wheelchairs and prams.’

‘Bus operations will be compromised with reduced lane widths.’
‘No traffic modelling provided — we need clear data.’

‘Emergency vehicles will struggle to pass in single-lane sections.’
‘We need turn lanes that don't clog traffic.’

‘Single lanes during peak hours will create a bottleneck.’

‘Lane widths must comply with national road standards for buses.’

Engagement Summary Report | Submissions | 48




Design process and
concept development
options

Desire for a hybrid option.
Views divided between
minimal change and
ambitious upgrades.
Frustration with
engagement and survey
process.

Safety

Feedback highlighted road
safety risks, personal
safety concerns, and
lighting issues —
particularly at night and for
vulnerable users.

Heritage and identity
Desire to protect Hutt
Street’'s character and
identity through design,
historic overlays, and
storytelling features.

Process transparency and
engagement

Frustration with limited
engagement, survey
validity, and lack of design
responsiveness. Support
for reinstating a
stakeholder roundtable.

‘Option A is least disruptive — others are too extreme.’

‘None of the designs reflect what the community actually wants.’
‘Why wasn'’t a hybrid option considered?’

‘The process didn't genuinely consider trader feedback.’

‘We were given options, but none reflected what we actually
wanted.’

‘A blend of options would be more practical than choosing one.’

‘Footpath lighting is too dim for safe walking after dark.’

‘Bus stops without indents pose a hazard during peak times.’
‘Some parts of Hutt Street feel unsafe, especially at night.’
‘The street needs better lighting for people walking home.’
‘Bus stop locations need to be reviewed for safety.’

‘Poor sight lines at crossings make it dangerous for pedestrians.’

‘We're losing the heritage charm of the street.’

‘Design should reflect the area’s multicultural history.’
‘Restore shopfronts and verandahs — not just footpaths.’
‘Keep the character of Hutt Street - don’t over-modernise it.’
‘Restore historic shopfronts to show pride in our heritage.’
‘Let’s celebrate what makes Hutt Street unique, not generic.’

‘Opportunities exist to restore Hutt Street’s historic character rather
than redo all the public realm.’

‘| don’t feel my feedback has been taken seriously.’

‘The online survey wasn't representative of all views.’

‘Bring back the Hutt Street roundtable for proper engagement.’
‘The survey didn't allow us to explain our full views.’

‘We need more regular updates and direct engagement.’

‘Past roundtables worked - bring them back.’

Engagement Summary Report | Submissions | 49




Other e ‘Support the Hutt Street Centre with wraparound services.’
Includes suggestions on

homelessness support,
event activation, e ‘Include cultural programming and public art to liven the area.’

e ‘Extend the tram to make Hutt Street better connected.’

sustainability, and e ‘Tram access would make a huge difference for connectivity.’

tram/public transport o -
: e ‘We need public toilets and better amenities for events.
improvements.

e ‘Don't ignore social services in this plan - homelessness matters too.’

A total of 32 submissions indicated a clear preference or explicitly supported one or more concept
development options. These preferences are summarised in the table below. Where respondents
expressed equal support for multiple options, a preference has been attributed to each of the nominated
options (refer Table 12).

It is important to note that this table does not include responses where a preference was implied but not
clearly stated, for example, where a submission expressed concerns about issues such as the loss of car
parking without directly identifying a preferred option. In these cases, no assumptions were made (e.g. not
attributing implied support for Option A unless it was explicitly mentioned). Submissions that expressed
conditional support, such as “I support Option D if car parking is retained”, have also been excluded from
the count.

Table 12: Preferences indicated - Submissions

Expressed clear preference for Option A 7
Expressed clear preference for Option B 4
Expressed clear preference for Option C 0
Expressed clear preference for Option D 15
Expressed clear preference for Option E 6

Engagement Summary Report | Submissions | 50




Appendices

Appendix A — Letterbox Drop Catchment Area
Appendix B — Collateral
Appendix C — Weighted average methodology

Appendix D - Submissions

Engagement Summary Report | Appendices | 51




Appendix A — Letterbox Drop Catchment Area

L~ - ’
s ""':"’ Tl
Bartels'Rd

sy
FEm: s LA

Wakefield 'St

B2 i
= A

hrl m-l‘

AngasiSt

gzl"‘ R

- 'ﬂllu'. [
X ‘ ;ll’ﬂ-
M\.wr q"laq
"m q’l W] n\ 'Ml‘

McLaten ﬁ

15 Kauayind

S

n alifa xil

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix A

— Letterbox Drop Catchment Area | 52



Appendix B - Collateral

e Fact sheet

e Our Adelaide Engagement Pack
e Engagement flyer

e On-street poster

e Additional information - Access and Safety document

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix B — Collateral | 53




February 2025

Hutt Street

Main Street
Revitalisation

Concept Development Consultation

Help Shape the future of Hutt Street

We're secking community feedback on five concept development options for Hutt Street, between South Terrace and
Carrington Street — the area covered by the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project.

Your input will help us understand what you want to see for the future of Hutt Street and inform the next stage of the

project design.

We are asking community for feedback on the five options for the revitalisation of Hutt Street which are based on carly

conecpts developed as part of a Car Parking Review undertaken in November 2024,

Why Is Hutt Street belng revitalised?

Hurt Street is one of Adelaide’s main streets and is known for its village-like cluster of cafes and restaurants, which
operate alongside day-to-day essential community services. There has been no major upgrade in the last 30 years,

In 2022 we completed Master Planning for Hutt Street which identified potential opportunities to enhance Hute
Street. These included upgrading the public realm, creating more space for public actvities and improving access.

As part of the revitalisation project, some strectscape asscts may also be replaced including stormwater infrastructure,
road pavement, public lighting, footpath paving and street furniture. ‘This will be further reviewed as the design is
progressed.

Timeline

The figure below outines the project tmeline, highlighting the current consultation phase.

November 2024 to April 2025 .
S Construction
Hutt Street Fevitalisation . ey —
= Site Investigacions Concept D!Slgll LI
November 2022 - January 2024 design progressed using ‘Construction for
Footpath Extension Trial r feedbark the Hutt Street
. d all assessment Pevitalisztion
information [Project commences

Dietailed Diesign
March - April 2022 February to March 2025 Detaided Dﬁ.gq devel —Fnd
- - pdates
Huer Sereer Master Plan Hutx Sereer Concept with (=
- ED COOTMITILNALY
Consultztion April to Movember 2024 Develey o
Consultation
Eluce Sereex Entry Statement
- Deliwery and Constraction

C IT\‘.-’ 0OF Tell us what you think.

KDELAIDE

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix B — Collateral | 54




Which sectlon of Hutt Street will be upgraded as part of the revitallsatlon?
Hutt Street will be upgraded between South Terrace and Carrington Street.

F
W

PRLETES
LRECERLLY
13361
SHAANIH

v =
=R
L

PELET

You can view the five concept options and read our Frequently Asked Questions on the
Our Adelaide page. Follow the QR code provided or go to: ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/hutt-street

How do I provide my feedback?

Take our survey
Scan the QR Code to view the five concept options and
take our online survey.

Visit us at our pop-up sesslon - Fringe
Vibes on Hutt Street

When:  10.00am — 2.00pm,
Saturday 1 March 2025

Where: Fringe Vibes on Hutt Street Main Street, south-
eastern corner of Hutt and Halifax Street
Joln us at a drop-In sesslon

When: 10.30am - 12.30pm,
Wednesday 5 March or

3.00pm - 5.00pm,
Thursday 6 March 2025,

Where: Hutt Street Library, 235 Hutt Strect.

Online

Visit our dedicared webpage ro find out more
https:/ fouradelaide.sa.gov.an/hutt-street

Emall

Email your feedback wo
feedback@huttstreetupgrade.com.an
by 5pm, Friday 28 March 2025,

Call

Speak with a project team member on
1300 627 676 and provide your feedback
by 5pm, Friday 28 March 2025,

Customer Centre

Return a copy of the completed Feedback Form by
dropping it in to the Customer Care Centre at
25 Piric Strect.

Written Submisslons

All written submissions must be received by 5.00pm on
Friday 28 March 2025 and should be addressed to:

Community Consultation
Hutt Street Revitalisation Project
GPO Box 2252, Adelaide SA 3001

How will my feedback be used?

We are committed to working with stakeholders and the
community on the future of Hutt Street.

Your feedback on the concept development options will
be taken into consideration and form a key input into
Council's decision making,

Where possible, feedback from stakeholders and the
community will be incorporated into the concept design
alongside the need to balance technical and budget

considerations.

Consultation closes at 5pm Friday 28 March 2025,

Tell us what you think.

TY OF
¢! 0 ( ouradelaide sa govan )

ADELAIDE

V Rubiee A

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix B — Collateral | 55




February 2025

Hutt Street

Main Street
Revitalisation

Concept Development Consultation

Consultation closes 5:00pm, Friday, 28 March 2025.

Vd9|aide ADELAIDE (08) 8203 7203

ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

o . Customer Care
III‘ . CITY OF 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide
[ ] [ ]
[ ]
P



Hutt Street

OQur _
Vdelaide

Help Shape the future of Hutt Street

We’re seeking community feedback on five concept development options for Hutt Street, between South
Terrace and Carrington Street — the area covered by the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project.

Your input will help us understand what you want to see for the future of Hutt Street and inform the next
stage of the project design.

What is the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project?

The Hutt Street Revitalisation Project is an exciting City of Adelaide Street upgrade initiative involving
multiple stages from design to construction.

Hutt Street Revitalisation forms part of the City of Adelaide’s Main Streets Revitalisation Program. As the
hub of the south-east precinct, Hutt Street provides a village-like cluster of cafes and restaurants, alongside
day-to-day essentials and community services.

The overall objective of the revitalisation of Hutt Street is to preserve and celebrate Hutt Street’s leafy green
streetscape and historic village charm whilst providing a well-planned street that supports local businesses,
increases opportunities for social interaction and is welcoming and accessible to community and visitors alike.

What have we done with community and how did we get here?

Since 2021, we’ve been working with the community to shape the future of Hutt Street. Together, we’ve
explored what we want to see for this iconic street.

Our work has included site investigations, technical reviews and stakeholder engagement, with the feedback
gathered informing the development of concept designs and design principles.

In August 2024, the Council reviewed an early concept design for revitalising Hutt Street. This concept

was shaped by community feedback gathered during master planning in March/April 2022. Council sought
review of the concept plans for Hutt Street Revitalisation Project with a particular focus on the provision of
car parking spaces. In response, five different concept options have been developed.

In late November 2024, the City of Adelaide was successful in securing a $7.32m grant funding
contribution for the revitalisation of Hutt Street under the Australian Government’s Thriving Suburbs
Program. This program aims to support projects that enhance liveability, strengthen social cohesion, and
support local amenity in urban and rural communities.

Now we are inviting you to share your thoughts on the five proposed options to help guide the next phase
of the Hutt Street Revitalisation. Your feedback will play a key role in shaping the final decision.

CITY OF

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203 ..'
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au
‘F.Q | ADELAIDE

Page 94




OQur _
Vdelaide

Timeline

The figure below outlines the project timeline, highlighting the current consultation phase.

November 2024 to April 2025

Hute S Revitalisati Construction
utt Street Revitalisation .
- Site Investigations Concept Design Delivery )
November 2022 - January 2024 design progressed using Construction for
Footpath Extension Trial community feedback the H‘itt Street
and technical assessment Revitalisation
information project commences
Detailed Design
March - April 2022 February to March2025 Detailed Design developed
Hutt Street Master Plan Hutt Street Concept with progressive updates
i Development to community
- Consultation April to November 2024 C .
onsultation
Hutt Street Entry Statement

- Delivery and Construction

Frequently Asked Questions
Why is Hutt Street being revitalised?

Hutt Street is one of Adelaide’s main streets and is known for its village-like cluster of cafés and restaurants,
which operate alongside day-to-day essential community services. There has been no major upgrade in the
last 30 years.

In 2022 we completed Master Planning for Hutt Street which identified potential opportunities to enhance
Hutt Street. These included upgrading the public realm, creating more space for public activities and
improving access.

As part of the revitalisation project, some streetscape assets may also be replaced including stormwater
infrastructure, road pavement, public lighting, footpath paving and street furniture. This will be further
reviewed as the design is progressed.

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE 5

Page 95



OQur _
Vdelaide

Which section of Hutt Street will be upgraded as part of the revitalisation?

Hutt Street will be upgraded between South Terrace and Carrington Street.

KEY PLAN . ] (-
p
] = T £ = |
4 Sw 0 “w ©nz % wa nwE 5]
TR 98 uf F | 25 4
82h 25 nE 3 £3 i iy n3 LE-
ooz nx T30 I Oz A o 03 Om
| ] | ]

Entry Statement Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT

HUTT ROAD STREET

What engagement has taken place so far?

We have been holding conversations with the community and undertaking research to better understand
the community’s views on the priorities, needs and expectations for Hutt Street over recent years.

In 2021, the Lord Mayor held roundtable discussions as part of our main streets consultation that identified
key themes to guide the planning for Hutt Street. These themes included improved greening, more public
space, improved lighting, increased street art, bike facilities and opportunities for activation.

Further engagement on main street master planning allowed us to develop a draft vision, and a set of design
principles and objectives for Hutt Street. These represented the community’s priorities for the street.

Read more: Hutt Street Master Plan - December 2021

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

Page 96



OQur _
Vdelaide

What are the design principles for Hutt Street Revitalisation?

The design principles that underpin the Hutt Street Revitalisation were developed through community
consultation undertaken in 2021 to identify community priorities. These principles have been used to help
develop the concept development options for Hutt Street.

The design principles are:

Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and comfortable, that balances the needs
of businesses, residents and visitors using all modes of transport and contributes to our wellbeing
and sustainability goals.

Establish a business and retail identity with a diverse offering to increase its popularity as a
destination for locals and visitors.

@p Celebrate and reinforce the existing leafy green streetscape and historic village charm.

Rationalise the reallocation of public space from vehicle use (parking and traffic lanes), to achieve
a more equitable allocation of public space and a good balance between transport modes, trees/
landscaping, outdoor dining opportunities, to support businesses and enhance social interactions,
and provide safer movement.

({\C%b Create a new public ‘heart’ as the epicentre and provide unique experiences ensuring a robust local
community.

Public art opportunities, activation and improved amenity to support businesses and enhance
O . . . o e . . .
2 the visitor experience, driving future investment and economic uplift.

What is being consulted on now?

We are asking community for feedback on the five options for the revitalisation of Hutt Street which are
based on early concepts developed as part of a Car Parking Review undertaken in November 2024.

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

Page 97



OQur _
Vdelaide

How can | view the concept development options for Hutt Street?

The five concept development options are provided at the end of this pack.

What does concept development involve?

Concept development involves preliminary explorations to define and verify a project scope. The concept
development phase is informed by a range of information gathering activities including stakeholder
engagement and consultation to identify community priorities which are distilled into a project vision and
design principles. Site investigations and technical data collection around existing conditions further identify
design constraints and opportunities which shape the options available for the project. During this phase,
optioneering is undertaken to assess design option outcomes against cost and risk to determine the most
suitable design option to realise through the next phases of a formal concept design and then detailed design
for construction. Design options prepared during the concept development phase are high level, focusing
upon key structural components and their feasibility to meet the project aims and desired outcomes.

Has the City of Adelaide received any grant funding to assist with the
Hutt Street revitalisation?

In late November 2024, we were successful in securing a $7.32m grant funding contribution for the
revitalisation of Hutt Street under the Australian Government’s Thriving Suburbs Program.

The Thriving Suburbs Program aims to support projects that enhance liveability, strengthen social
cohesion, and support local amenity in urban and rural communities. We will continue to provide updates
to the Australian Government as the project progresses and consultation is completed.

Will car parking spaces on Hutt Street be reduced as part of the upgrade?

Each design balances different community priorities, including car parking, overall streetscape
improvements and cycling access. Some designs keep most or all car parking, while others make changes
that may reduce the number of spaces.

No decisions have been made yet. Your feedback will help Council understand community preferences and

guide the final design.

What is the estimated number of on-street car parks in each option?

There are currently 132 on-street car parks in Hutt Street, between South Terrace and Carrington Street.

Option A 132 Option D 72
Option B 112 Option E 76
Option C 79
Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203 o*
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au A 2 ::)TEY L:(A)\ :: DE }

Page 98



OQur _
Vdelaide

Could the estimated car parking spaces change?

Yes, the car parking numbers provided for options B to E are indicative and based on a very early concept
development level of design detail. We expect there could be some minor changes in the number of car
parks as we progress the design with consideration of factors such as distances to traffic signals, vegetation
protection requirements and renewal of infrastructure.

We will keep the community informed as we progress the design and are able to provide final information.

What will happen to accessible parking?

There will be no reduction in the number of accessible car parks as part of the project. Provision of
accessible parking is an important aspect of the design, and we remain committed to maintaining the
number of available accessible car parks or even increasing where possible and practicable.

Will on-street car parking on Hutt Street remain angle parking?

he future arrangement for on-street car parking will be dependent on which option is progressed to
detailed design. Currently, Hutt Street provides 60-degree angle parking. Motorists leaving 60-degree
angle parks are more likely to impact multiple lanes of road traffic, including unprotected cycle lanes,
with heavily restricted sightlines and visibility. Sharper angle car parking is also harder to enter.

Of the five streetscapes offered, Option C and E include a change from 60-degree angle parking to 45-
degree angle parking which provides improved road safety with better sightlines to oncoming traffic
when reversing out of car parks and limiting reversing into the adjacent lane only.

Option D provides parallel parking which reduces overall parking numbers but offers clear sightlines
along the road reducing the risk of collision for the motorist and other road users, including crossing

pedestrians.
7//(;sz e —— ) 'C;ﬂ _ _
y, 4 =T =T Ve el I
7. / / i
/2 &
60 degree angle parking 45 degree angle parking
Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203 o*
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au : ° C | TY O F
o ADELAIDE ‘

Page 99



OQur _
Vdelaide

Will any trees be removed on Hutt Street as part of the revitalisation?

No tree removals are planned as part of the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project. All of the Hutt Street
concept development options include varying measures to support ongoing tree management and health.

Some of the options include a ‘protected cycle path’? What is this?

A protected cycle path is a dedicated cycle lane that separates cyclists and people wheeling from cars and
pedestrians, making riding safer and more comfortable.

These paths usually have a physical barrier—such as kerbs, bollards, or garden beds—between cyclists and
vehicle traffic. This helps prevent accidents and encourages more people to ride, including families and less
experienced cyclists.

Protected cycle paths are designed to improve safety, reduce traffic stress, and make streets more enjoyable
for everyone.

Some of the options mention ‘activity zones’. What are these?

An activity zone provides improved pedestrian access. They increase the available space for community
events, gatherings and outdoor dining. They also provide space for us to include greening — with shrubs,
grasses and trees. To achieve an increase in activity zones, public space is reallocated from the road to the

footpath.

What other projects are happening in the precinct?

The City of Adelaide is undertaking a separate project to upgrade the intersection of Hutt Road/Street
and South Terrace. This initiative aims to mitigate stormwater flooding risks and enhance traffic control.
The project involves repositioning and raising the kerb line and level at the northeastern corner of the
intersection, renewing underground drainage infrastructure, and lowering and reshaping the road levels to
reduce the risk of stormwater pooling.

On-site work is set to commence in February 2025 and continue until June 2025, weather permitting.
More information and project updates are available here.

CITY OF

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203 ..'
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au
‘F.Q | ADELAIDE .

Page 100




OQur _
Vdelaide

How do | provide my feedback?

Take our survey

Scan the QR Code to view the five concept options
and take our online survey.

Visit us at our pop-up session - Fringe
Vibes on Hutt Street

When: 10.00am - 2.00pm,
Saturday 1 March 2025

Where: Fringe Vibes on Hutt Street Main Street,
south-eastern corner of Hutt and Halifax Street

Join us at a drop-in session

When: 10.30am - 12.30pm,
Wednesday 5 March or

3.00pm - 5.00pm,
Thursday 6 March 2025.

Where: Hutt Street Library, 235 Hutt Street

Online

Visit our dedicated webpage to find out more
https://ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/hutt-street

Email your feedback to
feedback@huttstreetupgrade.com.au
by Spm, Friday 28 March 2025.

Call

Speak with a project team member on
1300 627 676 and provide your feedback
by Spm, Friday 28 March 2025.

Customer Centre

Return a copy of the completed Feedback Form by
dropping it in to the Customer Care Centre at
25 Pirie Street.

Written Submissions

All written submissions must be received by
5.00pm on Friday 28 March 2025 and should be
addressed to:

Community Consultation
Hutt Street Revitalisation Project
GPO Box 2252, Adelaide SA 5001

How will my feedback be used?

We are committed to working with stakeholders
and the community on the future of Hutt Street.

Your feedback on the concept development
options will be taken into consideration and form a
key input into Council’s decision making.

Where possible, feedback from stakeholders and
the community will be incorporated into the
concept design alongside the need to balance
technical and budget considerations.

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

A

Page 101



OQur _
Vdelaide

What happens next?

Following the close of consultation we will prepare an engagement report. This will be presented to Council
for consideration in May 2025.

We will share what we heard during the consultation with the community and use the feedback to refine
early option designs for Council’s review.

In the meantime, we will continue onsite technical investigations and gather important information to
support the next stage of design development.

CITY OF

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203 ..'
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au
‘F.Q | ADELAIDE 5

Page 102




Hutt Street

OQur _
Vdelaide

X

m

<

ne)
o >

z
N

Concept Development Options
Option A - Hutt Street

NOLDNINYVD
a13EINVM

-
m
o
x
b3
n
m

HLNOS
13341S
S3Tin
13331S
XV4ITvH
133418
13341S
SVYONV
13341S
133418
SYIANIA
13341S
Ind

Entry Statement

Hutt Street Revitalisation
STREET

)
- = T 5 Y R ) 1 e . NN ‘ i

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

¥ e

Refer to Detail Plan below

777777777777777777777777777

Development Option Plan
Not to Scale

Bus stops | .. Refreshed |. . Treecut-outsto ) g [ On-road cycle lane ]
retained footpath asphalt trimmed to [~

available space

The features of this concept design are:

€0T abed

« Retains the existing 60-degree angle parking layout, maximising the provision of
parking but not complying with the current Australian Standards.

» Provides high parking convenience, with many spaces located directly in front of
destinations.

* No changes to footpath width, cycle lane, or parking approach.

» Targeted footpath maintenance of existing footpath to enhance the pedestrian
experience.

« Minimal enhancement to street tree surrounds, due to limited space.

» Retains approximately 132 on-street parking bays.

mr—'"*“r—Aﬁr—**ﬂl

1 I I
1
1 |
\--------- I-- L& -------------------------------,
Detail Plan Exisngkerbline |0 e 0 deges Sl &aF |
retained parking
Not to Scale
Legend
% Existing trees — — — Existing kerb Footpath and activity zone [ Bus stop and shelter
e _ ___ Existing awnings and Roadway [ Tree surround
* New trees verandahs _—

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE |,



belijuli
Image


Hutt Street

OQur _
Vdelaide

KEY PLAN

@

Concept Development Options
Option B - Hutt Street

avoy
ANOWSO
N31D
FDVHHIL
HLNOS
133418
S3TIn
133y1s
XV4ITvH
133418
NOLDNIMYVD
133418
SVDNVY
13341s
REIEEML/
133418
SYIANIM4

13341S
Idd

Entry Statement Hutt Street Revitalisation

HUTT ROAD STREET

oI | A

l*& o 3 “b—

Refer to Detail Plan below

-------------------’

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale
............. Bus stops .| Road resurfacingand | [ Full footpath In-road tree surrounds On-road cycle lane with
retained new linemarking replacement ) iU enhanced for long term »w1  a linemarked buffer
tree health zone

N EEN EEN EEN BN BN BN . --------~

1 The features of this concept design are:
| .
f
[

0T abed

Maintains 60-degree angle parking to maximise parking provision while improving
parking clearances from intersections and standardising bay widths to reflect road
safety guidelines.

ggggg T

===

Widens the on-road cycle lane with added clearance and a line-marked buffer from

2m (DD traffic.

« Retains most of the existing kerb alignment, keeping some footpaths narrow.

* Creates space for street furniture and outdoor dining, through removing non-
compliant parking bays adjacent intersections.

* Full footpath replacement, maintaining existing width and layout.

L o T

Detail Plan

,,,,,,,,,,,,, Kerb realignment
compliant with

J

(

Vil ///i /// /

///

S

T ——=r

I 1l

Existing kerb line |}
mostly retained

-------------------,

60 degree angle car
parking retained

Enhances tree surrounds to support long-term tree health, through removing non-
compliant parking bays.

Incorporating new vegetation and greening where suitable.

Retains approximately 112 on-street parking bays.

Not to Scale parking offset from
intersection
Legend
% Existing trees — — — Existing kerb Footpath and activity zone [ Bus stop and shelter

Existing awnings and

[ Tree surround
verandahs

*& New trees o B Roadway

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE



belijuli_1
Image


Hutt Street

OQur _
Vdelaide

KEY PLAN

@

NOLONI¥YYD

Concept Development Options
Option C - Hutt Street

avoy
AGNOWSO
N3O
IDVHYIL
HLNOS
133418
FERRIDL)
133¥1S
XV4ITvH
133418
133418
SVYONV
13341s
Q13IEINYM
133415
S¥IANIA
13341S
nd

Entry Statement Hutt Street Revitalisation

M g )

! ] | L,,,,,
T -

‘--- ---------‘7

,,,,,,,,,,,,,

WAL — - =2 N S sy

\_____/L_ ”:b—

Refer to Detail Plan below

|

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale
T e Busstops | . Road resurfacingand | | Full footpath In-road tree surrounds On-road cycle lane with a linemarked
Q retained new linemarking replacement : nhanced for long term | :+{ buffer zone and increased clearance
Q tree health from parked vehicles
) ! . .
- il A : = =====" The features of this concept design are:
C
o « Changes parking to 45-degree angle, making it easier to access than 60-degree
parking but does not align with Austroads Guides' recommendations.

« Improves reversing space and sightlines, enhancing safety for motorists and cyclists.

* Widens the on-road cycle lane with added clearance and a line-marked buffer from
traffic.

« Retains most of the existing kerb alignment, keeping some footpaths narrow.

« Creates space for street furniture and outdoor dining, through removing non-
compliant parking bays adjacent intersections.

* Full footpath replacement, maintaining existing width and layout.

s —- s g « Enhances tree surrounds to support long-term tree health, through removing non-
L - ’ compliant parking bays.

+ Incorporates new vegetation and greening where suitable.

- « Retention of approximately 79 on-street parking bays.

. Kerb realignment icti [ ’
Detail Plan & : ; ( Existing kerb line ...t R 45 degree angle car parking makes
Kot I Scale paf—ﬁirnglz‘rf]:e‘t”:‘trgm mostly retained easier to park and unpark with improved
intersection sightlines to traffic

Legend

i Existing trees — — — Existing kerb Footpath and activity zone [ Bus stop and shelter

e Existing awnings and Roadwa Tree surround

Q’ New trees 7 veran % s g == Y -

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE |,



belijuli_2
Image


Hutt Street

OQur _
Vdelaide

anT abed

KEY PLAN

@

NOLDNIYYD

Concept Development Options
Option D - Hutt Street

HUTT ROAD HUTT STREET

I "ﬂ""""""'ﬁl‘ =TT

avoy
ANOWSO
N31D
FDvYHIL
HLNOS
133418
S3Tn
13341S
XV4ITvH
133418
133418
SVONV
133y41s
[<REIEEM L/
133418
SYIANITA
13341s
Jd

Development Option Plan

Not to Scale
. Bus stops Full footpath Protected cycle pathto |... Street trees protected within the Raised thresho!ds for minor
retained " replacement support all wheeling modes pedestrian activity zone for long | side streets improving
term tree health and management accessibility for pedestrians
N BN BN N N S . H - O O O O . N _ =N =B =B N B =B B | H R N BN BN N B S . . 4 %
: ' 1 The features of this concept design are:
1 » Changes to parallel parking to improve sightlines and reduce collision risk, aligning
-------------- : with Austroads Guides' recommendations.
______ ~ i T « Off-peak parking in the outer traffic lane between Gilles Street and Carrington Street
M ] (southbound in the AM, northbound in the PM).

* Creates a protected cycle path separated from traffic to support all wheeling
modes, including e-scooters.

» Provides raised thresholds at minor side streets, to improve pedestrian accessibility
and connectivity.

« Expands pedestrian spaces for outdoor dining, public seating, and community
gathering areas.

* Widens and declutters footpaths, improving accessibility.
« Full footpath replacement, for enhanced pedestrian experience.
N RN I [ N S N N e e (S e I ST P e e — * Introduces additional greening to reduce street temperatures and enhance
. - environmental amenity.
Detail Plan (an?ior?gvﬁisrl\g:\?;:—rll(?ng) Expanded activity zone Dedicated right turn |...... _Interpeak parallel parking 4
Not to Scale for outdoor dining, | for McLaren Street | " improves sightlines to traffic and « Enhances street trees' long-term health and management within protected
public seating, increased reduces collision risk
greening and community - footpath zone.
eventareas = | e Wider less cluttered ]
Legend Tootpaths « Traffic safety improvements including a dedicated right-turn slip lane for McLaren
Street and Davaar Place.
% Existing trees  — — — Existing kerb Footpath and activity zone B Bus stop and shelter Cycle path » Closure of the median gap between Gilles and Halifax Streets to mitigate vehicular
____ Existing awnings and Roadwa I Tree surround conflict.
% New trees verand%hs g = ¥

* Retains approximately 72 on-street parking bays.

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE 3



belijuli_3
Image


Hutt Street

OQur _
Vdelaide

) 0T abed

KEY PLAN o
C t Devel t Opti ; ; . g . O
oncept Development Options I A
Ll
Optlon E = Hutt Street Entry Statement Hutt Street Revitalisation
HUTT ROAD HUTT STREET

—r__ 9

‘ L ﬂ_lla |
N - B | o e - L i bl
Development Option Plan Refer to Detail Plan below

Not to Scale

.| Busstops .| Fullfootpath | | Protected cycle path to Raised thresholds for minor
retained replacement support safer accessibility g side streets improving

accessibility and connectivity

The features of this concept option design are:

« Changes parking to 45-degree angle, improving safety and limiting reversing into

: traffic.
f1 s | [ . e » Creates a protected cycle path separated from traffic to support all wheeling

P s . J& LY modes, including e-scooters.
- ) « Widens the footpath, south of Halifax Street where space is limited.

* Provides raised thresholds at minor side streets, to improve pedestrian accessibility
and connectivity.

« Full footpath replacement, moving the kerb further into the road.
« Improved tree surrounds to support long-term tree health.

« Traffic safety improvements including a dedicated right-turn slip lane for McLaren
Street and Davaar Place.

* Closure of the median gap between Gilles and Halifax Streets to mitigate vehicular

) Teupen SR p——— — ___________________“___;_______; conflict.
Detail Plan | | [ Road resurfacing J [ Jnﬁr::gegrggrmgtgﬁ J ......... [Dedi caterd right tum}______ b ( 45 deg;:rekfglgle car ] + Retains approximately 76 on-street parking bays.
Not to Scale and new linemarking tree health for McLaren Street
Legend
% Existing trees — — — Existing kerb Footpath and activity zone [ Bus stop and shelter ' Cycle path
* i treas . Sglrztr;r&%r]a:vn|ngs and [ Roadway [l Tree surround

Customer Care - 25 Pirie Street, Adelaide - (08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au

CITY OF
ADELAIDE |,



belijuli_4
Image


Our
Vdelaide

Pag

CITY OF
ADELAIDE

Customer Care

25 Pirie Street, Adelaide
(08) 8203 7203
ouradelaide.sa.gov.au



Concept Development Consultation

Help shape the future
of Hutt Street

You arc invited to review the proposed concept development
options for the revitalisation of Hutt Strect.

Share your feedback by

5:00pm, Friday 28 March 2025.

Scan the QR or visit

ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/hutt-street

CITY OF
" | ADELAIDE

Join us at the Hutt Street Revitalisation
information booth at the Fringe Vibes on
Hutt Street event and chat to a project
team member.

Saturday 1 March, 10.00am to 2.00pm

Hutt Street, corner of Halifax
and Hutt Street.

Or visit a community drop-in session

Wednesday 5 March, 10:30am to 12:30pm
Thursday 6 March, 3:00pm to 5:00pm

Hutt Street Library, 235 Hutt Street

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix B — Collateral | 72




Concept Development Consultation

Help shape the future

Share your feedback on the

concept development options
by 5:00pm, Friday 28 March 2025.

Or visit Hutt Street Revitalisation information booth
at Fringe Vibes on Hutt Street event

on the corner of Halifax and Hutt Street.

Saturday 1 March from 10.00am to 2.00pm

Or come to a community drop-in session at
Hutt Street Library, 235 Hutt Street.

Wednesday 5 March 2025, 10:30am to 12:30pm
Thursday 6 March 2025, 3:00pm to 5:00pm

._' = = -
CITY OF Tell us what you think.
ADELAIDE ouradelalde sa.gov.au
e a e 2

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix B — Collateral | 73




Appendix C - Weighted average methodology

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix C — Weighted average methodology | 74




About weighted average analysis

The analysis of question 5 of the survey “Imagine Hutt Street in 10 years — what's most important to you?”,
contained in section 5, includes a weighted average analysis.

A weighted average takes into account both how many people selected each response and how highly
they ranked it. This gives more influence to higher-ranked responses, providing a clearer picture of overall
preferences or priorities. This is like giving more points to higher-ranked choices so it's clearer which ones
matter most to participants overall.

The weighted average is a common and practical method for presenting ranked survey results, especially
when it is desirable to present a single summary metric to show relative preferences. While a common
methodology, there are limitations to weighted averages. There is a loss of detail as the distribution of
responses is no longer clear (for example polarised vs consistently middling responses). It also can mask
extremes. That is, an item with strong 1st and last-place votes might look average.

In order to ensure the methodology is understood, they are outlined below.
Methodology
1. Input survey data

Survey data is arranged so that each row represents a response option, and each column represents how
many times that option was ranked at a specific position.

Number of respondents
RANK 1 RANK 2 RANK 3 RANK 4 RANK 5
An accessible street for everyone that 150 241 245 223 32
improves the pedestrian experience
A street with on street parking numbers 228 37 42 31 544
maintained at the highest level
An attractive street with vibrant spaces for 221 200 197 232 39
events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality
A greener, cooler street with trees and 177 250 242 205 18
improved garden amenity
Protected space for people cycling and 171 172 165 181 197
wheeling

2. Assign weights to each rank

Weights are then assigned to each rank. We use inverse ranking weights which indicates that a higher

preference = higher score.
e Rank 1 =5 points
e Rank 2 =4 points

¢ Rank 3 =3 points

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix C — Weighted average methodology | 75




e Rank 4 =2 points
e Rank5=1 point
3. Multiply frequencies by weights
For each option, we then multiply the number of responses in each rank by the corresponding weight.
Weighted score = (R1x5) + (R2x4) + (R3x3) + (R4x2) + (R5x1)
4. Calculate total weighted scores and weighted average

Using the formula above, we calculate the total score for each option. We then divided this score by the
total number of respondents that ranked this response (not that not all respondents ranked every option).

Respondents Weighted Weighted
score average
An accessible street for everyone that improves
the pedestrian experience 891 2,927 3.41
A street with on street parking numbers
maintained at the highest level 882 2,020 2.29
An attractive street with vibrant spaces for
events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality 889 2,999 3.37
A greener, cooler street with trees and improved
garden amenity 892 3,039 3.41
Protected space for people cycling and wheeling | 886 2,597 2.93

b. Rank the options
Response options can then be sorted by their weighted scores (highest to lowest):
1. A greener, cooler street with trees and improved garden amenity — 3.41

2. An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality —
3.37

3. An accessible street for everyone that improves the pedestrian experience - 3.29

4. Protected space for people cycling and wheeling - 2.93

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix C — Weighted average methodology | 76




5. A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the highest level - 2.29

Table 13: Weighted average rank - Hutt St in 10 years-what’s most important (all respondents)

Weighted .
Option
average rank
1 A greener, cooler street with trees and improved garden amenity
2 An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality
3 An accessible street for everyone that improves the pedestrian experience
4 Protected space for people cycling and wheeling
5 A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the highest level

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix C — Weighted average methodology | 77




Appendix D — Submissions

Engagement Summary Report | Appendix D — Submissions | 78




To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Public transport consideration
Date: Tuesday, 25 February 2025 12:57:38 PM

You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is important
Hi

Firstly, I love Hutt Street: the trees, the shops and cafes, the vibe.

If changes have to be made, I would encourage consideration of enhancing public transport
e.g. extending the tram line from the Botanic Gardens.

I work in Carrington Street, just off Hutt Street. To get here, I catch a train, then the tram
to Botanic Gardens, then the connector bus to Hutt Street. This morning I waited for over
half an hour for the bus as one left as the tram pulled in and the next one was delayed,
followed immediately by the next bus. If the tram continued it would make life much
simpler for commuters and also open up this section of the city generally. It is just a little
removed at the moment.

I realise this would be a long-term goal but would need to be considered before too much
time and money is spent on other upgrades.

Thanks for the opportunity to give this feedback.

Regards
L

Sent from my Fairphone 5

Page 116



From: John

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt St Upgrade
Date: Tuesday, 25 February 2025 1:28:51 PM

[You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important at
https://aka.ms/I.earnAboutSenderldentification ]

My name is John- and I live in Power St Adelaide.

The most important point is parking. There are not enough parks for residents in the area. I love to have friends
and family visit but often there is nowhere for them to park. I live alone and visitors are crucial to my well
being. Pleas do not remove any more parks.

Parking for businesses in Hutt St is a key to the businesses being successful. You shouldn’t remove any parks in
Hutt if you care about the survival of businesses in the area.

I assume [ won’t get a response to this email but I hope it is read and the valid points are taken into account.

Cheers John -

Sent from my iPhone

Page 117



From: kaj,l

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Feedback
Date: Tuesday, 25 February 2025 1:53:59 PM

[You don't often get email ﬁ‘om_. Learn why this is important at
httos://al ! \eriderifibiortion]

Dear ACC.

Just leave Hutt Street alone!

The only thing it needs it to get rid of the homeless lunatics that throng to Hutt St Centre. People are too afraid
to go to Hutt Street.

Relocate the Centre to the South Parklands, put in some showers / laundry / tiny homes for them to live in.

I didn't make this comment publicly to avoid backlash.

Regards

Adelaide

Page 118



From: 1agk-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Subject: Support for Options D & E - STRONGER ADELAIDE
Date: Thursday, 27 February 2025 4:02:15 PM
Attachments: [0.png

Hi there,

e B
. Our organization has amassed a following ot almost 5,000 tollowers on social

media, as well as over 50 recognised members.

We as an organization support options D & E due to their safety improvements for cycling.
Separated bike lanes are the current gold-standard for most cities around Europe and other

cities in Australia, so there should be no debate on whether or not they should be installed

in Adelaide.

For people worried about traffic and loss of business, cyclists and pedestrians spend more
than drivers on average, meaning businesses will get a huge boost when more residents are
encouraged to walk and cycle. Furthermore, safer bicycle lanes encourage people to switch
from driving to cycling meaning traffic congestion can be improved.

We as an organization understand that people of Adelaide are reluctant to change

their driving habits - but if we want to avoid the downfalls of other cities (especially in the
USA), we need to keep up-to-date with current active transportation infrastructure trends
seen throughout most of the developed world.

Stronger Adelaide and its followers support options D & E.

Regards,

Jack

Page 119



From: Samuel

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Subject: Hutt St Revitalisation Feedback

Date: Thursday, 27 February 2025 7:44:29 PM
Hi there,

Just emailing to voice my support for options E and D for this upgrade proposal. As a
frequent cyclist in the CBD, | think it's an excellent opportunity to improve the diversity of
travel options through the city. | cannot begin to tell you the number of times poor cycling
infrastructure has put me in extremely dangerous positions, and any steps to improve this
across the city should be a priority. Creating safer bike routes, and reducing car
dependency, is an extremely vital step towards improving Adelaide's urban condition, and |
think it would be an incredible waste of an opportunity to go with options A or B, which do
not seriously alter the current urban condition.

As Adelaide continues to grow and densify, creating viable and safe alternatives to car
transport is vital for a healthy city. There are many precedents to support this, and |

strongly urge the city to move towards a positive future rather than staying in an expiring,
car dependant past.

All the best,

samuel |||}

Page 120



From: Elizabeth

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Subject: Hutt Street Feedback / more Fairy lights in the trees
Date: Friday, 28 February 2025 9:41:37 AM

Hello All

Happy Friday
Its great to hear Hutt Street is being upgraded.

| had some input into the fairly lights being added to the central trees along Hutt
street few years back actually.

| sent another message a couple of years ago for more fairly lights to be added to
the trees along the pathways.

Unfortunately, that email went unanswered.

They really lift the street and make it feel vibrant and upmarket. ( If you know
Collins Street in Melb then you will know what | mean)

When | first came to Adelaide back in 1980 | lived near Melbourne Street which
was such a lovely atmosphere, however due to limited parking the area became a
ghost town.

If parking is an issue in any area, then this will limit people coming.

| was hoping the vacant petrol station would become a parking area, unfortunately
its now a station for Cars to be recharged.

| have lived on East Terrace for 15 years; however, the apartment | live in has
been in our family for 25 years.

| have seen Hutt street go from being busy to a ghost town.

Lovely to see more activity and of course with the development of apartments and
more people living in the area its really becoming a vibrant village of activity.

Sincerely

Elizabeth ||}

Page 121



From: Eau,l,-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Parking for Hutt Street
Date: Friday, 28 February 2025 3:56:40 PM

You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is important

To whom it may concern.

My wife and | patronise the Arab Steed Hotel dining room fortnightly for dinner.

We travel by car from the Adelaide hills.

We know at least four couples from our area who do similar.

If the council proceeds to reduce the car parking spaces in the area indicated, without
the provision of alternative parking, we will be forced to cease patronising this venue.

Paul

Note: | have updated my email address from Internode to ||| GG

Please update your address book.

Page 122



From: Simon [

Sent: Sunday, 2 March 2025 6:08 PM

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade <feedback@huttstreetupgrade.com.au>
Subject: Re: Feedback

You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is

important

Sorry pressed send before finished

| would be concerned at any significant loss of existing trees. Again, evidence e.g. arborist report
would be useful to understand the risks and mitigations proposed

Thanks

Administrative note: Combined second email

Hi

A main driver of the options seems to be improvements in road safety related to parking

Can the statistical evidence of the problem that is being solved be provided to assess of thisis a
real issue? Anecdotally from living in the area is that this is not a real problem to be solved

Thanks

Get Outlook for iOS

Page 123



To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt St revitalisation consultation - feedback
Date: Monday, 3 March 2025 9:17:51 AM

You don't often get email from_, Learn why this is important

To whom it may concern

We would like to express our support for proposed concept D due to the separated,
contiuous bike path, change to parallel parking, expansion of pedestrian spaces and
introduction of additional greening. Concept D would be an excellent improvement in
usability for all users of Hutt St.

We also support concept E as a second choice as it also has a separated bike path though
lacks the other important features of improved pedestrian spaces and greening.

We do not support any proposed changes which fail to incorporate a fully separated bike

path.
reiards

Kind
Alfie

Page 124



From: Clam-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Feedback for Hutt Street Project
Date: Monday, 3 March 2025 9:57:07 AM

You don't often get email from_, Learn why this is important

To whom it may concern,

We make this submission as a ratepayer and Hutt Street trader as we operate a community

We, and other local Hutt Street traders, are very concerned in connection with any concept
development that will see on-street parking being reduced. The proposal will have a
material and adverse impact on our customers’ ability to readily and conveniently access
the pharmacy and essential health-related services we provide. As a matter of public social
policy, this is unacceptable and should not be endorsed by Council.

We understand from media reports that in respect of the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project,
Council has secured grant funding from the Australian Government’s Thriving Suburbs
Program (Grant), which aims to support projects that enhance livability, enhance social
cohesion and support local amenity in urban communities.

We note that given a primary objective of the Grant funding is to support local amenity
and enhance livability, any plan which poses an impediment to locals to readily access
pharmacy and essential health related services runs contrary to those stated objectives.

Our community [ o 2 e on extended

trading hours to service the constituents of the Adelaide City Council

and beyond.In addition to—also provides a wide range of

additional health-related services including:

1. A range of vaccinations including child vaccinations, COVID-19, influenza, whooping
cough and shingles.

2. A Healthy Heart Check service (which involves a 30-minute consultation with a
pharmacist

including blood pressure check, cholesterol test, weight/BMI and other risks assessment,
action

plans and follow up).

3. An advisory service as a sub-agent of the National Diabetes Services Scheme (NDSS),
whereby our trained pharmacists provide information and advice on diabetes management.
4. A “Mind Your Mouth” oral hygiene service, whereby we provide oral and dental
screening, assessments and advice (including referrals to dental, medical and allied

health professionals).

5. A medication review and management packing service for those who struggle to manage
multiple medications, multiple times a day. This alleviates stress, uncertainty and ensures
correct dosages/intervals to maintain proper effectiveness.

6. Uncomplicated Urinary Tract Infection consultation and treatment.

Our essential services help to alleviate widely reported pressures on the overburdened
health care system, which is characterised by:

a. Long wait times to access general practitioners, including after hours.

b. Primary healthcare is becoming increasingly unaffordable, both directly and when

Page 125



considered in the context of rising costs of living.

c. The lack of access to prevention and management services of ongoing and/or chronic
conditions.

d. The need to reduce pressures on public hospitals.

such as ours, provide essential health and community service to
the
Adelaide community and bridge the gap where GP and hospital access becomes more
acutely
difficult, to help the community stay healthy. Based on the current growth trajectory, we
anticipate this trend to continue as the scope of practice for community pharmacies
continues to expand to meet the health demands of the community and to alleviate existing
pressures on the health system overall.

Since our submission dated 28 August 2024, we can provide the following updated
Customer data from our
for the calendar year of 2024:

a. Total registered patients who list their residential postcode as Adelaide, 5000: 3135
(37.7%);

b. Total number of registered patients who list their residential postcode as outside
of the Adelaide, 5000: 5178 (63.3%).

It is reasonable to suggest that:

1. Those who live outside of the city (a non 5000 postcode), being 63.3 % of our
registered patients, are also more likely to drive to the (than use other
forms of community such as walk or bike riding etc).

2. Even if 37.7 % of patients live within the Adelaide postcode, many ill, frail and/or
elderly

patients are more likely to drive the- than use other forms of commuting
including

walking, bike riding and/or use public transport.

Any proposed reduction to on streetcar parking along Hutt Street will have a direct and
adverse impact on the health outcomes of ouri patients and/or customers who
will depend on that parking to access our essential healthcare services. In addition to the
adverse social impact, these changes will clearly have an adverse economic impact on Hutt
Street traders, including our business.

Accessibility and ease are important factors in consumer choice. We note that within the
street network surrounding Hutt Street, there is limited street parking for customers as
many parking bays are restricted for residential users. Another competing factor is that
many inner-city shopping centers (Norwood, Unley, Burnside, North Adelaide) provide
onsite parking.

Concept Options

Of the five options released for public consultation, our business supports Option A on the
basis that:

1. Provides high parking convenience by retaining 132 on-street parking bays, with many
parking

spaces located directly in front of destinations/trading businesses.

Page 126



2. Targeted footpath maintenances to improve and enhance the pedestrian experience.

3. We note that the reduced speed along Hutt Street to 40km per hour already adequately
address

and mitigate safety concerns resulting from a lack of intersection clearance distances
and/or

buffer zones for bike riders.

We do not support the remaining options for the reasons set out below:

1. Option B:

a. Results in a further reduction in street parking by 15% (retains 112 parking bays).

b. Results in a high level of disruption to traders with a full replacement of the pedestrian
footpath.

c. Provides nominal benefits by way of creating space for other improved amenities.

2. Option C:

a. Results in a 40 % reduction to on street parking (retains 79 parking bays only)

b. Changes parking configuration which does not align to Ausroad Guidelines. We
therefore

do not agree with the assessment that it enhances safety for motorists or cyclists.

c. Results in a material and adverse impact on the ability of patients and customers to
obtain health services through reduced accessibility and ease. This neither meets the
objective of the Grant funding to enhance livability or improve amenities.

3. Options D & E:

a. Results in a 45 % reduction to on-street parking (retains 72 parking bays only) and 43 %
reduction to on-street parking (retains 76 parking bays only), respectively.

b. Material and adverse impact on the ability of patients and customers to obtain health
services through reduced accessibility and ease. This neither meets the objective of the
Grant funding to enhance livability or improve amenities.

Noting the rising costs of doing business and increased cost of living pressures on
consumers, the tradersof Hutt Street, including our [|jjjffzeed the ongoing support of
the Council to ensure that traders are supported with appropriate infrastructure to attract
clientele to the Hutt Street precinct to access goods and services.

As such we urge Council to further develop Option A to ensure that urban planning
objectives are balanced with the needs of accessibility to essential services such as

I d health related services.

If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact us at your
convenience.
Yours sincerely,

Clara

| =

Page 127



From: ﬂlll.-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt St Feedback on Revitalisation Project
Date: Monday, 3 March 2025 5:24:03 PM

You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is important

As a frequent user of Hutt St, by car or bike, I prefer the later 3 options. Ideally we need
separated infrastructure for active transport (e.g cycling, personal mobility devices).
Options D and E provide that. I'd like to see Adelaide adopting the benefits of active
transport approaches, as other progressive cities (e.g. London, Paris) are doing. Option A
offers the least benefit.

Page 128



From: lQﬂ-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Subject: Hutt Street Revitalisation

Date: Wednesday, 5 March 2025 5:16:05 AM

You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is important

Good morning

As a regular visitor to Hutt St, I'd like to add my voice to the consultation on the
redevelopment. I'm strongly in favour of option D, for the following reasons:

expanded activity zone

wider, less cluttered footpaths that allows for additional greening

protected, separated cycleway that keeps bikes away from both cars and pedestrians,
and supports scooters

A straight cycleway, unlike option E

My question is what happens to the cycleway north of Carrington St and south of South
Tce. Where do people on bikes go when they get there?

Thanks

Jon

Page 129



From: An_dx-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt street upgrade
Date: Thursday, 6 March 2025 4:34:02 PM
You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is important
Dear sir,

As residents of- Carrington street for 37 years we seen the fortunes of Hutt street wax and
wane, 3 butchers and 5 banks have disappeared over that period. Countless businesses have
come and gone and there is still plenty of commercial vacancies along the street.

Four out of five proposals will require significant reduction in parking availability and force
overflow into surrounding streets which are already significantly challenged in that area.

We do not have off street parking and share the available spaces with other residents,visitors,
staff from all businesses,tradespeople,customers from Hutt street traders. Over the years we
have learned to adapt and be patient in getting a park in the vicinity of our house but that has
become significantly harder in recent times.

Most people do not know how to park and leave significant space between them and other
vehicles often taking 2 spaces and not being aware of other peoples parking needs. Many streets
nearby have clearly marked spaces to park which maximises parking opportunities for all, this |
have suggested previously to no avail or response. We are not resistant to change, but feel that 4
of the five proposals are an example of form over function. We know a lot of the Hutt street
traders personally and they are struggling to survive in a challenging market without having a
large disruption to parking and business.

We love living in the city and the Hutt street precinct is special to all who live and work in the
area, please do not strangle it to death for the sake of form over function.

Kind regards

ancy I
I

elen SN

Virus-free. www.avg.com

Page 130



From: Luci

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Subject: Hutt Street Concept Development

Date: Thursday, 6 March 2025 6:03:54 PM

{ You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important
Hi,

Thanks for hosting the consultation for the Hutt Street traders last night - it was extremely well
run, presented and facilitated. | have completed the online survey and voted for Option D which
supports urban greening, shade and cooling, walking, spaces for community building and outdoor
dining and safer, separated cycling space. Option D would result in an environment that is
conducive to year-round cycling and walking for transport which is good for health, the
environment and the economy. It will also build in capacity for generous al fresco dining and
retail space as demand increases with Adelaide's residential population over the coming years.

Many Adelaide residents, workers and visitors struggle to find the time to participate in physical
activity. Active travel is an efficient means of incorporating physical activity into daily living
through commuting for working, learning and socialising. Past and present policies and practices
in South Australia can promote the development of car-oriented built environments and car use,
limiting the potential for healthier active transport. Option D supports the potential for Adelaide
residents and workers to walk and cycle.

| work in the building on the NW corner of Carrington and Hutt Street. The current cycle lane to
the rear of angled parking bays is a hazardous and high-stress riding environment for cyclists. |
have had a number of near misses whilst riding to work south-bound on Hutt Street with cars
reversing out. A couple of times, | have had to swerve into the carriageway to avoid hitting the
car and was fortunate that there was no traffic in the lane at the time. As a driver, | can
appreciate that there is minimal visibility of on-coming cyclists when reversing. | have changed
my cycle route to work to avoid riding the length of Hutt Street and, as a result, undertake my on-
route shopping or coffee stops elsewhere.

| believe that cyclists deliberately avoid Hutt Street because it is unsafe. Creating a safe cycling
environment would attract cyclists to Hutt Street who will spend money in the cafes, restaurants,
pharmacy and shops. A dedicated safe bike path would also reduce conflict between risk-adverse
cyclists who currently use the footpath in preference to the on-road bike lane.

You might be interested in the Heart Foundation resource: Good for BusineSS$ that provides

evidence on the benefits of making streets more walking and cycling friendly. This is currently
being updated and a 2025 version will be available later this year and will help to support Local
Government efforts to improve walkability in instances such as this where there are concerns
amongst the local traders about loss of on-street car parking spaces.

Good for Busine$$

2 Discussion paper. Good for Busine$$ Introduction The Heart Foundation has
commissioned a discussion paper that explores the economic benefits of making streets
more walking and cycling friendly.

irp.cdn-website.com

Page 131



| see value in showcasing case studies of other revitalisation projects to demonstrate the impact
of reduced car parking in lieu of improved pedestrian spaces, greening and beautification and
would like to create a case study on the Frome Bikeway. Belinda Cowley said she could put me in
touch with the appropriate person in Council to discuss this with. Could you please pass this

email along to her.

Yours sincerely,

Luci-

Page 132



From: Jane

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Feedback and questions re Hutt St revitalisation project
Date: Friday, 7 March 2025 11:39:01 AM

[You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important at
https://aka.ms/I.earnAboutSenderldentification ]

Hi there

I’m a resident in Ada St Adelaide and have completed the online survey about the Hutt St revitalisation
options. I have a couple of questions:

It seems that one could complete this online survey multiple times since you don’t ask for any identifying
details. T am very concerned that people who feel strongly about one option or another could just complete the
survey multiple times so that their choice is emphasised. Is this possible?

I am in favour of Option D as I want to live in a community where cyclists, pedestrians and public transport are
the main modes of transport and where cars are de-emphasised. But I am aware of very strong opposition from
business owners to losing car spaces and wonder if we could find a way to meet the needs of both camps? One
way would be for council to create a car park which could be shielded from street view with a green wall.
Another way would be to put protected cycle lanes on either side of the median strip rather than on the sides of
the road. Or one two-way cycle lane either next to the median strip or on one side of the road.

Just in closing, I want to say that many other countries have managed to create places in which cycling is the
dominant mode of transport and I think we have to bite the bullet and move in this direction as fast as we can.
There is always opposition to such things but once they are in place, people like them. And we have to question
“research” that shows that removing parking spaces results in businesses closing: is this actually verifiable? It’s
stated over and over again as if it is factual but is the evidence strong ton this? Or in fact, do more
cycle/pedestrian friendly streets improve business?

Thanks,

Jane

Page 133



Administrative note: Combined second email

Hi there

Following on from an earlier email I sent, here is an example of a cycleway in the middle of the road, plus other ideas about how to make cities cycling
friendly:

The ‘active transport” ideas from around the world that could make Australians healthier and our cities cleanerhttps://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?
url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.theguardian.com%?2Faustralia-news%2F2024%2Foct%2F21%2Fthe-active-transport-ideas-from-around-the-world-that-could-
make-

australians-healthier-and-our-cities-cleaner%3FCMP%3DShare_iOSApp_Other&data=05%7C02%7Cadmin%40urps.com.au%
7Cf55d3b4ct6604edaf20208dd7cab0624%7C5ce59028c¢93c4e73b4648a5da3c657d7%7C0%7C0%7C638803796159846217%7CUnknown%
7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU 1hcGkiOnRydWUsIYiOilwLjAuMDAwWMCIsIIAiO0iJXaW4zMilsIkFOIjoi TWFpbClslldUTjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%
7C&sdata=efIPw06dW{Dzb2Fh5yD%2FvPlo1S%2Fgp014%2F050%2Be0nP5k%3D&reserved=0

Jane

Page 134



From: lenyss

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt Street upgrade feedback
Date: Tuesday, 11 March 2025 11:08:43 AM

[You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important at

https://aka.ms/I.earnAboutSenderldentification ]

I have two observations. The new traffic lights and pedestrian crossing between South Tce and Glen Osmond

Road.
A great idea, but pedestrians and cyclists often don’t bother to push the button for a green light. This can be

quite alarming to have a green light and suddenly find a cyclist on the crossing in front of you. They move
quite fast so don’t always think they will cross. I think flashing yellow lights as a warning to all might work

better.

I am sorry to see more London Plane Trees being planted. They look good and provide shade but they also
cause much misery to hay fever and asthma sufferers when they are dropping their furry itchy seed balls.
Really unsuitable in our climate.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment

A

Page 135



From: e [

Sent: Monday, March 3, 2025 10:11 AM

ro: I

Page 136



Subject: Re: To Adelaide City Council re Hutt Street Development

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Council and Locals,

Does anyone know who has set up in the old bank on the corner of Hutt St and
Carrington St?

I walk past it to work each morning have seen the renovation for someone to set up
in. There is one computer in there and | recall one morning it had the ACC logo on
screen.

Is it a site office for the project?

Pete

On Sat, 1 Mar 2025, 16:31 Peter_> wrote:

Dear Council and Locals,
| am a resident of the city's south east.

The Hutt Street ‘Revitalisation' is of concern.

The project reads as a green dream rather than a business and community
focused incentive.

From these plans, | receive more information about trees and bicycles and
none about expected improvements for business use.

Parking.

Parking is already a critical issue and the situation is already strained — that's
just between the residents.

We have permit holders parking outside their defined areas (for shade...) and
residents who utilise their off street parks for other purposes with 3 vehicles
idle in the street.

Let's add the family with 4 cars that bought a house without off street
parking...

The Hutt St plans do not take into consideration the further strain on
surrounding residential streets.

In the plans, parking is sacrificed for bicycles, pedestrians and diners.

If there is no parking, there are no diners or business users.

Pedestrians usually walk from their parked cars.

Bicycles block footpaths and rarely stop to dine.

Parking Statistics

From memory, the parking statistics detailing parking occupancy were from
2020ish, bit of a down year for going out.

The current Plans D and E fail to mention the reduction in parking when the
clearway is applied.

Using very basic math because the details are not supplied — parking during
peak hour is possibly reduced to 36 for plans D and E.

Businesses will not capture traffic exiting the city during peak hour because

they cannot stop.

Page 137



No more chook shop. No more chemist. No more quick stop and grabs.
Those stop and grabs are dollars in the store — not a bicycle passing in a lane.

Parking Standards

The plans refer to differing standards.

The Australian Standards are in Option A and Austroad Guidelines in other
options.

Both are difficult to locate to determine the interpretation of council to the
scenario.

It is inconsistent for 2 design regulations to be mentioned.

Footpaths

Yes — the footpaths need replacing, but why is this dependent on what plan is
chosen?

Plan A refers to ‘Targeted Footpath Maintenance’.

This should be happening anyway.

Maintain what is there now, then we can trust you to improve the rest.

Cairns Street

The Southcott buildings adjoining Cairns Street are vacant and there are
rumours this will become apartments.

High density apartment living, exempt from the State’s proposed home
design legislation for off street parking because the postcode is 5000.

I've yet to see an apartment building approved by ACC with parking for every
resident.

Re the Hutt Street plans, closing the access from south bound Hutt Street will
divert the traffic via Halifax to Cardwell Street.

This is not mentioned in the consideration and is faintly displayed, outside the
provided plans.

Bicycle lanes

Bikes don't use these lanes now.

What guarantee do we have these will be used?

The plans mentioned the extension for these lanes to e-scooters.

The e-scooters are not speed limited and some seem to hit the same speeds
as cars.

What guarantee does Adelaide City Council have for those walking from car
to footpath across a bike lane of the e-scooters and cyclists maintaining a safe
speed?

Don’t handball this to the police — you're designing the road and council
approved motorised scooter use.

Feedback Form

We are asked to picture Hutt St in ten years.

Not once is economic prosperity an option.

When these plans were first disclosed to the Advertiser, | raised concerns that
reduced parking would reduce customers to another business and residential
local.

I was told "They will just Uber in.’

I've never known someone to Uber into a chicken shop or chemist because
there is no parking.

They're more likely to shop elsewhere.

Even if it is for a night out, why add $40 in Uber fares to a meal.

Of course that local has a large parking area at the rear of his business

Page 138



premises.

Rates Payers

As a rate payer, it is good to be acknowledged in the feedback form.

There are residents who will be impacted and are not ratepayers.

There are activists who will no doubt be loudest, yet never economically
contribute to city life.

| hope the feedback form caters for submissions with regard to contribution to
Hutt Street life rather than a green dream.

Light's Vision

The Council minutes hold a piece titled ‘Light’s Vision'.

Light had a grand vision for the City of Adelaide and it has maintained us well
since 1836.

| recall from school, part of the plan was wide streets as well as accessibility
and recreational parklands.

What a shame the wide streets are not recognised and are now disregarded
in the Hutt Street and Light Square developments.

Meetings

| apologise, but | am not in Adelaide for either community meetings due to
other arrangements.

As | am not able to voice my concerns there, so you are receiving this email.

Future

| watch Council and | vote. | am particular about that.

| assess the drivers behind this appear to be an ALP / Australian Greens
coalition.

This is disappointing, because with this and the Light Square proposals — it is
clear those parties do not have a focus for economic prosperity.

Without economic prosperity, Council will rely on residential rates to provide
funding for these projects.

State members note — | am watching party influence on this and it will flow up
when your ballot date arrives.

And for those without party affiliation— | note when you sit back and stay
quiet.

Maintain the parking.
Improve what is there.
Take into consideration people’s livelihoods.

Thanks

Pete -

Page 139



rrom: N -

Sent: Sunday, March 2, 2025 8:40 am

—
]

Subject: Re: To Adelaide City Council re Hutt Street Development

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Peter,

Page 140




Thank you for your email. I wholeheartedly agree with your concerns and believe we
should all raise our concerns against these ill-conceived proposals, particularly the
removal of car parking & the absurd idea of adding a clearway in the morning &
afternoons.

Regards

stayne [

On Sat, Mar 1, 2025 at 9:31 PM Peter_ wrote:

Dear Council and Locals,

| am a resident of the city’s south east.

The Hultt Street ‘Revitalisation’ is of concern.

The project reads as a green dream rather than a business and
community focused incentive.

From these plans, | receive more information about trees and bicycles
and none about expected improvements for business use.

Parking.

Parking is already a critical issue and the situation is already strained —
that's just between the residents.

We have permit holders parking outside their defined areas (for shade...)
and residents who utilise their off street parks for other purposes with 3
vehicles idle in the street.

Let's add the family with 4 cars that bought a house without off street
parking...

The Hutt St plans do not take into consideration the further strain on
surrounding residential streets.

In the plans, parking is sacrificed for bicycles, pedestrians and diners.
If there is no parking, there are no diners or business users.
Pedestrians usually walk from their parked cars.

Bicycles block footpaths and rarely stop to dine.

Parking Statistics

From memory, the parking statistics detailing parking occupancy were
from 2020ish, bit of a down year for going out.

The current Plans D and E fail to mention the reduction in parking when
the clearway is applied.

Using very basic math because the details are not supplied — parking
during peak hour is possibly reduced to 36 for plans D and E.
Businesses will not capture traffic exiting the city during peak hour
because they cannot stop.

No more chook shop. No more chemist. No more quick stop and grabs.

Page 141



Those stop and grabs are dollars in the store — not a bicycle passing in a
lane.

Parking Standards

The plans refer to differing standards.

The Australian Standards are in Option A and Austroad Guidelines in
other options.

Both are difficult to locate to determine the interpretation of council to the
scenario.

It is inconsistent for 2 design regulations to be mentioned.

Footpaths

Yes — the footpaths need replacing, but why is this dependent on what
plan is chosen?

Plan A refers to ‘Targeted Footpath Maintenance’.

This should be happening anyway.

Maintain what is there now, then we can trust you to improve the rest.

Cairns Street

The Southcott buildings adjoining Cairns Street are vacant and there are
rumours this will become apartments.

High density apartment living, exempt from the State’s proposed home
design legislation for off street parking because the postcode is 5000.

I've yet to see an apartment building approved by ACC with parking for
every resident.

Re the Hutt Street plans, closing the access from south bound Hutt Street
will divert the traffic via Halifax to Cardwell Street.

This is not mentioned in the consideration and is faintly displayed, outside
the provided plans.

Bicycle lanes

Bikes don’t use these lanes now.

What guarantee do we have these will be used?

The plans mentioned the extension for these lanes to e-scooters.

The e-scooters are not speed limited and some seem to hit the same
speeds as cars.

What guarantee does Adelaide City Council have for those walking from
car to footpath across a bike lane of the e-scooters and cyclists
maintaining a safe speed?

Don’t handball this to the police — you're designing the road and council
approved motorised scooter use.

Feedback Form

We are asked to picture Hutt St in ten years.

Not once is economic prosperity an option.

When these plans were first disclosed to the Advertiser, | raised concerns
that reduced parking would reduce customers to another business and
residential local.

| was told ‘They will just Uber in.’

I’'ve never known someone to Uber into a chicken shop or chemist
because there is no parking.

They’re more likely to shop elsewhere.

Even if it is for a night out, why add $40 in Uber fares to a meal.

Of course that local has a large parking area at the rear of his business

Page 142



premises.

Rates Payers

As a rate payer, it is good to be acknowledged in the feedback form.
There are residents who will be impacted and are not ratepayers.

There are activists who will no doubt be loudest, yet never economically
contribute to city life.

I hope the feedback form caters for submissions with regard to
contribution to Hutt Street life rather than a green dream.

Light’s Vision

The Council minutes hold a piece titled ‘Light’s Vision’.

Light had a grand vision for the City of Adelaide and it has maintained us
well since 1836.

| recall from school, part of the plan was wide streets as well as
accessibility and recreational parklands.

What a shame the wide streets are not recognised and are now
disregarded in the Hutt Street and Light Square developments.

Meetings

| apologise, but | am not in Adelaide for either community meetings due to
other arrangements.

As | am not able to voice my concerns there, so you are receiving this
email.

Future

| watch Council and | vote. | am particular about that.

| assess the drivers behind this appear to be an ALP / Australian Greens
coalition.

This is disappointing, because with this and the Light Square proposals —
it is clear those parties do not have a focus for economic prosperity.
Without economic prosperity, Council will rely on residential rates to
provide funding for these projects.

State members note — | am watching party influence on this and it will
flow up when your ballot date arrives.

And for those without party affiliation— | note when you sit back and stay
quiet.

Maintain the parking.
Improve what is there.
Take into consideration people’s livelihoods.

Thanks

petc N

Page 143



rrom:

Sent: Monday, March 3, 2025 2:31 PM

ro:

Page 144



Subject: Hutt Street Car Parking Proposals [SEC=OFFICIAL]

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

OFFICIAL

Dear Adelaide City Councillors,

| am writing to you collectively in relation to the proposed changes to the car parking
in Hutt Street.

| do not live in the city. | live in Parkside. But | do work in the city and | have parked in
Hutt Street at least three times per week for the past 16 years where | -

attend yoga at Hatha Shala yoga school;

visit Biga café ;

eat at the local restaurants after work with friends and

use the local traders such as the dry cleaner, the chemist, the florist and the
newsagent.

| am writing to you to urge you not to reduce the number of carparks in Hutt Street.
These small businesses rely on customers being able to park their motor vehicles in
proximity to these venues and to pay for their services. As an example, two sets of my
Parkside neighbours in the street | live in, drive into Hutt Street several times a week to
have coffee at Biga. They do not ride bikes and not of an age where they would be
inclined to do so.

The Hatha Shala community is very concerned about not being able to park close to
the yoga school, especially at night. You would be hard pressed to find a local
community more in tune with issues of environment and aesthetics than a yoga
school. The school runs on a shoestring to attract students. Easy access to the school
will enhance its chances of survival. It is not always safe for students to park a distance
from the school and walk around on their own.

Unpopular parking models like those now adopted on King William Road and
O’Connell Street will detrimentally impact on these small businesses.

| am not a rate payer but | live and work around the city seven days a week. Please do
not reduce the car parking in Hutt Street.

| am very happy to speak with or meet with any of you if it would assist.

Regards,

Page 145



Hutt Street - Mains Street Revitalization
Concept development consultation

Submission from Alistair and Sally | N
I 25/3/25

Our background

We are a retired couple who have lived in the city for 10+ years having renovated our cottage in | illill near to Hutt
Street. While we mainly walk and ride bikes in the area, we also do have one electric car and one 4WD.

Our experience with Hutt Street.

For us Hutt Steet is a street we use on an every-day basis, as pedestrians, cyclists and car drivers. It seems to work
pretty well just as it is and we are a bit bemused as to why a “revitalization” is thought to be necessary.

The precinct does of course have its issues; homelessness, begging, rough sleeping and occasional anti-social
behaviour being part of that. It is a major concern to us that the revitalization project does not seem to include any
measures or actions that address these significant issues.

We note that small businesses often struggle to thrive and survive - many citing high rental costs as a key issue. A
number of shops are closed and have been that way for some time. There is a systemic problem here with excessive
land and real estate values that a street upgrade cannot and will not address.

Main concerns

Our main concern with the project is that millions of dollars of taxpayer and rate payer funds are being expended on a
street that is actually pretty good as it is. We do understand that some of the works are required for stormwater,
drainage and other service upgrades and there are areas of footpaths and pavements that require repair and
maintenance.

However, it is our strong belief that the precinct and our community would be better served by directing a large part of
the funding to providing better services, housing and accommodation opportunities for those people most in need. It's
not a great look for the City of Adelaide to have a major entry road lined with the tents of homeless people camping out,
people sleeping in doorways and in car parks and it's even worse for those people that live this way.

Our preferred options in order

1- Option E

We rank this first because it separates out the cycle and e-scooter lanes from pedestrian and vehicular traffic. However,
the cycle pathway is somewhat convoluted at corners and some potential outdoor dining areas are restricted or isolated
by the cycle path.

Presumably there would be a differentiation in paving surface between cycle and pedestrian areas to demarcate the
zones.

It is acknowledged the significant loss of street parking will be of concern to many traders.

2 - Option B

We rank this a close second to E. It rationalizes parking and provides a level of upgrading without unnecessarily
changing the street too much. Only a small number of parking spaces are lost, and this is reasonable for the benefit
obtained.

We note that Australian Standard AS2890.2 2020 allows on-street 60-degree angle parking and gives widths, clearance
and the geometry for this.

A clearer demarcation of the cycling lane (e.g. using the green paint used elsewhere in the city) would be a benefit.

Page 146



3 - Options C
C appears to be similar to B but with 45-degree parking. This change is cited as giving improved sight lines for cars
reversing out of angle parking spaces.

From a personal perspective sight lines for reversing a car out of the 60-degree parking (even with our large 4WD) has
not been a problem on Hutt Street . Similarly, when we use the bike lanes, we have not encountered difficulties with
reversing vehicles.

Option C therefore does not seem to offer any significant benefit over B, but parking reduces parking significantly.

4- Option A:
This is almost a “do nothing” option. It seems like a bit of a lost opportunity to make positive change. We don't strongly
object to it but think Option E or B is better.

5 -Option D

It's hard to see much value in this option with both the reduction in parking overall, and also at peak times. The traffic
restriction down to single lanes at certain times seems unrealistic. The significant loss of parking would be of concern to
Hutt St businesses.

Comment on Design Principles
We have looked at the design principles in relation to the Options A to E and provide the following comments:

1. Provide a well-planned street that is welcoming, accessible and comfortable, that balances the needs of
businesses, residents and visitors using all modes of transport and contributes to our well-being and
sustainability goals.

That is all OK but what are the sustainability goals and how they are to be achieved? This is not really explained
anywhere. We hope that might include:

¢ |Improve opportunities for electric vehicle charging. There are no public chargers in the south-east corner at
present. For electric vehicle owners in cottages without driveways or apartments this would be a real benefit.
The charge station(s) do not necessarily need to be on Hutt Street itself, just near to it.

o Reuse of red brick pavers; we like the appearance and functionality these and there are a lot of them with a
high embedded energy content. While it may cost more to take them up, store them and re-use them this
recycling would reduce the overall project carbon footprint.

e Minimize the use of concrete paving. Although it will be essential in some areas concrete has a high carbon
footprint and apart from the reinforcement can't be recycled. Also, it looks terrible when it gets cut up for the
inevitable repairs and replacements of underground services.

o Consider using street furniture and other elements with high post-consumer waste content such recycled
plastic to bollards and seats.

o Don't use those concrete block seats at the South Terrace/Hutt Road corner. They have a high carbon
footprint and can't be recycled. (While they may be flavour of the month with landscape designers at the
moment, they are uncomfortable to sit on and cold and wet in winter. What is wrong with a park bench!)

2. Celebrate and reinforce the existing leafy green streetscape and historic village charm

Agreed, but note that the “historic village charm” comes from preserving the low scale development and heritage
buildings which are under threat from developers’ due to adverse State Government planning policy and actions.

An example of this is the excessive height and adverse impact of the banal multi storey apartment building near the
corner of Hutt and South Terrace. Recently an attractive local heritage listed single storey shop and house (Acacia Arts)
was demolished. (While it was in poor state, that appeared to be a result of a long period of neglect). The impact of
negative development of that kind does more damage than any street upgrades can counter.

3. Rationalise the reallocation of public space from vehicle use (parking and traffic lanes), to achieve a more
equitable allocation of public space and a good balance between transport modes, trees/landscaping, outdoor
dining opportunities, to support businesses and enhance social interactions, and provide safer movement.

Page 147



From our discussion with friends, neighbours and other community members we are not sure this actually reflects what
residents, ratepayers and the general public really want. We think the public space is actually pretty good as it stands.
The idea of a “good balance between transport modes” seems to be an idea coming from outside and we don't believe it
is representative of the community expectations generally.

4. Create a new public ‘heart’ as the epicentre and provide unique experiences ensuring a robust local community

There is no need for a new “heart” here — the old one is just fine! Spare us the “unique experiences”. We just want our
nice local street not to be wrecked by developers.

5. Public art opportunities, activation and improved amenity to support businesses and enhance
the visitor experience, driving future investment and economic uplift.

If the public art provided to date (entry statement and Halifax / Hutt corner) is anything to go by we would be better off
without it. What were they thinking? Can it just be deleted altogether?

Comment on angle parking

In the document titled Engagement Pack there is a commentary on angled parking. We believe this could be misleading
in the Hutt Street situation as it says “motorists leaving 60 degree angle parking are more likely to impact multiple lanes
of traffic”... with a diagram that shows a reversing vehicle crossing two lanes of traffic.

From a personal perspective, sight lines for reversing a car out of the 60-degree parking on Hutt Street (even with our
large 4WD) has not been a problem and you certainly don’t need to reverse into the outer lane. Similarly, when we use
the bike lanes, we have not encountered difficulties with reversing vehicles. We don’t have any access to traffic
accident/incident information but personally we have not been aware of any particular issues in Hutt Street.

We note that Australian Standard AS2890.2 2020 allows on-street 60-degree angle parking and gives widths, clearance
and the geometry for this. It would seem that angle parking arrangement in compliance with this can be readily achieved
without having to change to 45 degrees and that in the provided diagram scaling is wrong or the cycling lane has not
been factored in, or both.

We raised a question on this during the consultation period and received a follow up answer from council staff — in
part...The dimensions are not Hutt Street specific, and the swept path could be more nuanced by vehicle type, motorist
Skill level, and parking bay dimensions...

| p———m—y
P )
5 e

; - = o —
£ T A0 =
Pl 4 AN
60 degree angle parking 45 degree angle parking

Above: These diagrams above provided in the “Engagement Pack” do not appear to accurately reflect the Hutt Street situation.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comment and feedback on the Options presented.

Alistair and Sally N
28/3/25

Page 148



Administrative note: Combined second feedback email below

I am reviewing the Concept Development Consultation material. The information provided
is clear and well presented - Thank you for this.

However I have a couple of concerns.

Angle parking:

In the discussion on angle parking there is a comment and a diagram (60 degree) showing
a reversing car "impacting multiple lanes of road traffic". I have just tried this out (and my
car is a large 4WD) and have found that this is not correct.

It's actually very easy to reverse out into the inner lane without impacting the outer lane - I
think your swept path diagram does not represent the actual road width including the
existing cycle lane. In a passenger car the reversing sight lines are pretty reasonable as
well.

So that raises the question - is the 45 degree parking really that much of an advantage? My
experience was that you achieve better than the 45 degree parking swept path shown with
the current 60 degree arrangement.

Will on-street car parking on Hutt Street remain angle parking?

he future arrangement for on-street car parking will be dependent on which option is progressed to
detailed design. Currently, Hutt Street provides 60-degree angle parking. Motorists leaving 60-degree
angle parks are more likely to impact multiple lanes of road traffic, including unprotected cycle lanes,
with heavily restricted sightlines and visibility. Sharper angle car parking is also harder to enter.

Of the five streetscapes offered, Option C and E include a change from 60-degree angle parking to 45-
degree angle parking which provides improved road safety with better sightlines to oncoming traffic
when reversing out of car parks and limiting reversing into the adjacent lane only.

Option D provides parallel parking which reduces overall parking numbers but offers clear sightlines
along the road reducing the risk of collision for the motorist and other road users, including crossing
pedestrians.

Gl _ - =
60 degree angle parking 45 degree angle parking

Survey.

Question 5:

The options presented here don't appear to be well thought out and I have a concern they
may give misleading results.

Page 149



For example:

- Personally I would like to see parking numbers optimised (e.g.Option B) but it does not
need to be at the highest level (Option A) ?

- "An accessible steet for everyone that improves the pedestrian experience" - it seems that
all options A to E are capable of providing this. Surely accessibility compliance is just a
given - that has to be done anyway, why is it even a question?

- "An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings and outdoor hospitality"
What if you support the outdoor hospitality aspect but don't much like the sound of "...
spaces for events, and gatherings.."?

05. Imagine Hutt Street in 10 years—what’s most important to you?

Please rank the following options from 1 — 5, with 1 being what is most important to
you.

Select one answer only

An accessible street for everyone that improves the pedestrian
experience

A street with on street parking numbers maintained at the highest level

An attractive street with vibrant spaces for events, gatherings and
outdoor hospitality

A greener, cooler street with trees and improved garden amenity

Protected space for people cycling and wheeling

Regards,

Alistair

Page 150



From: M,u;b,agl-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: feedback@huttstreetupgrade.com.au
Date: Monday, 17 March 2025 7:12:42 PM

[You don't often get email ﬁ‘om_. Learn why this is important at
httos://al ! \eriderifibiortion]

To Whom It May Concern

re upgrade Hutt Street

The City seems to be completely unaware of several things,

Hautt street is a major artery to the east side of the city, through to North Adelaide and further afield.
It turns into a near carpark at peak times so anything done to reduce traffic flow is ludicrous.

Strangely if businesses are to survive they need for customers and clients to be able to park, no customers
equals no businesses.
Think of the extraordinary success of Burnside Village!

It is ALREADY very difficult to park in Hutt Street on the weekends and at dinner time if going to a restaurant,
MORE parking NOT LESS is essential.

The obsession with bike lanes is pure folly, there is a perfectly adequate UNDER-USED purpose built bike lane
just a few meters away on Frome.

The existing street scape simply needs more parking, better footpaths, more greenery, better lighting at a low
level, better street furniture, and a coordinated colour scheme restricting the mix of primary colours.

It also need to eliminate kitsch 'installations' such as the coloured fabric sleeves put over bollards, and knitted
decoration on trees and poles, a sign of arrested development and kindergarten mentality.

I suggest that the Council imagine it wanted to operate a successful business in the street and not turn it into a
playground for the “aspirational' and those without business acumen.

Businesses need to be able to operate Monday to Friday. and on the weekends with ease and confidence, the
Council should facilitate this not hinder it.

Kind regards,

vichoe!

Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Alternative parking could easily be created by acquiring and developing sites such
as the ageing Southcott factories in Halifax St and Gilles St. Imagine what could be
achieved by building community recreation centres at those sites combined with
off-street parking — even potential to provide charging facilities for electric cars.

Sites like these represent unique opportunities for a proactive Council to drive
meaningful and lasting change by building facilities which serve the community
and attract visitors.

| would much prefer to see the City of Adelaide focus its attention on developing
sites to attract people to the precinct rather than merely build a transport corridor
for cyclists in the hope that that they will stop to shop or eat.

Council can take confidence from the steps it took in acquiring 88 O’Connell St in
North Adelaide and developing it to suit the needs of the community. What Hutt
Street needs is more of that bold, aspirational vision - just on a bespoke scale.

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute to provide feedback.

Page 154



From: M,amn-

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt Street - Mainstreet Revitalisation Project
Date: Thursday, 20 March 2025 10:52:48 AM

You don't often get email from _ Learn why this is important

Hutt Street - Mainstreet Revitalisation Project

I am a regular pedestrian along Hutt Street and surroundings and have been for more than
30 years. I have been a city resident since 1994. I wonder why we have been offered so
many options.

Option D is closest to recognising the needs of all those who spend time in Hutt Street.
Option D is my choice for what in feedback email address is called an upgrade and in
project heading: Mainstreet Revitalisation Project.

Any amount of money spent on improving city streets and their streetscapes needs to leave
behind the old fashioned notion that it is street parking that makes a city vital. Street
parking clogs up streets. Why do that when the way we shop has changed dramatically,
what encourages us to linger in various precincts to participate in what it has to offer
depends on shade, ambience and walkability and our concerns about pollution have
increased as has the pollution.

Our moving between precincts in the city is enabled to frequent access to Public Transport
generally and especially to the City Connector and Trams. Anecdotal evidence in
conversations with tourists on the Connector and Trams highlights the practicality it
affords people to get around and enjoy the city. As a local I keep wishing for more of these
options - frequency and routes - so that I don’t think twice about going somewhere but just

go.

Street revitalisation projects are better planned with a city wide mindset and a recognition
our streetscapes need to catch up with today's and tomorrow’s reality.

Regards
Marjon

City Resident and home owner

Page 155



From: MichelleF
To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Subject: Concemns Regarding Hutt Street Revitalisation — Impact on Medical Access
Date: Thursday, 20 March 2025 3:03:05 PM

You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important
Hi,

As the owner ofH. a medical practice located atm I would like to
provide feedback on the proposed Hutt Street revitalisation plans. While I appreciate efforts to enhance the
precinct, I am concerned about some of the suggested changes, particularly those that reduce parking and alter
traffic flow.

We believe Options A and B offer reasonable compromises that balance improvements with maintaining
accessibility. However, any other option—especially Option D—would significantly impact our business and
our patients' ability to access essential medical services.

Our practice serves a diverse patient base, including many elderly individuals and those travelling from
regional areas who already find city driving challenging. The proposed reduction in car parking and increased
traffic congestion would make it even more difficult for these patients to attend their appointments. Many of
them also visit local cafés after their appointments, supporting businesses in the area, and this foot traffic would
likely decrease if accessibility worsens.

Additionally. there has been a growing push to establish the city's eastern part as a medical district, yet
removing essential parking without a viable alternative directly undermines this effort. It would also create
additional challenges in attracting and retaining staff who rely on accessible transport options.

I urge the Council to consider the impact on medical businesses like ours, where accessibility is crucial. I
would appreciate further clarification on how these concerns will be addressed in the final plans and whether
alternative parking solutions will be implemented.

I look forward to hearing back from you.

Regards

Michelle-

2]

This cc ication is confidential and intended only for the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. No part of the email should be copied, disclosed or
redistributed without Specialists on Hutt authorisation. If you have received this in error, please notify the sender of its incorrect delivery by reply email or phone
08 8318 0808.

Note: This email is only viewed by a non-clinical staff member. Please do not send clinical queries via email.

Page 156



From: Echo

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Feedback Echo Chen
Date: Monday, 24 March 2025 9:49:27 PM

You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important

Good evening,

I am writing to provide feedback on the proposed upgrades to Hutt Street.
My preferred option is option D, followed by E and C.

I would like to see option D implemented. Option D offers the most comprehensive
upgrade, significantly improving pedestrian and cyclist infrastructure. This option will
support local businesses, encourage active transport, improve road safety, and enhance the
street’s appeal as a key city destination.

Conversely, I strongly oppose options A and B. These options effectively propose no real
change, resulting in no tangible improvements to the streetscape, pedestrian experience, or
local business support. Investing $15 million of council funds into an option that results in
no meaningful upgrades would be a misuse of public resources. The community deserves a
forward-thinking approach that maximises the potential of Hutt Street rather than
maintaining the status quo.

[ urge the council to prioritise options D, followed by E, and C, all of which offer
substantial improvements, and I encourage the council to move forward with one of these
options rather than wasting this important opportunity with option A and B.

Thank you for considering my feedback. I appreciate the council’s efforts in engaging the
community and look forward to a positive outcome for Hutt Street.

Regards

Echo -

Page 157



From: Donald

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt St project
Date: Tuesday, 25 March 2025 4:36:18 PM
You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important
Hello,

| have been a resident in Adelaide's SE sector since 2017 and a regular user of Hutt Street
Services.

We are blessed with numerous fine businesses including cafes, restaurants, pubs, bars,
hairdressers/barbers, supermarkets, post office (Halifax Street), chemist, library and
others, making Hutt St and the SE quadrant a pleasant place to live.

These businesses rely on non-local customers in addition to local residents. Any reduction
in parking will seriously adversely effect these businesses- at a time when hospitality in
particular is struggling.

There is absolutely no need for a dedicated cycle path on Hutt St as the Frome Street cycle
path is only 300m away (1-2 mins by bike) and Hutt St is readily accessed via the bike lane

on Angas Street.

| am a regular user of the existing Hutt St bicycle lane which is perfectly adequate. Cyclists

wishing to avoid motor traffic have the option of Frome St.

Regarding the requirement for open spaces for events / curbside activities, there is
sufficient space on the corner of Halifax and Hutt for pop-up events and activations. In
addition, the temporary use of existing parking spaces outside the Havelock and Arab
Steed Hotels enables them to offer extra seating during special events: street parties,
Fringe, Adelaide 5000, etc. Also the eastern sides of Carrington St and Gillies St can be
closed off for larger events - as has been done before, without significant disruption.

As alocal | am out and about on Hutt St every day and can attest that local businesses do
not need additional curbside space. The footpaths are perfectly adequate as they are.
Removing parking for extra footpath area will not help the hospitality businesses- only
reduce the appeal of Hutt St as a social destination.

The implementation of any other than plan A (basically do nothing) will entail significant
disruption to residents, businesses and commuters for no gain - indeed to their
considerable detriment.

| completed the online survey, but found the structure of the questions unsatisfactory and
at risk of bias. | would be interested to know what professional advice and guidance or
standards were followed in the design of this survey and how much ACC paid for this
questionable exercise?

Page 158



Finally, all the options for Hutt St will cost ratepayers' money. A far better use of the
money would be to offer incentives or support for the existing and new businesses.
Ultimately this will serve both locals and visitors better.

Yours sincerely

Dr Donald-
]

Page 159



18 March 2025

Mr Tom McCready
Director City Services
Adelaide City Council
25 Pirie Street
ADELAIDE S.A. 5000

Dear Mr McCready,

| was not able to attend the meeting convened by the South East City Residents’
Association, of which | am a member (but not a Committee member). | sent my
comments to SECRA before the meeting and | have copied them in italic font below.

| use Hutt Street and its businesses and professional practices almost every day.

| studied and then worked in the City for about 50 years. | have lived in the south-
eastern corner of the City for about the last 7 years. My journeys to university and
work were along Hutt Street or Pulteney Street by public bus or by car. | now walk to
Hutt Street almost daily and drive along it to fulfill family obligations in the suburbs
and for other reasons several times a week. | usually take the Connector bus or one
of several other buses that travel along Hutt Street when | go the CBD or North
Terrace.

The following are the personal comments | sent to SECRA.

| think it is not possible to reconcile the wishes of those who want to keep the parking
spaces we currently have and those who want to reduce parking and make cycling
safer.

“In my opinion, the number of parking places should not be reduced. | believe that
parking close to the shops, cafes, hotels, library, hairdressers, dry cleaners,
newsagent, shoe repairer, travel agent, accountants, medical services and all the
other businesses in Hutt Street is necessary to their viability. These businesses do
not rely just on people who live within walking distance and are well and mobile
enough to walk or cycle there. | know of many people who visit Hutt Street from
Eastern and Southern suburbs either en-route to work or other places or as a special
trip. If they could not get a convenient parking space they would not stop in or come
to Huit Street. Further, there are times of the day when already it is difficult to find a
parking place in or close to Hutt Street.

| agree with reducing the speed limit to 40 kilometres per hour. This would make the
street safer and a little quieter.

Page 160



I agree with the proposal on a trial basis of having two lanes of traffic during peak
traffic times and only one at other times - similar to clear ways as a Council
employee explained to me.

| do not agree with closing U-turn gaps in the median strip. Although it is suggested
that closing them would be safer for pedestrians, | think the onus is on pedestrians
who do not want to, or cannot, cross at traffic lights to take responsibility for their
own safety.

| strongly support the retention of the existing trees. Additional trees would be
beneficial, but | am not sure that there is space for them if parking is not reduced.

I am doubtful about the utility of increasing the width of footpaths to accommodate
more outside dining. | suggested to the Council employee with whom | talked that
the proprietors of the places selling food and beverages be asked whether it would
make much difference to their viability.

| understand that the Council’s proposal is limited to the fairly short distance between
South Terrace and somewhere south of Carrington Street because it to be done as a
trial in the first instance. | would like to see the “rejuvenation” extended to Wakefield
Street eventually.

Incidentally, | like what the council has done to make Hutt Road more attractive and
to create a safer crossing half way along.”

| add that | would like to see the Connector bus service along Hutt Street to the CBD
and North Terrace continued and the use of other bus services encouraged.

Although | have not addressed directly the 5 options the Council has published, please
accept my comments in this form.

Yours faithfully,

Dianne-

Page 161



From: mary

Subject: hutt street
Date: 19 March 2025 at 3:05 pm
To: feedback@hutstreetupgrade.com.au

To whom it may concern

r'm a resident of [l Ade'aide and am responding to your invitation to comment
on the proposed options to redevelop Hutt Street.

| have attended a couple of Adelaide City Council discussion meetings and have studied the
five options the council has outlined and feel strongly that Option A, the minimalist one, is
the preferred one for the following reasons.-

* Option A provides and preserves that maximum parking spaces in Hutt Street.. To reduce
the number of parking spaces would disadvantage offices and businesses in Hutt Street and
create pressure on the already scarce availability for parking in the side streets.

* by adopting Options C, D, and E would not only reduce parking access but by including a
designated cycling track, the width of the roadway for vehicle traffic, which includes public
transport, trucks and emergency vehicles, would be progressively restricted.

*By adopting the proposal for parallel parking would not only reduce parking access, but
reversing into the parking area would inhibit the free flow of traffic along Hutt Street.

Regards

John-

Page 162



Zoom Out

Dear councillors,

| am writing this submission for the Hutt Street Main Street Revitalisation Project to support Option D. | am
asking you to zoom out to look at the wider parking situation in and around Hutt St as well as the opportunities
that will be missed by keeping the status quo.

| think it is fair to say that most people would support Option D if there was no or negligible loss of parking
spaces. But when comparing the options presented, many people would be alarmed to see that council are
contemplating designs that reduce parking from 132 (Option A) to 72 (Option D), or a drop of 45% (60 carparks).

But zoom out...

The councils own supporting document (Hutt Street Precedent Car Parking Map) shows there are 2130
carparks within a 5 minute (400m) walk from Hutt Street. | feel that this is the number that should be
highlighted when considering the car parking changes to the area. When comparing these 2130 close carparks
to the loss of 60 carparks on Hutt St, there is only 2.8% reduction in available carparks in close proximity.
Furthermore, 646 of these 2130 parks are less than a 2minute (125m) walk, with a further 72 remaining on Hutt
Street for the lucky rockstar car parking.

A street that is full of quality shops and services, as Hutt Street is, should have the confidence that customers
will be willing to walk for 2-5 minutes from their cars to their destination (if they can’t park in the 72 on street).

When a street is welcoming, safe and alive with activity, thanks to large pedestrian zones, people won’t hesitate
to walk a few minutes to be a part of the atmosphere. And a good atmosphere helps retain people in the area,
increasing the chance of expenditure in local shops as well as inviting high quality tenants when opportunities
arise.

My business, Peter Rabbit Café, is in a part of the CBD with limited on-street parking. While we do receive a
steady flow of foot traffic, we've noticed that many customers drive in and park in nearby areas. When you offer
a great product and service, people are willing to walk a few extra minutes from their car to enjoy it.

Please zoom out...
And understand everything that you are jeopardising by keeping the status quo (Option A, B & C).

It means missing the opportunity to create a safer, healthier and more sustainable environment. Without re-
balancing the street towards a more pedestrian and cycle friendly street we lose the chance to reduce traffic,
improve safety and encourage physical activity. The street remains less inviting, hindering community
engagement and local business growth.

The status quo sacrifices a future where the street serves more people and promotes a greener, more vibrant
neighbourhood.

Finally, the federal grant money of $7.32million for the Thriving Suburbs Program would surely be at risk,
considering the program is about “community-focused infrastructure which creates and enhances amenity,
liveability and social cohesion”. Not a standard street renewal (Option A, B & C). And as a rate payer, a council
voting against a $7.32 million grant that improves our streets seems finically careless and shortsighted.

Thank you for reading my submission.

Page 163



From: Peter

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Feedback - Hutt Street Revitalisation
Date: Thursday, 27 March 2025 3:45:24 PM

You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important

Hello

I offer the following feedback. I live within 100 metres of Hutt Street between
. I have a morning coffee most days on Hutt Street and regularly use the local
businesses. Cycling is my main form of transport and I encourage bike-friendly initiatives.

In my view:

1. Car parking availability is very important for local businesses. Most people don't go to
Hutt Street for extended shopping, but they stop for a quick coffee or shop at the local
businesses (shoe repair, dry cleaning, newsagent, chemist etc). Those people are generally
not cyclists (eg parents before/ after school drop-off). If they can't easily get a park they
will go elsewhere.

2. Cyclist access to Hutt Street is quite good now eg on the Halifax bike lane or Carrington
Street which is relatively quiet. It is much better than comparable precincts (eg KWR Hyde
Park or Norwood Parade). Cycling on Hutt Street is much safer than those two
destinations.

3. Widening the bike lane may be useful but a protected bike lane is unnecessary, though
that may mean more CBD commuters pass through (but generally not stop). However the
Frome and parklands bike paths mean there are already commuting options. Personally I

normally cycle into the city up Cardwell/Daly as there are no lights and traffic is light.

4. Successful recent businesses like Mascavado and Latteria are not targeting the cycling
crowds, but plenty of cyclists go to Cibo, Biga etc for coffee.

5. Extra footpath dining can be useful for some businesses but this would be better done on
a case-by-case basis (eg removing 2 parks) rather the proposals to reduce parking by 50+.

6. Are there options to purchase nearby property for off-street parking, as has occurred off
KWR Hyde Park.

7. Halifax Street bike lane is generally ok but there are some places that are quite
dangerous (eg near Pulteney Street) as the car lane is narrow (and very narrow for the
Connector Bus). Reducing the width of the median strip near Pulteney would assist.

8. Improving availability of parking off Hutt Street would assist. Currently many of the 2
hour parks on Halifax Street are used by local office workers who move their car ( or
check for tyre chalk). Changing many to 1 hour would help.

9. There are limited bike parking racks available . There are opportunities to increase.

In summary, I think options C, D and E would significantly hurt the vibrancy of Hutt
Street and impact local businesses adversely.

Option B looks OK.

Page 164



I appreciate the intent to improve Hutt Street but funds may be better spent supporting
businesses to move into the precinct.

Regards

Peter -
I

Page 165



From: Mike

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt Street
Date: Friday, 28 March 2025 11:05:15 AM
You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important
Hello

I am a resident and home owner in the south east corner of the CBD. The southern section
of Hutt Street is our local community and so it is great to see that the city is putting serious
thought into its future. Thank you for all the hard work putting the five options together
and for the community consultation.

Option D is the only valid option for a number of reasons. One of the pages of your own
feedback form I just completed demonstrates this quite clearly. It’s the option that clearly
maximises outcomes across all categories.

Option D is the only option that provides best practice, save car parking along the street. It
will improve tree and green space amenity (something that is in critical need across
Adelaide). There are already a few excellent venues, the Arab Steed for example, but Hutt
St is currently quite dead. This is a once in a lifetime chance to rejuvenate a significant
portion of the city not just for the local community but for the whole of Adelaide and for
domestic and international visitors. Why would you not do that ?

I previously lived in Surry Hills in Sydney and witnessed first hand the effects of the
Bourke Street Cycle way. There was considerable opposition from local businesses and
community due to the impact of the loss of parking. The outcome is the complete
opposite. It has created a human friendly environment that has a thriving culture and
amenity for locals and visitors alike. I suspect local businesses have benefited ultimately
and I’m pretty sure none of the local community would want to go back to how it was.

Thanks again for your time and work on this critical project.
Mike

Page 166



To whom it may concern,

| am a 34-year-old mother who lives just off Hutt Street on _ And |

strongly support option D.

| have followed the consultation closely and the conversation seems centred around

the rusted-on ideologies of cycling vs cars.
But has enough thought been given to pedestrians?

As a woman | feel unsafe to walk along sections of Hutt St at night due to bad
lighting. For example, instead of walking to the closer IGA between Halifax and Gilies
St, | often walk north towards the Angus St IGA or drive to Norwood. Surely a Main

Street in our city can offer safety to women at night.

And as a mother of young kids, with a wide pram, | find shopping along Hutt St to be
an uneasy experience. | cannot easily navigate the narrow footpath, and crossing
roads like Carrington between the Havelock and Chianti is risky with its sweeping

turn.
People think the loss of carparks lose customers, but the current footpath and
lighting cause me to shop elsewhere 3-4 times a week. | either walk through the

parklands to Rundle mall or drive to Norwood.

There will still be plenty of parking in the area after the upgrade. It’s time to improve

the street for everyone. Please.

Page 167



From: Leith

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade

Cc: Anne

Subject: Feedback

Date: Friday, 28 March 2025 1:03:19 PM
Hi.

I Leith- and my wife Anne- and are owner occupiers of _

I believe my wife has lodged her opinion under separate cover so please take this as my
opinion only.

We attended several meetings regarding the proposed upgrading of Hutt Street between
South Terrace and Carrington Street.

There were five suggestions made by the council.

If the proposal is too focused on locals living space, we believe the street would become a
walkway with just about all Alfresco cafes.

We believe the traffic flow and parking for businesses are paramount.

Hutt Street has specialist businesses that bring consumers here and they will most likely
have a coffee if they can get a park and don't have to leave within 15 minutes.

A line dividing a small bike lane would be fine.

However, a wider bike lane with its own borders would reduce vehicle road space and
reduce too much parking space.

It would be nice to see some additional facilities for locals but not at the expense of
making the peek traffic worse that what it already is.

We can see how bigger park spaces would make easier parking as it seems more and more
drivers are not very efficient at parking.

Hence widening the park spaces and losing a few (eight is it?) would be acceptable as
people parking could get in and out of the space safer and more quickly.

With all the above in mind, I therefore support version B of the proposals.

We have lived here for years and we support businesses including cafes. We are
commenting based on much observation and extensive experience.

We feel any proposals past B will have a detrimental effect on the street and create other
problems which will not be 'fixable.'

Cheers.
Leith & Anne.
| 7] Virus-free.www.avast.com

Page 168



From: Leon

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt St upgrade feedback
Date: Friday, 28 March 2025 2:46:17 PM

You don't often get email from_. Learn why this is important

Hi, below are my comments and considerations regarding the Hutt St upgrade.

I would like to first give some historical context and perspective to my feedback.

I have lived in Adelaide from 1957 first in Carrington St and then Eastwood area and |
frequent Hutt St often these days.

My feedback is based on what I have seen work over the years and the changes that haven't
worked and so I have documented these.

I have looked at your option A to E and although they are difficult to understand, I think I
get where each is heading. I have no best preference and they all have some value or
problems.

I will outline my comments below:

1/ Traffic on Hutt St needs re-routing somehow to make the street more walkable and for
bikes sort of like a mall.

Cars are an issue and if an underground car park in the park lands could be provided that
could store cars so people could walk to Hutt St and the city.

Obviously disabled people need consideration.

Small buses could be provided as transport on the street and to the city if required.
Traffic noise is a problem that needs solving by removing/reducing traffic.

2/ Improve public transport to city from suburbs to reduce cars to city via Hutt St etc. We
use cars too much mainly because public transport id poor, expensive and infrequent.
Huge improvements are required to make inner city living and visits to the city work
without cars and pollution.

3/ Increase tree canopy, but replace plane trees with fruiting natives or European fruit
trees. Plane trees cause allergic reactions and are top of the list as allergenic trees.

It would be great to have tree canopy from trees with edible fruit rather than just aesthetic
varieties. [ have seen some plantings of Ginkgo and they seem good too.

4/ Promote small shop infrastructure as it used to be in the past with Hutt St as the high
street providing diverse shops selling multiple products like IGA/711 and also specialty
shops like Deli/Grocer/Baker/Butcher etc. These would provide produce and services for
city dwellers within walking distance so they don't need to shop at distant supermarkets by
car or other transport. Many city apartments don't have car parking so cars should not be
required as a normal requirement for city dwellers as they could rely on public transport
and long journey trains. The reduction in use of cars would reduce pollution and people
moving by walking would improve their health and well being.

5/ Regulate development of high rise and infill to slow growth while supporting
infrastructure to cater for the current city population. They need local
shops/childcare/schools/services. There needs to be an integrated approach to work and
living. If people live close to work they save in travel time and can use transport modes

Page 169



other than cars. Some dwellings and apartments are too expensive so we should be
building some smaller footprint affordable buildings that can cater for those with low
budget for rent or purchase. An example is a set of small footprint low rent units in Nelson
Place in the city.

6/ Regulate style of buildings to maintain heritage and also to prepare and mitigate for
worsening climate change.

Buildings must have high rating for passive heat/cooling process. Should include
verandahs for cover and shade.

Street tree/bush canopies rather than the current messy tangle of low rose bushes or high
maintenance lawns and grasses.

Fruit trees and herbs are appropriate as per point 3 above.

7/ Hutt St has an important heritage and migrant history as do the streets that run from it
like Carrington St.

It would be great to feature more of that history in some prominent way and promote the
value of inner city living and community.

There are a few plaques here and there, but it should be possible to have more interactive
items like they do at Port Adelaide for those interested in the history.

Some signs like the new electronic boards with selectable screens would be good and
could be battery and solar powered so no need for wiring.

8/ I know that some people and residents don't like having the homeless in the parks and
don't like the work of the Hutt St Church, but migrants like me understand the value of that
church to the poor and it's role in supporting the down and out people of the city.

We should be funding the church and have more shelters. If you review the history, there
were a lot of shelters in that area including those for women and the poor. The area has
now been gentrified and lost it's ability to house the homeless.

You can't just build and develop a city and regulate it for the rich gentry because the poor
also "live" there and we can't pretend they don't exist!

If we ignore the homeless problem it will just get bigger and cause more pain and suffering
and eventually cost more to deal with in the end.

Happy to discuss further.

Regards

Leon

Page 170



From:

To: Hutt Street-Upgrade
Subject: Hutt Street Revitalization submission from Heather- and Nick- -
Date: Friday, 28 March 2025 2:46:47 PM

Community Consultation

Hutt Street Revitalization Project
GPO Box 2252

Adelaide SA 5001

We support a revitalisation of Hutt Street that improves safety for pedestrians, cyclists, and
motor vehicles, and which allows local businesses to flourish. We have developed relationships
with many local businesses and do not wish businesses to be disadvantaged by any changes to
the street.

If Option D is adopted (as the safest option and the one that provides more outdoor dining space
for businesses that have asked for this in previous consultations, then there could be targeted
parking for specific businesses eg 15-minute parking for the IGA (which already exists), and dry
cleaners (during opening hours), short term parking for the pharmacy during its opening hours.
Perhaps some metered parking to encourage the freeing up of spaces.

Parking in Hutt Street can be, and currently is, shared by businesses given their different opening
times and customer needs. The Council needs to engage closely with businesses, before, during

and after any changes to the street.

There are many places to park within a short walk of Hutt Street. More vehicles could park if
there were marked spaces.

Heather |} and Nick | R

Page 171



SAVE OUR HISTORIC MAINSTREETS INC

Community Consultation

Hutt Street Revitalization Project
GPO Box 2252

Adelaide SA 5001

Email feedback @ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/huttstreet

Save Our Historic Mainstreets Inc. is a network of interested people and
planners who advocate for main streets that are characterful, lively, and
economically vibrant.

INTRODUCTION

Save Our Historic Mainstreets Committee Inc. is delighted that the City of Adelaide is
revitalising four recognised main streets in Adelaide. We especially appreciate the
Market to Riverbank Link and its goal of establishing a vibrant pedestrian and cycling
connection between the Market and the River Torrens, primarily through upgrades to
Bank Street and Leigh Street.

The East End exemplifies our goal with its friendly-scale mix of cafes, restaurants,
bars, and premium shopping, which has emerged from cooperation between the
private and public sectors.

LEGACY OF JAN GEHL

Danish architect Professor Jan Gehl participated in the Thinker-in-Residence
Program in 2002, promoting walkability and the individual use of public spaces. His
report for the City of Adelaide called Public Spaces and Public Lifel commented that

Adelaide has been good at focusing on projects on the riverfront, Victoria
Square and Rundle Mall, but the big message in the report is to look at the
city centre as a whole and how everything fits together,?"

We agree that one of the main tasks for revitalising Adelaide's four main streets is
seeing how everything fits together. The development of the City Plan 2036 provides
the overall structure for Adelaide, introducing the Local Area Framework, which
acknowledges its neighbourhoods, precincts, and main streets.

Hutt Street is one of these main streets.3

11l ars Gemzge presented the concepts underpinning the report in Adelaide. The presentation can
be found at https://courses.washington.edu/gehlistud/gehl-studio/wp-content/themes/gehl-
studio/downloads/Resources/R_lecturelars.pdf.

2 Jan Gehl, Public Spaces and Public Life, City of Adelaide 2002.

3 City Plan 2036 from pages 98 onwards.

Page 172



HUTT STREET

The Save Our Historic Mainstreets Committee submission focuses on the Hutt Street
Concept Development Options Plan (the Concept Plan), which is currently out for
public consultation.

Only one option meets some of the characteristics of Jan Gehl's ideal city, and that is
Option D. Some of these characteristics are listed in a table used in the Hutt Street
Master Plan.* This schema seems to be the foundation for all revitalisation projects
along the four Main Streets developed by the City of Adelaide. A chart matching the
characteristics associated with the Concept Plan with those in the Hutt Street Master
Plan is attached to this submission.

In addition, the Save Our Historic Mainstreets Committee wishes to respectfully
suggest that

e The future management of the Hutt Street Revitalisation should be a
cooperative effort to provide a forum for updating and allowing residents,
visitors and businesses to respond to these and other initiatives that inform
Hutt Street's revitalisation.

A previous Roundtable, established in 2020, played a crucial role in bringing
together all stakeholders on Hutt Street. It successfully addressed the tension
between the Hutt Street traders and the Hutt Street Centre, a testament to its
effectiveness and the positive impact on the local community.

e The Hutt Street Master Plan saw Hutt Street extending from South Terrace to
Bartles Road. This view allowed the Street to be seen and planned as a
whole. For example, pedestrian and cyclist movements, public transportation,
car movements, and parking are all described and tracked along Hutt Street
and its immediate vicinity.

Nevertheless, the Concept Plan released for community consultation focuses
on Hutt Street from South Terrace to Carrington Street, which is commonly
referred to as the "heart" of Hutt Street. Not only does this methodology
override the Master Plan by providing a holistic view, but it also fails to
allocate a budget or a staging plan for the revitalisation project along the
entire street.

e Before committing to any public realm, an upgrade to existing shops and
shopfronts to improve the appeal of Hutt Street to customers. It should be
recognised that the Street has three sides and needs to be viewed more
holistically, including the impact on the two privately owned sides and how
they can be improved.

Given that there appear to be many unknowns about the development of the
Street®, one action the City of Adelaide could take before undertaking a public

4 Hutt Street Master Plan, page 24.
5 These may include but are not restricted to the proposed light rail route along Hutt Street, an
assessment of the stormwater infrastructure, the extent and nature of the footpath uplift, the costs of

Page 173



realm upgrade is to prepare a Code Amendment to make Hutt Street as part
of the Historic Area overlay, from which it is currently excluded.

The recent demolition of 187-189 Hutt Street recognised the vulnerable status
of this historic building. As part of the proposed Code Amendment, all
presently unlisted historic buildings should be protected from demolition
through a Local Heritage listing or identified and mapped as Representative
Buildings. In this way, the demolition of a heritage building should not occur
unless a DA is in place at that site.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Hutt Street Concept Plan. If you
have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. However, all
correspondence should be sent to the Chair.

Yours sincerely

Elizabeth |l for Robert N

Committee member
Save Our Historic Mainstreets Committee

Email

the five options sent out for consultation, the time to be taken for each option to be implemented and
the level of disruption to traders along the Street.

Page 174



G/ T abed

ATTACHMENT 1

Table 1 Comparing the Hutt Street Master Plan (Draft 2021) and the Hutt Street Concept Development Options Plan
(February 2025) with comments from the Save our Historic Mainstreets Inc Committee.

ELEMENTS
IDENTIFIED IN
THE MASTER
PLAN

THE
ASSESSMENT
GIVENTO
HUTT STREET

CONTRIBUTION TO
THE MASTER PLAN
PROVIDED BY OPTION
D

SAVE OUR HISTORIC MAINSTREETS COMMITTEE
COMMENT

promote activity

proposes that additional

High-quality public | OK Yes, the Concept Plan The public realm also encompasses street-level

realm proposes that the public | shopfronts and historic buildings. Allocating funds to
realm widen and help restore frontages to their original state would
declutter the footpaths by | @ssist in retaining the historic characteristics and
replacing the current wbrqncy of the Street.
ones. Raised footpaths For instance, the replacement of verandahs on sh(_)ps
for minor streets increase ar_ound the General Havel_ock Hotel® can be assoqlated

. with both a response to climate change and a heritage

the accessibility of the initiative.
public realm. Provides
new opportunities for
utilising the public realm.

Diverse Poor No, not in the current

commercial mix proposal.

with good

shopfronts

Public spaces that | OK Yes, the Concept Plan

6 Note the footpath requirements for this initiative.




9,1 abed

footpath space will be
available at the
intersections of Halifax
and Gilles Street. The
heart of Hutt Street has
space for small-scale
activities, such as dining
on the side streets,
children's activities,
music, and public art.

Identifiable OK No —the Concept Plan
branding does not address this
issue.
Accessible and Poor Yes, the Concept Plan Better lighting at night would also help make Hutt

safe for all users

emphasises safety.
Parallel parking is the
only option that meets
Austroads Guideline
recommendations,
increasing safety for cars
and their drivers.

Moreover, cycles, e-
scooters, and
skateboards will be
separated from traffic
and pedestrians,
improving safety.

Street safer for visitors.

Uber/taxi stands could be established at night to assist
patrons at restaurants and cafes.

The Concept Plan does not address or implement
aspects of the City Plan 2036, including a projected
population increase (with its impact on parking and
vehicle usage) and the establishment of a light rail tram
along Hutt Street.




/1T abed

Also, minor alterations to
the Street will be made
for traffic changes. For
instance, a slip lane will
be established for
McLaren Street and
Daveer Place.

Green Good Yes, the Concept Plan
proposes improving the
health of street trees and
replacing some trees in
gaps.
Connected, Good Yes — The Concept Plan | The Concept Plan does not extend to the entire length
human-focused concentrates on creating | of Hutt Street, instead confining itself to the areas
with a 'heart'. the ‘heart’ of Hutt Street. | between South Terrace and Carrington Street. Nor
does it stage or budget for the future development of
the revitalisation of Hutt Street.
Celebration of Good No, not addressed in The recent demolition of 187-189 Hutt Street
local and heritage the Concept Plan recognised the vulnerable status of historic buildings.
character We believe demolition should not occur on any site
unless a Development Application (DA) is in place.
Tailored events Excellent No, not addressed in

and activations

the Concept Plan

Stakeholder
collaboration

Excellent (but
omits SECRA)

No ongoing
collaboration or
management of the
Concept Plan is
addressed.

A Roundtable, established in 2020, was instrumental in
bringing together all the various interests around Hutt
Street and provides a possible model for ongoing
collaboration and cooperation.




Email feedback @ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/huttstreet

I s rleased that the City of Adelaide has sponsored a broad consultation on
one aspect of Hutt Street revitalization. il before submitting to the Hutt Street
Concept Development Options Plans (the Concept Plan), held a meeting with its
members on 13 March 2025 to inform this submission. The meeting was attended by
26 members, with three elected members present. Before breaking into groups, Mr
Tom McCready, Director of Infrastructure, and Deputy Lord Mayor David Elliott gave
short presentations.

We know that some residents are content with Hutt Street as it is today. It has been
described as having an attractive "village-like" atmosphere with cafes and
restaurants, day-to-day essential community service, and a broad range of services
and shops.

Some people value the convenience of car parking outside their chosen shop,
service, or restaurant, appreciate the trees shading the street, and while not perfect,
they are happy with the retail mix along the street. These concerns lead them to
options A or B.

On the other hand, some residents seek a revitalization of Hutt Street by developing
the public realm between the buildings.! These residents value separated cycle
paths, continuous development of the greening of the street, enhanced pedestrian
amenity, safe streets through traffic improvement, and the separation of independent
wheeling from pedestrians, all brought together by activities and events. These
aspects of the Concept Plan led them to Option D.

The opportunity to improve and replace the services under the footpaths and roads
is very attractive for the City of Adelaide and is available in Options B-E.

The Il Committee has heard the views of our members and has come to the
view that the majority (of those who have responded to the il committee)
supports Option D. The reasons are

¢ Increased road safety for residents, visitors, traders, and customers.

1 Jan Gehh, Life Between Buildings: Using Public Space.
1

Page 178



e Sufficient parallel car parking in Hutt Street and the surrounding streets for
changed practices reflecting different values about attractive main streets

e Additional greening opportunities.

e Widened footpaths for traders and pedestrians.

e Responsive traffic improvements.

The I committee has encouraged our members to express their views using
emails, filling in the survey, and contributing written submissions that form part of the
community consultation.

Please do not hesitate to contact |Jjjjiiilij should you wish any clarification.

Yours Sincerely

Heather il on behalf of the il Committee

Date 28 March 2025

Page 179



| am a resident of_ just west of Hutt St. On a daily basis | visit the Hutt St area by
foot, by car and also as a cyclist. | have been involved in mainstreet revitalisation projects in
the past and fully support an upgrade to the Hutt St precinct.

My view is the result should be based on a hybrid version with features from each of the 5
options as each have merit and some severe disadvantages.

Comments on each option:
Option A

Revitalizing the precinct should include incentives for people to visiti.e. parking should be as
easy and local as possible. We are a car society despite the minority push for cycling. Lack of
parking will drive people away. Whilst not strictly complying to Australian Standards retain the
132 parks unless an alternative can be found to address the shortfall offered in the other
options.

Replace the existing footpaths not simply random maintenance as suggested in this option.

My personal experience is the current cycle lane is quite adequate with adjacent generous
vehicle lane widths currently and given the main North South cycle corridor for commuters is
promoted as Frome St. The vast majority of visitors to Hutt St will not arrive by bike. Commuter
numbers are low.

Option B

Yes maintain 60 deg parking for convenience which at the end of the day, works. ie maximise
available parking bays.

There is no evidence to suggest widening the cycle lane will add a significant safety benefit.

For safety reasons, do not narrow the current complying 3.5m traffic lanes as suggested to
below ideal Australian Standards for lanes with high traffic flow and with significant bus and
truck use.

Create space for street furniture and community hubs. The wide centre traffic island on the
East side of Halifax St serves no practical purpose. Re align the Halifax lane and add that
space to the South East corner to maximise that as community hub space (often now used for
events/buskers)

New vegetation and greening essential. Throughout the concepts there is no mention of
lighting ? Current street lighting is largely above the tree line and at night the area is almost in
darkness, which could be best described as a boring experience. If Council wishes to enhance
the project area and activate night life, low/mid level ambient lighting is essential in addition to
existing high level street lighting.

Option C

Yes 45 deg angle parking does make it slightly easier to access but unless there is evidence of a
history of safety issues directly attributed to 60 deg, parking along stretch then leave it atis and
maintain parks.

Page 180



Option D

Another protected cycle path is not warranted since Frome street width has been reduced as a
North South bicycle corridor.

Reduced parking will reduce visitor appeal and business will pay the consequence.

Like it or not, Hutt Stis an important North South traffic corridor. Reducing the flow in any way
will lead to further congestion even during off peak times. This restrictive option will prove to be
a disaster and will create safety issues with vehicles reversing to park.

Raised pedestrian thresholds at minor side streets has merit

Again no consideration to low level ambient lighting to enhance the precinct and increase night
time activation.

The cost of providing dedicated right turn slip lanes for Cardwell and Davaar streets is not
warranted. What right turn traffic count studies have been done to support this proposal ?

Closure of the median gap opposite Cardwell St is not warranted. Vehicular conflict is minimal.

The proposal to “sharpen”the left hand turn Halifax into Hutt (South Eastern corner) will not
work. The current restricted intersection access has issues for through traffic if a vehicle in front
wishes to turn left or right and can miss a light cycle. This proposal will make this problem
worse.

Not mentioned, but do not change the light cycles/lane directions at this intersection as per the
Gilles St Pulteney street lights which is now a total disaster for Gilles St through traffic flow and
now dangerous due to lane changing occurring right at the intersection.

| am at a loss to understand why or how this option was even submitted without any common
sense thought about the implications.

OptionE.

Unwarranted protected cycle path which is at the expense of traffic flow. Decreases road safety
by reducing the lane width to below the ideal Australian standard of 3.5m for roads with truck
and significant bus use .

Reduces available parking bays.
No consideration to low level ambient lighting to enhance the precinct.

Even further reduces intersection access on Halifax South Eastern corner. Even less workable
than Option D.

lin This proposal there is minimal safety buffer on Hutt between left lanes and rear of parked
cars. Currently significantly greater than what is proposed.

Raised threshold for Cardwell street increases safety for pedestrians at this narrow exit. point.

Widening of selected footpaths good in theory but not practical given the bigger picture use
requirements of Hutt St ie it is a main traffic corridor. Leave centre medians as they are, there
are no obvious issues. A raised pedestrian threshold at Cardwell street has merit.

Page 181



Summary Comments

| am disappointed the survey promotes 5 distinct limiting options. There should have been a 6™
option to cherry pick positive ideas from each of the 5 options listed, not one option is the ideal
solution.

I am very puzzled thatin a project to revitalise and reactivate Hutt St there is zero consideration
in the scope of works shown in the options for night time street use. As mentioned above, the
current street lighting (which needs to retained) is largely above the trees during summer
months and inadequate for an active main street environment. The street level ambience at
night at present is appalling , yet there is no mention of any proposals? There is a real
opportunity to make a night time statement along this section of the street through low/mid
level lighting.

Retain the 60 deg angle parking to preserve maximum parking opportunities.

The current cycle lane is quite adequate thus maintaining 3.5m width traffic lanes for safety.
Maximise new vegetation and greening and replace footpaths to better suit current/ future use.
Create and maximise community mini hub areas for meeting places/small events/buskers etc.

Highlight the Council Hutt St Library by entry statements, entry lighting and a community event
noticeboard as a community drawcard.

Increase bicycle stands near café areas.

Highlight pedestrian crossover points on the centre median, cant see any on the 5 options.

| am happy to discuss any issues further and look forward to community/business consultation
on the final option before it goes to Council for endorsement.

Regards Anthony-

Page 182



From: o

Sent: Friday, March 28, 2025 2:53 PM
To: Tanya Press <T.Press@cityofadelaide.com.au>

c.: I

Subject: Hutt Street Revitalisation Concerns,

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Tanya,
Can you please forward the below email to the relevant people involved in the Hutt

Street Revitalisation Project, and please cc' both Richard (his emails are included)
and myself so that they can direct all future correspondence to ourselves.

Thank you

Page 183



To whom it may concern,

| am writing to express my concerns about the recently proposed traffic
management measures on Hutt Street. While | appreciate the intention behind
these changes, there are several critical issues that remain unaddressed, which
could negatively impact business revenue and create significant safety risks for all
network users.

1. Traffic Modelling and Assumptions: The proposal claims that these measures
will reduce through traffic on city streets; however, no supporting traffic modelling
has been provided. This lack of data undermines the validity of the proposed
assumptions, particularly regarding their impact on local businesses during and
after construction. Many businesses depend heavily on vehicle traffic, making it
crucial to assess how these changes may affect them.

Additionally, as part of the proposed upgrades has any modelling been done to
evaluate existing turn lane requirements and whether they provide adequate
storage lengths for proposed traffic volumes?

2. Support for Local Businesses: While the proposal suggests an anticipated
increase in foot traffic, there is insufficient information regarding the sources of this
increase and how it will directly benefit local businesses. Furthermore, specific
strategies to support these businesses during construction and address visibility
reductions due to decreased vehicle traffic have not been adequately
communicated.

3. Safety and Crime Considerations: The proposal references crash statistics, but
it lacks information related to crime, particularly concerning the Hutt Street Centre.
Poor lighting currently contributes to safety issues; therefore, a thorough lighting
assessment is necessary to ensure compliance with current standards and align
with the surrounding Department for Infrastructure and Transport (DIT) roads, as
has been done with upgrades to roads such as King William Road.

Additionally, given the expected increase in foot traffic, what measures are being
undertaken to ensure the safety of patrons who may be (and are currently)
apprehensive about walking in certain sections of Hutt Street?

4. Geometric Cross-Section Values: While the memo claims that minimum
geometric cross-section values endorsed by DIT and the public transport authority
have been adopted, these values conflict with DIT’s own standards regarding
minimum lane widths for inner urban roads, as outlined in the Road Design Master
Specification RD-GM-D1.

The Master Specification stipulates that kerbside lanes adjacent to bicycle lanes
should be a minimum of 3.4 meters for roads with a speed limit of less than 60
km/h. However, council's proposal opts for minimum values for low-speed, low-
traffic roads, which do not suffice given current traffic volumes and road network
requirements (e.g., adjacent angle parking and bicycle lanes).

This guidance also specifies desirable cycle lane widths between 1.2 and 1.5

Page 184



meters for inner urban roads (non-freight routes) with a speed limit of less than 60
km/h.

Can council clarify why vehicle through lanes have been minimized while providing
cycle lanes wider than what is specified in the state design guidelines?
Additionally, turn lane width dimensions have not been documented.

Furthermore, dimensions for the depth of the proposed angle parking have not
been provided, raising questions about compliance with the Austroads Guide to
Road Design (AGRD) Part 3, figure 4.54 and 4.55.

It would be beneficial for road upgrades such as these, that the designs are
reviewed under the same independent review process followed within DIT to
ensure compliance with the relevant standards.

5. Safety of Bus Operations: The NHVR database indicates that Hutt Street
network is designed for controlled-access buses up to 14.5 meters long. Given
that standard bus widths are approximately 2.6 meters, the proposed lane width
reductions could compromise safety due to insufficient travel clearance.

To prioritize public safety, it is essential that council reconsider the proposed
dimensions, taking into account current and projected traffic, parking, and
pedestrian volumes.

Moreover, in the options where a single lane is provided, there are no indented
bus bays to facilitate traffic flow. If a bus stops during peak times, is delayed, or
breaks down, there will be no room for other traffic to maneuver safely around it.
This poses a safety risk for all road users and could impede emergency vehicles.

Furthermore, cyclist counts indicate approximately 150 cyclists travel on Hutt
Street daily, a stark contrast to the 23,000 vehicles that use the road. How can the
council justify a reduction in road safety for the predominant road users given
these numbers? Even if cyclist counts were to triple, it would still not validate the
reduction in road widths or associated standards.

6. Parking: All five options propose a significant reduction in parking availability.
Has the council considered removing permit zones on adjacent side streets to
accommodate overflow parking? This action could help alleviate pressure on local
businesses.

While five options have been presented, our preference is Option A, as it appears
to minimize disruption to parking and road widths while providing a suitable cross-
section for an urban road of this scale. Rather than spending unnecessary funds
to reduce the roadway's cross-section, it would be more beneficial to upgrade the
existing streetscape (e.g., DDA-compliant ramps, enhanced footpaths, improved
lighting, and adequate pedestrian crossing points). These improvements would not
only enhance the streetscape but also provide additional safety benefits.

Thank you for considering these concerns. | look forward to your response.

Regards,

Page 185



Peta [l and <o |

Karl

Page 186



From: Admin

Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 5:10:04 pm

To: Tanya Press <T.Press(@cityofadelaide.com.au>
Subject: RE: Hutt Street - What's on April 2025

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

HI Team

We do not agree with the parallel parking concept in Option D and would like this option
to be deleted from any further considerations of the upgrade of Hutt Street.

We believe that the business community is already suffering and needs to be bolstered
rather than hamstrung with limited parking opportunities for their clients.

Regards

From: Tanya Press <T.Press@cityofadelaide.com.au>
Sent: Thursday, 27 March 2025 4:59 PM

Subject: Hutt Street - What's on April 2025
Importance: High

Hi there,

Just a friendly reminder that there are a few projects open. Feedback is incredibly valuable,
and | encourage you to take some time to review and share your thoughts.
Thank you!

Hutt Street - Main Street Revitalisation

We're seeking community feedback on five concept development options for Hutt Street,
between South Terrace and Carrington Street — the area covered by the Hutt Street
Revitalisation Project.

Page 187



Your input will help us understand what you want to see for the future of Hutt Street and
inform the next stage of the project design. Closes 5.00pm on Friday 28 March 2025.

Submit Feedback: Hutt Street - Main Street Revitalisation | Our Adelaide

Old Crock’s Run Event

We're seeking community feedback on Proposed Temporary Road Closure of Hutt Street
on Sunday 4 May 2025 between 7am to 11.30am.

The Old Crocks' Run, organised by the Sporting Car Club of South Australia Inc., celebrates
the rich history of motoring by showcasing vintage vehicles, including pre-1935 cars,
commercial vehicles, and motorbikes. The event organiser has chosen Hutt Street as the
preferred start location to honour the tradition of the original rally that also started in this
location in 1934. They will temporarily close a portion of Hutt Street, between Angus
Street and Halifax Street (eastern side).

The event includes around 150 cars assembling on a section of Hutt Street prior to the start
of the annual Old Crock’s Run to Glenelg.

This event is expected to bring significant economic returns to local businesses in the area,
benefiting from the increased foot traffic and community engagement.

Submit Feedback: Old Crock’s Run Event | Our Adelaide

Make Music Day

The City of Adelaide is now seeking expressions of interest from venues to host a Make Music
Day gig and performers to play micro-gigs to small but appreciative audiences.

We will match performers with venues and help promote the festival to boost attendance.
These gigs will feature multicultural, young and diverse musicians, providing access to venues
and audiences they wouldn't normally play for.

Expressions of interest close Monday 21 April 2025.

Financial support is available — for further information: Make Music Day - Expression of

Interest | City of Adelaide

AFL Gather Round

Thursday 10 April - Sunday 13 April 2025

Expect non-stop city wide action over four days as Adelaide becomes the centre of footy
fever during the 2025 AFL Gather Round, when all 18 AFL clubs descend upon South
Australia for round five of the Toyota AFL Premiership Season.

It's time to gather your crew and lace up your boots—there’s so much to see and do in
Adelaide during Gather Round. Enrich your stay and discover more about:

Here For a Good Time? Gather Your Crew

Whether you're here for the goals or the good time (or both!), you can find an array of
experiences to enjoy pre- and post-match, special dining offers, and live game-day
promotions in our city neighbourhoods.

Each corner of the city tells its own story, inviting you to be part of the vibrancy.

Experience Adelaide | City South East & Hutt Street

Tanya Press

Place Partner - City South East
Place & Event Experience

7th Floor 25 Pirie Street
Adelaide, South Australia, 5000
M. +61481066257

F. +61882037005

E. T.Press@cityofadelaide.com.au

Page 188



Administrative note: Late submission

Community Consultation

Hutt Street Revitalization Project
GPO Box 2252

Adelaide SA 5001

Email feedback @ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/huttstreet

| am pleased that the City of Adelaide has sponsored a broad consultation on one
aspect of Hutt Street's revitalization. | am sharing with you my opinions on the Hutt
Street Concept Development Options Plans (Concept Plan)

My initial comments focus on the process, and | will then proceed to the content
related to the five options outlined in the Concept Plan.

PART ONE
1.1 Management of the Hutt Street Revitalisation

Reconvening the Hutt Street Roundtable (or a similar forum) could become part of
the Community Engagement Framework, as it facilitates community participation in
decision-making by ensuring that community members are aware of significant City
of Adelaide decisions in advance and can provide input. It can also support
substantial plans and strategies under consideration to ensure cohesion, clarity, and
a consistent narrative for the community.!

The new Hutt Street Roundtable could be refined to finalize revised terms of
reference and membership to reflect the new role of the Roundtable. Meetings would
be convened at critical points during the project implementation and on an as-
needed basis when necessary. The budget implications are negligible due to the
Roundtable’s voluntary nature.

Similar groups could be established for other Main Street developments if required.

Recommendation 1: Roundtable Mark 2 should be established to advise
and assist in managing the Hutt Street revitalization project.

1.2 Staging the Hutt Street Revitalization Project

The draft of the Hutt Street Master Plan saw Hutt Street extending from South
Terrace to Bartels Road. This view allowed the Street to be seen and planned for as
a whole. For example, pedestrian and cyclist movements, public transport, car
movements, and parking are all described and tracked along the Street.

An example is rescoping a cycle path element in options B to E. The initiative ends
at Carrington Street, whether placed on the expanded footpath (Option D) or located
on the road (Option B). Cyclists and wheeled vehicles will have to return to the
existing format after Carrington Street instead of carrying these initiatives to the
whole Street.

1 City of Adelaide committee papers,16 April 2024.
1

Page 189



No budget, commitment, or timeframe has been given to expand all or some of the
initiatives found in the Concept Plan to fulfil the promise evident in the Hutt Street
Master Plan.

| suggest that the entry statement could be viewed as Stage 1, the revitalization
project for the "heart" of Hutt Street, as Stage 2, and then the City of Adelaide could
develop further stages, costs, and time frames before implementing the preferred
option.

Recommendation 2: The City of Adelaide should describe and fund
further stages to redevelop Hutt Street, allowing for the implementation
of the Master Plan, which examines Hutt Street from South Terrace to
Bartels Road.

PART TWO
Moving now to the content of the Concept Plan
NEXT STEPS REGARDING STAGE TWO

The final recommendation suggests that the City of Adelaide could take two
directions as the decision maker. They are

OPTION 1 - SHORT-TERM IMPROVEMENTS TO HUTT STREET

e Option A/B is supported by retaining 132/112 parking bays, repairing,
maintaining and cleaning the existing footpath, and enhancing tree surrounds
where possible.

e AND improving existing public realm street furniture, bike parking, lighting,
scooter parking, and electric bike parking bays.

¢ AND the remaining budget is to be allocated to invigorate heritage buildings,
many of which are in poor condition along Hutt Street, while also seeking a
Code Amendment.

OPTION 2 —= STRUCTURAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HUTT STREEt

However, Option D (parallel parking) and Option E (changed angle parking) is
recommended for its future perspective as it

o Best aligns with previous community consultations and the Lord Mayor's
Roundtable recommendations.

o AND it may enable businesses to have more opportunities despite some initial
disruption.

o AND it should improve the safety of residents and visitors (safer footpaths and
roads through traffic calming) and for cyclists and other wheeled personal
transport (with improved cycle lane)

o AND allows for additional greening initiatives along the Street.

o AND allows verandahs to be replaced on heritage buildings (Option E).

Page 190



This option also implements the best thinking about improving the livability of
residents in changing circumstances, which is foreshadowed in the City Plan 2036.

As such, it is the preferred option.
Recommendations 3 The preferred options are Options A/B or D/E,

depending on the intent.
Some background to the Concept Plan is provided. Please do not hesitate to contact

me should you wish any clarification.

Yours Sincerely

Elizabeth NN
.
I

Date 28 March 2025.

Page 191



Attachment 1
THE BACKGROUND
2.1 STREET CHARACTER

Any consideration of the revitalization of Hutt Street should be based on retaining its
attractive "village-like" atmosphere, with cafes, restaurants, and day-to-day essential
community services alongside a broader range of services and shops. These are
located on a green, leafy, wide road with many historic buildings, business premises,
and community services on both sides.

There is considerable community support for retaining the character of Hutt Street,
as acknowledged by the first Lord Mayor's Roundtable, subsequent Community
Engagement events, and community surveys.

2.2 ENTRY STATEMENT - STAGE ONE

The State Government commitment of $3m was for an entry statement linking near
southern suburbs to Hutt Street. This work occurred through 2024.

2.3 THE MASTER PLAN FOR HUTT STREET
2.3.1. Principles

Based on research initiatives dating back to 2013 and more recent community
consultations, the City of Adelaide approved the 2022 draft Master Plan guided by
the following principles.

e Provide a well-planned street.

e Celebrate and reinforce the existing leafy green streetscape.
e Establish a business and retail identity

e Rationalize the reallocation of public space from vehicle use
e Create a new public heart

e Public art opportunities, activation and improved amenities.

10 Key Ingredients of a Main Street was a reference table in the draft of the Hutt
Street Master Plan, which assessed these characteristics. It appears to reflect Jan
Gehl's, an Adelaide-based thinker, innovative work on the importance of people in
the city.?

ELEMENTS ASSESSMENT | POSSIBLE IMPROVEMENTS

IDENTIFIED IN THE GIVEN IN THE | IMPLEMENTED THROUGH THE

MASTER PLAN MASTER CONCEPT PLAN (OPTION D)
PLAN

High-quality public realm | OK Yes

Diverse commercial miz | Poor No

with good shopfronts

Public spaces that OK Yes

promote activity

2 Hutt Street A Master Plan, page 24.

4

Page 192



Identifiable branding OK No
Accessible and safe for | Poor Yes
all users

Green Good Yes
Connected, human- Good Yes
focused with a 'heart'.

Celebration of local and | Good No
heritage character

Tailored events and Excellent No
activations

Stakeholder Excellent Yes, but not in the long term
collaboration

When only looking at ‘public realm' actions to improve Hutt Street, it should be
acknowledged that it has three sides and needs to be looked at more holistically,
including the impact upon the two privately owned sides and how they can be
improved.

2.3.2 Budget allocation

The City of Adelaide placed an amount in the city's 202/2026 budget for the Hutt
Street revitalization works. At its meeting on 27 June 2024, the City of Adelaide
approved an indicative forward estimate (new & upgrade) within the Long-Term
Financial Plan for Hutt Street of $2.5 million for detailed design occurring in 2024/25
and $10 million for construction occurring in 2025/26 and 2026/27." 3

It could have been helpful to residents and traders if the options presented in the
Concept Plan had been costed. For instance, what is the difference in cost between
Options B and D? Additionally, some work is affecting the Hutt Street Master Plan,
which has not yet been finalized and may impact the project's cost. For instance, the
renewal of stormwater facilities along Hutt Street is still under investigation.

2.3.3 Car Parking

It was apparent from the early stages of the Hutt Street Master Plan's development
that the issue of car parking would be contentious. Unsurprisingly, some city
residents and businesses in the southeast part of Adelaide are still divided when
selecting the appropriate options. Several local meetings were held on the Concept
Plan to gauge the community response, which included comments such as

e A more significant number of parks along Hutt Street means greater
convenience for residents in getting coffee and having social interactions.
Additionally, it enables trips to dry cleaners and grocery stores, where
managing heavy or awkward bags may be necessary, particularly among an
ageing population.

¢ Residents also wished to indicate their support for the traders and the
recognition that they are an essential part of Hutt Street.

3 City of Adelaide Council Minutes.

5

Page 193



e On the other hand, those supporting fewer car parks allow greater use of
footpaths by some businesses and a separate bikeway to be used by other
wheeled transport ie scooters, skates, skateboards and electric bikes.

e Continuous footpaths across minor street entrances, such as Mc Laren Street,
would introduce some level of traffic calming. Parking along Hutt Street would
not be allowed in this area when traffic is

e Improved protection of the street trees would occur with all options, with a
greater ability to do so with those with fewer car parks.

2.4 ELEMENTS LOST FROM/NOT ADDRESSED BY THE HUTT STREET
MASTER PLAN

Several elements are not addressed in the Concept Plan, some of which feature in
the Hutt Street Master Plan. They are

o Recognition of First Nations and, in particular, the Kaurna peoples.

o More road calming strategies, including but not constrained to

o Reduction of the speed limit. This has become a common
practice among neighbouring councils advocating road safety. 4
o Traffic lights that are responsive to pedestrians/cyclists.

o Heritage buildings. The recent demolition of 187-189 Hutt Street
recognized the vulnerable status of these buildings. Before committing to
any public realm upgrade, the Council should prepare a Code Amendment
to make Hutt Street part of the Historic Area overlay, which they are
currently excluded.

As part of this Code Amendment, all presently unlisted historic buildings
should be protected from demolition through Local Heritage listing or
identified and mapped as Representative buildings.

The City Plan 2036 indicated a rise in population in the SE of the city. The City Plan
2036 notes that this increase in population will impact Hutt Street as the existing
public transport is poor and can be improved by expanding the existing light rail
system (which will complement the existing free City Connector bus service).®> Early
planning suggests it will operate along Hutt Street and not impact its green canopy. It
may, however, lead to greater density along this transport hub. 6

2.5 FEDERAL GOVERNMENT'S CONTRIBUTION.

The Federal government has announced a grant to the City of Adelaide project
(based upon Option D) of $7.32M from its Thriving Suburbs program. This grant
'drives urban economic prosperity by providing access to funding for community-
focused infrastructure projects throughout Australia’'s urban, suburban, and peri-
urban communities'. ’

4 Re Unley Council's recent decision see indailysa.com.au/news/just-in/2025/02/11/unley-road-speed-
limit-changes-tomorrow.

5 City Plan 2036, Page 84.

6 City Plan 2036, Page 87.

7 Obtain further details at https://business.gov.au/grants-and-programs/thriving-suburbs-program.

6

Page 194



The City of Adelaide is congratulated for seeking outside funding sources for its
activities.

Page 195



Administrative note: Late submission

To: Adelaide City Council

Subject: Objection to Proposed Hutt Street Car Park Restructure

Dear Council Members,

| am writing as a long-term resident of the area to express my strong opposition to the proposed
Hutt Street restructure that would significantly reduce car parking in favour of expanded pedestrian

areas, social spaces, and a new bicycle lane.

I have lived in this neighbourhood for over 20 years. | am not a business owner, but | care deeply
about the vibrancy and character of Hutt Street and the wellbeing of the local community. Over the
past few weeks, | have personally spoken with many, many of the business owners on Hutt Street.
The overwhelming response been opposition to the plan. Their view is clear and consistent:

removing car parks will drive customers away and seriously damage their businesses.

The Council believes this plan will enhance vibrancy - but the people whose livelihoods depend on
the street say otherwise. Many businesses rely on customers who make short, spontaneous visits -
"drop in and drop out." Reducing access by car will reduce these visits and erode the street's

economic life.

Furthermore, the proposed bicycle lane is unnecessary. There is already a well-established, under-
utilised bicycle path one street to the west. It services large office buildings, not small independent
retailers. Adding a second lane on Hutt Street duplicates existing infrastructure and does so at great
cost to the businesses who rely on car access. The volume of bicycle traffic on Hutt Street is
currently low and does not justify this intervention.

In addition, Hutt Street already has ample green space, including the wide median strip with its
mature plane trees - a central, attractive feature that contributes to the street's character. There is

no pressing need
Page 196



to add further greenery at the cost of essential infrastructure like parking.

Bluntly, this is a waste of millions of dollars and a misguided plan that risks damaging, not
enhancing, the street's vitality. If there are funds available for public amenity, a far better use would
be investing in the surrounding parklands - adding tennis courts or other recreational facilities that
would benefit the wider community.

While | am pro-development and welcome thoughtful investment in our city, this proposal is a step
backward. It prioritises form over function, and ideology over lived reality. | urge the Council to
reconsider before real and lasting damage is done to one of Adelaide's most cherished mixed-use

streets.

Sincerely,

Greg I
I
I

Page 197



Administrative note: Late submission

From: Chorles

Sent: Friday, 4 April 2025 2:19 PM
To: Anna Deller-Coombs <adellercoombs@urps.com.au>
Subject: Hutt Street Masterplan i

Information Classification: Protected

Good morning Anna,

Thank you for the opportunity to participate in the workshop on 19 March on the Hutt Street
Revitalisation project.

Further to our comments on the day, a summary of our review is provided below:

Hutt Street (Carrington Street — South Terrace)

Page 198



¢ A review of SA Police casualty crash history for this section of Hutt Street for the
past ten years of available data (2014-2023) highlighted the following key
findings:
o 33 casualty crashes occurred on Hutt Street between Carrington Street and
South Terrace.
o 91% of casualty crashes occurred at intersections.
o The casualty crash types were right turn (13), hit pedestrian (9), side swipe
(5), right angle (4) and hit fixed object (2) crashes.
o 64% of casualty crashes involved vulnerable road users.
o Cyclists were involved in four of the right turn crashes as well as four of the
side swipe crashes.
o In many crashes where a vehicle collided with a pedestrian, the vehicle was
turning onto Hutt Street from a side road.

o With respect to the design options proposed, RAA considers that the current
Option E provides the most effective balance of the proposals discussed as it
improves the environment for cyclists, pedestrians and amenity, whilst minimising
impact for traffic movements and parking in this section of Hutt Street.

 RAA recommends that the project should also consider improving safety at Hutt
Street intersections and crossings, particularly to mitigate collisions with
vulnerable road users. Accordingly, the following treatments could be considered
to improve conspicuity and safety for cyclists and pedestrians:
o install raised threshold treatments at intersection crossings,
o install countdown timers for pedestrian crossing movements,
o control turn movements (left/right turn arrow installation and changes to
phasing, including pedestrian head-starts),
o design on-street bicycle lanes to continue through intersections,
o provide areas for cyclists to store at intersections (including when
performing a non-conventional right turn),
o investigate opportunities to install protected intersection design, an example
of which is shown at Albert St / Landsdowne St in Melbourne

o Safe Systems Solutions provides some information on the benefits of protected
intersections, including reducing turning speeds, improving sight lines and
separating road users.

T BT S T M

BEFORE

Page 199



Regards
Charles

I

Page 200



S/03/2s - FuSINESS oY)

Administrative note:

S LMKSt ON- One of the two pieces
of feedback- Late

submission

WRITTEN

Subject: Strong Opposition to Hutt Street Revitalisation Proposal - Impact on Business

Viability

Dear Council

We, the business owners, operators, and stakeholders of Hutt Street, strongly object to the
proposed revitalisation plan due to the devastating consequences it will have on our
businesses and community. While we support thoughtful urban renewal, the removal of nearly
60% of parking spaces (from 131 to 57) is unacceptable and will significantly reduce turnover
by at least 40% for businesses that rely on customer accessibility.

Key Issues with the Proposal:

1. Severe Business Impact -Loss of Trade & Clientele

o]

Many Hutt Street businesses depend on customers who drive to access
services.

IQMS has already lost a client who has moved north due to concerns over
customer parking. Their clients visit weekly and are not city-based, meaning
they cannot rely on walking or cycling to access their services.

If customers cannot park, they will not come, and businesses will continue to
relocate or shut down.

2. Bicycle Lanes Offer No Value to Retail & Hospitality

o

The assumption that increased bicycle access will support retail and hospitality
is flawed.

Hutt Street is not a cycling destination, and riders do not typically frequent
local businesses in a way that sustains long-term trade.

Bicycle lanes in other parts of the city, such as Frome Street, have been a
disaster, leading to congestion, confusion, and loss of business.

3. No Meaningfullncrease in Public Activities

o]

The council has not outlined what “public activities” will increase as a result
of this plan.

The reality is that Hutt Street is not a European city centre with naturally high
pedestrian volumes—this is Adelaide, Australia, where retail success is reliant
on vehicle access.

The proposed changes fail to attract additional foot traffic but instead deter
existing customers who have supported Hutt Street businesses for years.

4. Public Realm Upgrade - Fine in Theory, Flawed in Execution

o Aesthetic improvements are welcomed, but the fundamentalrequirement for

business success is accessibility.




If the street looks better but customers cannot find parking, they will simply
avoid the area.

The council must clarify exactly how the public realm will be upgraded in a
way that genuinely increases foot traffic rather than just restricting vehicle

access.
Alternative Solutions - What Needs to Be Done Instead

If the goal is to support businesses while improving Hutt Street, we urge the council to

consider the following:
£2 Maintain and optimize existing parking spaces instead of removing them.

&2 Enhance streetscaping and pedestrian experience without sacrificing accessibility.
Introduce short-term parking solutions to allow for quick customer turnover without

reducing overall availability. (2 hrs min)
7 Improve public transport access rather than forcing reliance on cycling infrastructure that

does not align with business needs.
§7 Consult with business owners properly and conduct a realistic economic impact study

before implementing changes that drive businesses away.
Final Statement - Immediate Reconsideration Required

This proposal, in its current form, will devastate the Hutt Street economy. It is deeply
concerning that the council is willing to repeat the failures of Frome Street, ignoring the clear
warnings from business owners who understand their customers far better than urban

planners do.

While a better-looking Hutt Street is welcome, a dead Hutt Street full of empty shops and
struggling businesses is not.

We demand that the council rethink this strategy before it is too late.

Page 202






v0z abed

We - Horr S1 OpGamsSAN oS HBLE Soug T L@.@@l Uouice

Hutt Street < 2enooc
Access and Safety Information

Hutt Street contributes to the vibrancy of our city as a visitor and community destination and is a
popular commuter route for motorists accessing the CBD. During peak hours, Hutt Street facilitates
just over 15,000 vehicles movements at the southern end per day. At the northern end, vehicle
movements increase to over 23,000 vehicles per day.

What has shaped our design intent from an access and safety
perspective?

As part of master planning and early site investigations, we have collected a range of information.

This existing information is important and provides insight into current access and safety, however
other factors, such as strategic plans, have been considered as part of the development of the concept
development options and more specifically, proposed design elements that are aimed at improving
accessibility and safety. As part of the Council's endorsed City Plan (2024) one of the future investment
opportunities for Local Area 11: Hutt Street (page 188) is:

*  Upgrade the Hutt Street main street including safe pedestrian crossing and conditions
for walking, wheeling and cycling, review of angled parking and road function, and support for
economic and business trading.

The City Plan also has four priorities being:
. Priority 1: A Greener Cooler City
. Priority 2: Transport Diversity
. Priority 3: A City of Neighbourhoods
. Priority 4: Housing Diversity for a Growing Population

As part of Strategy 2 a key recommendation s the development of an Integrated Transport Strategy
(ITS). Various discussion papers have been completed that provide direction in developing an ITS. These

are available at the following link: M QT h‘ Ut STO-BEJ/

One of the ITS discussion papers is titled Cycling & Cycle Parking. The following is an excerpt from this
paper:

Integrated Transport Strateqy | Our Adelaide

"Providing improved cycling facilities will give people safer and more equitable choices about how they
travel to, from, and within Adelaide. It will contribute to improving the overall liveability for our city for
everyone. More people cycling more often in Adelaide will create numerous benefits:

Public health and wellbeing
* Better physical health and reduced risk of serious illness

Improved mental health and wellbeing

1S Ok c:yQ ’\'D(_‘}C‘\_ LN&LL\ [’{L)TT'ST QE?%-{TLA

Transport and urban liveability

B\&S; resS LLQS _
TA YOk

*  Lower travel costs and shorter travel times

*  Reduced network congestion

«  Safer streets L D

Environmental IM=p ﬂ'ﬂ-K! W S
+  Decreased carbon emissions
*  Improved air quality

Equity, access and inclusion o /NCOR ) T - ﬂ' SS5ESS mMouT

*  Increased social participation

* Improved transport options for those unable to drive, such as children, the vision-

MH‘U:H’ILHM_
I~ W J QED.«_:.(_&‘J ToRwevec

impaired, and the elderly
Economic
*  Increased economic output per capita
. Reduced infrastructure maintenance
*  Reduced public health system costs”
Council is committed to delivering on our endorsed strategic plans and aligning with the South

Australian Road Safety Strategy 2024, which notes that local government as road managers, have a
“shared responsibility for a safe road environment for all road users”,

Finally, there is a large proportion of people who are interested in cycling, but don't feel safe enough
to do so. Research indicates that people demonstrate a strong preference for protected cycle lanes
that provide continuous protection and safety throughout their journey, particularly in streets with

large volumes of car traffic. @
U+ oF DATE

What information have we collected?
Master Planning Access and Use Surveys

As part of early planning and site investigations, Council collected a range of information to better
understand the way people get to and from Hutt Street,

Surveys were completed to document pedestrian movements, cyclist movements, vehicle movements,
parking usage and public transport use. This data was summarised and reported in the Master Plan for
Hutt Street. See pages 6-10 at the back of this document.

’I/MIS (RS Qus.’\"o_ﬁuﬂ Nox EL)(@ PU/

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

City of Adelaide | March 2025 2

CL:CT‘D,M e2S (A ” N:Vé)m‘



G0z abed

The DesezZT 1S MSESMENT B OoT oF TootN A%

Hutt Street Revaced TeaPhe o Homr St Wl Lepee Tame o2 KL
Access and Safety Information Rusines — Retq). Carz B
A study on the traffic patterns was undertaken to look at the traffic volume and depicted in the following precinct map:

Hutt Street Soen Wepocnion) Widl NeT B (RS 2748 E}W'F/L .

Impacts to the wider transport network are being considered and
potential mitigation measures will need to be developed when the
project progresses.

The project design supports policy to reduce through traffic on city
streets,

King Rodney Park /
tyamai-ftpira
{Park 15)

Projected traffic increase onto parallel routes does not take into
account mode shift and personal choice or decision to use other
modes of transport. LP )

Map shows daily traffic volumes (number of vehicles per day). The

number of vehicles per day figure is informed by Department of i 2
Infrastructure and Transport's data. ‘5!
Hutt Street is currently 50kph, and is proposed to be 30kph through
the village centre between South Terrace and Carrington Streets with
a change in the street configuration to support the reduced speed.

Legend

Destination Traffic Generator - Off-street car parking space

Destination Traffic Generator - School/University

!

Destination Traffic Generator - Hospital "S )

Projected vehicle traffic increase

Assumed through-traffic reduction
Vehicle traffic unchanged

Future intersection modifications to accommodate
potential additional movements

Marshunallow,
Playspace
Pityarilla
{Park 12)

Movements identified for potential intersection
modifications

Potential increase in turning vehicles

Suburb-to-suburb through traffic redistribution

Popular cycling routes —>

Increase in cycle traffic with a higher footfall
also anticipated but not shown

etrtol|lees

A
]
v

Mapping information source: Infraplan February 2023

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET City of Adelaide | March 2025 3



90¢ abed

Hutt Street

Access and Safety Information

Safety Incident Statistics

The following table summarises the number of

Street, within the project area (South Terrace to Carrington Street):

reported incidents that have occurred along Hutt

Ruennd s

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

Ve O

ROAD CRASH DATA 2019-2023

HUTT STREET BETWEEN CARRINGTON STREET AND SOUTH TERRACE

ID  SEVERITY ROAD CRASH DATE APPARENT CAUSE VEHICLE
TYPE CONTROL

1 Property Hit Parked Vehicle  25/06/2020 Reverse Without Due Care No Control

2 Property Rear End 29/11/2019 Follow Too Closely No Control

3 Minor Injury Hit Pedestrian 25/09/2019 Reverse Without Due Care No Control

4 Property Side Swipe 27/09/12022 Opening or Closing Door No Control

5 Property Right Angle 31110/2023 Reverse Without Due Care No Control

6 Property Right Angle 16/07/2023 Reverse Without Due Care No Control

7 Property Right Turn 15112/2022 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
8 Serious Injury Hit Pedestrian 23/02/2019 Fail to Give Way Traffic Signals
g Property Side Swipe 8/0212019 Incorrect Tum Traffic Signals
10 Property Side Swipe 18/04/2023 Change Lanes to Endanger  No Control

1" Property Right Angle 28/11/2021 Fail to Give Way No Control

12 Property Rall Over 9/07/2023 Inattention Traffic Signals
13 Serious Injury Right Turn 6/09/2021 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
14 Property Side Swipe 710512021 Overtake Without Due Care  Traffic Signals
15 Minor Injury Right Turn 26/10/2020 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
16 Serious Injury Hit Fixed Object 2/02/2020 Inattention Traffic Signals
17 Minor Injury Right Turn 26/03/2019 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
18 Minor Injury Right Turn 18/02/2023 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
19 Property Right Turn 10/01/2023 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
20 Minor Injury Right Turn 10/09/2020 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
21 Minor Injury Right Angle 4/01/2020 Fail to Give Way Traffic Signals
22 Property Rear End 7112/2023 Inattention Traffic Signals
23 Property Hit Pedestrian 12/10/2023 Inattention Traffic Signals
24 Minor Injury Side Swipe 18/03/2022 Fail to Give Way Traffic Signals
25 Minor Injury Right Turn 8/03/2021 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
286 Minor Injury Right Turn 21/02/2021 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
27 Property Rear End 31/07/2020 Inattention Traffic Signals
28 Minor Injury Hit Pedestrian 22/07/2020 Fail to Give Way Traffic Signals
29 Property Right Turn 16/07/2020 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
30 Minor Injury Right Turn 18/07/2019 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals
3 Minor Injury Right Turn 17/01/2019 Fail to Stand Traffic Signals

City of Adelaide | March 2025

b



10z abed

Hutt Street

Access and Safety Information
Traffic Signal Audit

In late 2024, an audit was undertaken of the signalised intersections along Hutt Street between Hutt
Street and South Terrace (Cira, 10 August 2024). This audit included a detailed inspection of existing
infrastructure and noted where improvements were required to comply with Australian Standards,
Austroads’ Guides and SA Government (Department for Infrastructure and Transport) standards.

The findings of this audit will be further considered as we progress the detailed design for Hutt Street.
Will the lane widths proposed in some options comply with requirements?

Lane widths proposed under options B to E do vary, depending on the parking arrangement and
location of the kerb. In some instances, the lane width proposed is Ehe minimum acceptable width

under the Austroads’ Guide. \w S’f_ v A= 51—015&2&’ e M gou SM

Where the minimum width is proposed, this has been agreed with both the SA Public Transport
Authority and the Department for Transport and Infrastructure who are collectively responsible for bus
operations in South Australia,

Community Feedback UO'T &3 M H.\_)TT' 6‘1""

During master planning we collected feedback from community using a range of mediums to better
understand their perspectives. Feedback collected between 2015 - 2019 indicated that some members
of the community wanted improved bike infrastructure and a street that better balanced the needs of
users including pedestrians of all demographics, amongst other views. This is a snapshot of the views
expressed, but if you would like to read more about the previous consultation and feedback provided
you can view the Master Plan - Research and Engagement summary here.

Our current consultation on the Hutt Street Concept Development Options has provided further
opportunity to hear from the community. The outcomes of this consultation will be reported to
Council as part of information to support further decision making for Hutt Street,

OT OF D otz

56\65\1 Je \:—EED\DCTL‘L K Q=D
To SoPanr e Poreet

Vo S¢ ‘DUSV\J@SSCS do Nor pgees

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

City of Adelaide | March 2025

5



Hutt Street
Access and Safety Information

Monsitmone EXGrsoment

Large outdoor dining areas
restrict footpath space

80¢ abed

Footpath extensions at intersections reduce crossing

vaits at signalised crossings de

: 4 [ SN :
Tree lined footpaths provide shaded Central medians provide ease

walking options of crossing, but non-compliant
kerb ramps to not cater for the
vision impaired

I =
Central medians provide easy informal ¢ rossing
opportunities

Under 300 pedestrians g
300-599 pedestrians €————3
600-899 pedestrians  rm—
900199 pedestrians  ——

1200-1499 pedestrians  Grm———

Hutt/Flinders counts u
Silles/Hutt counts und
Angas/Carrington/Halifax/South Terrace

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

; Peoore W Nor ol
Pedestrian movement Floe e l«_:l_r_\ U<t -

Firie Street

Trickfr STraet

1000
Gy

Flinders Street

T

850

Calvary Wakefield
Hospital

Bocelli Caffe
Ristorante

Naval, Midtary and
Airforce Club 540

250
Angas Street
¢ 420 :

East
Apartments 300

Rymull House

East Adelaide
Medical Centre
60

Nil Streer

Network 10
Bai Long

House of Chow

1000
City East 1GA

1205
T

450

Hivne Street

Heart Foun rl:nicm-"s‘:l
E 200 3

Camington Streat

Esno!

Bank 54
1000

MeLaren Street

750
10 Clbo
Halifax Stregt

50

500

cairns Strest

Hutt Street L.u'a.-,gsaI

s

Gilles Street

h% Il';i50 I,
Arah Steed Hotel 400

August
Towers.

350

‘ LOO a
South Terrace

ey

no

|
I
I

X
I‘Tor)

N
60 wom T

L0

Chianti E.an.'o

.".i\ngglnﬂawlml
150

—
L =

900

IGA Hutt Street

650

(14

Hutt Street Centre

St Andrew’s
}OOHN‘I(", Centri
¢ 450 3

I )

150

City of Adelaide | March 2025



60¢ abed

Hutt Street

Access and Safety Information

Cyclist movement

de more poputar Cyching

Some cyclists (including delivery  Cyclist traveling south on Hutt Str

CDUI"(’[S‘.‘ choose to use the
footpath

Halifax Street cycling route
at Flinders Street

Anigas,(

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

1 of people on bikes use Hutt Street as a cyclin

Signalised crossing for cyclists

ngronHalifax /St

eet

AL B DG Q\GPOD—TED Vo No+ QerLezi

Ne QESG)BUTS W Hotl S+

60% NbVe/HuH St VHO fearance. W PRovE

Cyclists traveling north on Hutt
Street

Easy informal crossing via central

median at Carrington Street

nts underta

Ints undert

outh Terrace intersections with Hut

1) O IS

Under 50 Cyclists  @mmm—
50-99 cyclists m——yp
100150 Cyclists  gmmm——y
150200 cyclisls  Gom—

wrsday 31 Octol

IscorveeT -

Pirie Street

Torker Street

Himl_-i-a.zigrc ot ’ 97

Would Streat

Calvary Wakefield
Hospital

Wiarcii@id lreEet

EBocelli Caffe
Ristorante

Naval, Military and
Airforce Club

49

East
Apartments

99
T l Rymill House
5

B3 s

East Adelaide

B6

g

Madical Centre

NI Stre

MNetwark 10
Bai Long

House of Chow

ar

City East IGA

e

52

Hurme Street

Caringy gTaT, 6

“eart Foundation

McLaran Sireat

Halifax ’i“_'_)‘ 157

|

l Chianti Classico

e&(——i w0

Banksa 98 General Havelock
0
53
Ciho Biga Cafe
—_— 15

Lairns Streel

Gilles Stye

20

Arab Steed Hotel

Hutt Street Library

G

35

August
Towers

Bl e

IGA Huft Street

e—

zs_)(—--~—---"3

1
-~

Hutt Street Centre

Je—

H

St Andrew’s
Medical Centre

R

3 —‘——)(_ &

S

City of Adelaide | March 2025



0Tz abed

Hutt Street

Access and Safety Information

Vehicle movement

S up to over 23,000 vehicles in the north. carrying ©
cr 15,000 vehicles in the south as commuters use the

functions as a commuter route in the peak hours of

ement in the

sout

ia the in ct

(p inately Flinders and Wa e intersecting streets al:o

have less defined peak hours, refi:

and resit

b, ts into 2 Ut ¢

g the services and attractors s
“ntial areas that people may be accessing at more varying times acro

as schools, hospitals

Little vehicle movement towards  Hutt Street and Halifax Street
the south in the mid-afternoon intersection

Little vehicle movement in the
core Main Street zone in the
mid-afternoon

Bartels Road provides key vehicle route from

Wakefield Street carries the highest volume of
the east and into the city and Hutt Street

vehicles of all the intzrsecting streets

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

Autt Street Average Weskday Traffi

Under 1000

Pirje Stre E !

Tiirier Strast

fould Street

Calvary Wakefield
Hospital
1380

Whakehalt Sirpgt
12450
Bocelli Caffe
Ristorante

4

4

164307

MNaval, Military
and Airforce Club 11450

2550 3
Angas 52"-’}
East
Apartments
11090

HUtE Strett

h

A

y

b

Rymill House
n2s50

East Adelaide
Medical Contre

10560
W

N Stresr
10220
Hetwork 10
Bai Long
o304
9280
House of Chow

11090

1410

e

City East IGA

1130
SR1: TG

860

10710

N

0 60 W0m T

rume Street

10230

Heart Foundation

1630
Caimin qtole IEE !

820
Bank SA

9420

Melaren Streer

100

Halifax ﬁlr‘._

2710

9940

“alrns Strgot

Hutt Streer l.-braryguo

100

Gilles Ch.'-“

2580
Arab Steed Hotel

9420

August
Towers

8520

Souith I'h!-"._az_&

1610

107M0
Chianti Classico

l
1l

4
10230 | | mso
Cibo Biga Cafe

1490 3
980

"
9880

+ IGA Hutt Strest
5800

1750
_..)

1600

9170
A  HuttStreet Centre

"
St Andrew's
9050 pedical Centre

w

2460
e 3

1660

City of Adelaide | March 2025



TTZ abed

Hutt Street

Access and Safety Information

Public transport

* lengt

reel. turming west alor

boarding numbers are currently low, wi

V1 150, 150/B/P, 155, 157/X
to NW (Largs Bay)

F1 98C + 99C - free city connector
147 to E (Beaumont)

T 98A +99A - free city connector
150, 1508, 150P, 155, 157/X to NW (Largs Bay)
170,172,173 from § (Urbrae/Blackwood)
174,178/M/5/X to NE (Paradise)
637 School Service - Kingswood
820, 821, 822 from E (Burnside, Stirling)

H1 98C + 99C - free city connector
147 to E (Beaumont)
170, 171/A, 172 to 5 (Urbrae, Mitcham)
820, 821, 822 to E (Burnside, Stirling)

51 5BA + 99A - free city connector
150, 1508, 150P, 155, 157/X to NW (Largs Bay)
170,172,173 from $ (Urbrae/Blackwood)
174,178/M/S/X ta NE (Paradise)
637 School Service - Kingswood
820, 821, 822 from E (Burnside, Stirling)

Q1 9BA +99A - free dly connector
150, 1508, 150P, 155, 157/X to NW (Largs Bay)
170,172,173 from § (Urbrae/Blackwood)
174,178/M/S/X to NE (Paradise)
637 School Service - Kingswood
820, 821, 822 from E (Burnside, Stirling)

N 147 to E (Beaumont)
170, 171/, 172 to S (Urbrae, Mitcham)

Kl 147 to E (Beaumnont)
170, 171/A, 172 to 5 (Urbrae, Mitcham)
8§20, 821, 822 to E (Burnside, Stirling)

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

Yorne Teoel to lom S+ Mom QUTSDE OF TWECITY
WW ~ RezAuse Yhey hawe pecess fo Parring -

0 2 &0 Talm
with eight bus stops, The free City Connector bus also
_\.-_‘_ tops. | f y Lonnecion bus alsc Hitme Street '
Lreel, While well connected to many suburbs, bus
e sLops servicing han 10 boardings I
Highest weekend 5]
boarings
) l Frenas 1 s wams s Chianti Clasica
Pirie Stroat ' Carrington Street l
l Bank SA I General Havelock
Tiwkar Strast ' McLaren Street I
Fewest boardings v
. Rymill House '
' Cibo ' Biga Cafe
Flinders Street <- Lee=v) --‘
) ' Halifax Street
East Adelaide
l Medical Centre
Highest weekday QI
3 g I boadings
suld Stree
9 3 Hoslstrest l Zairns Strest 1
L 4l (B
38 8 Calvary Wakefield l Wil Stroet IGA Hutt Street
Hospital :
E Network 10 “utt Street Library
E Bai Long
=i l Gilles Street
Wakelinld Stroet
34 12
Socdlli Cafta ' arah Steed Hotel
Ristorante House of Chow
m '
6 37 Hutt Street Centre
' August
Towers.
I 5t Andrew's
i 5 Naval, Military and 1 Medicai Centre
Airforce Club l City East IGA
Angas Street l
29 10
East
Apartments '
26 8 i
Ji

City of Adelaide | March 2025 9



Hutt Street

Access and Safety Information

R NC el W&O
Parking “\_)L‘;’cff@o\—

A study undertaken in November 2019 identified that parking utilisation on Hutt Street and

intersecting streets between Angus Street and South Terrace is average, at around 63% cver 4 thee
day study period. This figure peaks at lunch time on weekdays (up to 80% occupancy) and is lowest in the
late afternoon (approx. 50% occupancy}, before a slight increase over dinner hours. On Saturdays, the
cccupancy during the day remains steady {under 60% occupancy), before peaking during dinner hours

around 7:30pm (approx. 75% occupancy)
05T e Mawkained
274 J/

on street parking bays

Current parking condition

212z abed

King adjacet Parallel parkin

ITﬂus &@Paowt > @L&u ra\l
ReDoce TuSiness

MAIN STREETS REVITALISATION - HUTT STREET

@ Well used
Dccupied over 75%

Avers
Occupied 41%-74%

* Underutilised
Cecupied less than &0%

Pirie Street

Tirker Strept

Flinders Streat

Hould Street

Calvary Wakefield
Hospital

Bocelli Caffe
Ristorante

Naval, Military and
Airfarce Club

2
—

Anigas Street

—

3 ‘1z L

East
anarrmante 3K

BBunaSF

Hutt Sticet

TYPE OF PARK (primary restriction)

Vahr park (15 min) M Mad
1/ 2hr park (30min) R Residentail

1 hr park UR Unrestricted
2 hr park GG CoGet Permit
3 hr park MC Motorcycle 20
10 her park L Loading
2 hr accessible park N
[ 0 taom T
Huma Street
MC
1 l . 4
Heart Foundation ’[i ']‘ﬂhmn:itlasﬂeu
_J_, 1R vz
= mrq el sr
— e —
2 ’h
Bank sl'. "‘Oen(-ul Havelu:l.
s .
Meiaren Street [
Rymill Hous l‘u
Y e 1 e
L
Miga cafe
W A y
Halifax Streat
e
Lz o 1

East Adelaide
Madical Centre

LCairns Street I

] 1
i ﬂ mlm Hutt Street
We -
Network 10 Hutt Street Library 28 0
: s
Bailong
= 1 !I 1
1 o 1

Arab Steed Hotel e

House of Chow

s

August
Towers E

Hutt Street Centre

g i..‘l'- A .

South Terrace
<I1m cohru‘ tncl

Angas Street to
South Terrace data
collectad Friday

November 25

o
v
é wh
- =
L 1

City of Adelaide | March 2025



E1- General Enquiry
- _____0_00___"]

Submitted on 28 March 2025, 11:15AM
Receipt number [
Related form version .

| Before you begin

Enquiry type Parking

| Enquiry details

Your enquiry This is in regard to Hutt St revitalisation plans. Can this please be
submitted to their survey.
| have submitted a general feedback but feel that there has not been
enough space.
We have a unique section of street (between carrington and halifax) with
essential small businesses that require quick short parking. Shoe
repairs, photo hutt, chemist, newsagency, mens clothes, dry cleaning
etc - all of which will not survive if patrons need to search out parking in
all of the side streets, and will not find them. | had a loan car for several
days this week and had to search up and down the entire length of
carrington and halifax to east terrace to finally find one park. Why cant a
designated park area be found.

| am also a bike rider but we have Frome road such a small distance
away. We need car parks to keep the businesses and services that we
love, not just cafes. No suggestion has been given as to where people
will park. These great ideas are ignoring the need for parking.

We were told of a survey that said parking only in use 65% - but this is
not the case between Halifax and Carrington. Another comment was that
so many people shop on line. Not for the shops that we have along Hutt
St. They are essential and quick pop in services.

Please make them and so many of the requests of locals a
consideration.

Thank you

If possible, please upload any files related to your enquiry

| Contact details

Title .

Given name Louise

Family name

Email

Preferred phone number

10f2
Page 213



Hutt Street

28 March 2025

CITY OF ADELAIDE

Community Consultation

Hutt Street Revitalization Project
GPO Box 2252

Adelaide SA 5001

Email: feedback@ouradelaide.sa.gov.au/huttstreet

Hutt Street Consultation — Sandy Wilkinson

INTRODUCTION

Whilst | am pleased that Councilis looking to endeavour to help improve Hutt Street, there are three
sides to a street, the two sides and the bottom. | feel that the proposed public realm only approach only
is unlikely to deliver the benefits that the street needs, which is improvements to the sides not the
bottom.

| am a regular customer of various businesses in Hutt Street. | invariably am driving and park in Hutt
Street.

| helped my developer client restore and develop behind what is now A Hereford Beefstouw Restaurant,
which is the sort of thing that along with the restoration of the 3 storey terrace shops on the NE corner of
Halifax Street has markedly enhanced Hutt Street.

Ige

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

1
Page 214



PROTECT AND RESTORE THE HISTORIC BUILDINGS BEFORE RE-DOING UP THE PUBLIC REALM

The recent loss of Acacia Books, which was Local Heritage listed, but was supported by Council
administration and the CAP to be demolished is a travesty that has diminished the character and appeal
of Hutt Street.

ry-) - 1 HU“ St

1}

[aren St

| 2

:

N Ry

l L, - '“e"' )

-t’l'“ - L\\\T‘ . Al t—-—' c—_

There are many unlisted historic buildings in Hutt Street that are vulnerable to demolltlon

Only the light green shaded and red shaded State listed General Havelock Hotel on this section of Hutt
Street for example are protected.

The historic photo sheet attached shows some of the historic buildings south of the General Havelock.

Before embarking on another public realm spend of rate payers money the Hutt Street could be more
significantly transformed by protecting by way of a Code Amendment and using rate payers money
restore the historic buildings that form the two sides of Hutt Street.

NOT replacing all of the existing kerbing, lighting and paving could pay for the restoration of a lot of the
historic buildings that line the street.

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

Page?215



Too many unlisted historic buildings have been lost already, replaced for failed apartment
developments that could have been built behind these and with open lot car parks.

sddddsdds
bdddsainy

Unlisted bluestone villas demolished
Prematurely for failed apartment
development that this now

an open lot car park.




Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

Page %17



) ﬁwﬁsﬁm&w

_.,d
()
- E=
2
e
. E
(M)
©
4 o0
B
)
Qo
=
S
e
[}
=
b
]
(&)
]
(M)
()
P
4
w
e
+—
]
I
™~
-

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from




Much of Hutt Street that you would assume to be protected is not listed/protected.

o g
b BRI

.. 2 ey e

e CARLTONSDRY ' CARLTONIDRY  CARTON{DRY

The Arab Steed was not listed on account of its Art Deco makeover, so could be demolished.

-

o P

This villa o th corer of Hutt & Hume Street is unlisted and could be demolished.

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

Page%lQ



OPPORTUNITIES EXIST TO RESTORE HUTT STREETS HISTORIC CHARACTER rather than redo all the
public realm.

11565

The original wide verandah WhICh can be seen on the side of the General Havelock balcony
Could be reinstated with this section only of the original historic kerb line.

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

7
Page 220



. |

B 13961

813157

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

Page 8221



| / / “” NNM L ,mf\

This villa hides behind this building which they have failed to sell or lease in its present form.

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

Page 9222



PARKING

As a frequent customer in Hutt Street, | am aware of how crucial the existing angle parking is to

the economic success of businesses in this street.

I am always to ‘just’ find a park in Hutt Street, often as another car is pulling out. There are seldom
vacant parks and when | go to park in the adjacent side streets there are not many or any parks
available.

Unlike Norwood Parade or King William Unley or Prospect Roads, there is not any parking available
behind the shops that would enable the replacement of the angle parking with much fewer parallel
parks.

There should not be reliance on the undesirable interim open lot car parks pictured before.

Open lot car parking needs to be prevented and removed as it detracts from any street, including Hutt
Street.

BIKE WAYS

Having been on Council when the Frome Street Bikeway was done one street over, and with the
existence of the Parkland Bikeway along East Terrace, | don’t see why it is necessary to create another
separated bikeway at the expense of the necessary angle car parking along Hutt Street.

LEVEL FOOTPATH CROSSINGS AT SIDE STREETS

| fully support lifting the footpath at the side streets. One could go further and raise the whole road level
at the 3 main intersections to footpath level to calm the traffic and create a plaza feel at these
intersections.

PAVING AND LIGHTING etc

I don’t think there is need to replace the existing red brick paving which is only in need of a deep clean.
The existing lights are not what is wrong with the street.

GREENING AROUND TREES

| support removing the bitumen around the base of the plane trees and the planting of the areas under
these trees and harnessing stormwater to water these trees.

ALTERNATE OPTION

Options A-C maintain 2 lanes of traffic in each direction maintaining the existing a 4m footpath.
Option D pushes the kerb line out to 11.5m and adopts 1 lane of traffic in each direction.

Option E pushes the kerb line out to 6m which is incidentally where it historically was if you refer to the
side of balcony verandah of the General Havelock Hotel, shown again here.

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

Page1 823



Much of the benefits of Option D & E, that of a wider footpath, could potentially be achieved by way of an
option that hasn’t been presented, which | will call Option F.

Option F would entail widening the footpath to its original 6m kerb line to accommodate the
reinstatement of the wide verandahs that could once again grace the street, maintain the angle parking
but, like Option D reduce the traffic to one lane of traffic in each direction with a painted bike lane as
exists now.

CONCLUSION

A public realm consultant will always recommend a public realm solution because that is what is within
their remit.

You can pave the street with gold whilst existing commercial property owners leave their tired looking
buildings as they are, as they have for the decades since the last ‘public realm upgrade’.

Council should accept that there will ostensibly be market failure in terms of renovating the buildings
that line the street, which is why spending rate payers’ money on listing and restoring the currently
unlisted historic buildings, even rebuilding them as they were in part as they do in Europe has the
potential to be transformative for Hutt Street.

In terms of the options, it is the parking, not necessarily the two lanes of traffic, that | think is so
important to the commercial functioning of the street. Hence the option of widening the footpath to 6m
and maintaining the angle parking at the expense of a second traffic lane that could be the optimum
solution.

Thank you

Hutt Street Consultation Submission from_

11
Page 224



Gee abed

Hutt Street

design + planning
by design

s

f
b s hE s Y
Y
03
3 e )
-
= |
/

|

P—
17

B1MS? 813961
;

/

1273

2 | is
§ E3 - 3 33 A"F
P R 2

——— -/- - ———————— - 4 ]l e == = - = -

N ® o e - -

\._./\"\ enas o -- e ......-._.....;_-----.---

| T \',:T'Cﬂ'

ELS

'
H
i

J
rdl Havelo
'.;.Z.

tel

5

R ) —

BRP

e wec e s csomsumoness sase e an

Gene

N

/ .

-

| 1




27 Halifax Street
Enter via Symonds Place
Adelaide SA 5000

(08) 8333 7999

Level 3 107 Elizabeth Street
Melbourne VIC 3001

(03) 8593 9650

Level 17 1 Spring Street
Perth WA 6000

(08) 6285 3177

URPS



City of Adelaide CITY OF

Hutt Street Revitalisation - Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment — June 2025

ADELAIDE

3
hudson howells



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 2

E'DTELR.FDE Table of Contents

Executive Summary 3

Section 1: Introduction 5

Section 2: Study Methodology 6

Section 3: Desktop Research 7

Section 4: Revitalisation Options 18

‘;:E Section 5: The Do-Nothing Option 19
§ Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions 20
Section 7: Summary of Results and Options Prioritisation 23

Section 8: Detailed Economic Impacts — Option D Construction Phase 24

Section 9: Detailed Economic Impacts — Option D Operational Phase 25

Source: City of Adelaide Front Cover Source: City of Adelaide

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 3

Executive Summary

The Hutt Street Revitalisation project is a key initiative under the City of Adelaide’s Main Streets Revitalisation Program and aims to preserve Hutt Street's historic
village charm while enhancing its infrastructure to support local businesses, increase social interaction, and improve accessibility for the community and visitors.
Economic impact and benefit cost assessments for major infrastructure projects are often prepared by Councils to demonstrate the broader community benefits of
a project and to support State and Commonwealth grant applications, which often require demonstration of strong benefit cost ratios (BCRs). Examples of recent
projects with strong BCRs that have been successful for government grants include Prospect Council's Barker Inlet Central Stormwater Plan (BCR of 5.5) and Whyalla
Council's Foreshore Plaza Revitalisation Project (BCR of 5.91).

Study Methodology - The economic impact and benefit cost assessments were conducted using Hudson Howells’ Input Output Model for South Australia. The
o assessments include direct and indirect job creation, income generation, and Gross State Product (GSP) contributions during both the construction and operational
@ phases of the project.
N

S Key Findings - The revitalisation is expected to boost local business activity, create job opportunities, attract new businesses and investment, and increase local
spending. International and Australian case studies demonstrate the positive impacts of similar projects, including job creation, increased property values, and
enhanced community well-being. Two design options (A and D) are considered, with Option D delivering the highest Benefit Cost Ratio (5.69) and Community Net
Present Value ($151 million over 30 years). Without revitalisation, the Do-Nothing Option, Hutt Street may face economic decline, infrastructure deterioration, and
reduced community engagement.

During the Construction Phase, Option D is estimated to contribute $30.9 million to South Australia’s GSP and support 198 full-time equivalent jobs.

During the Operational Phase post-construction, the project is expected to result in the contribution of $8.7 million annually to GSP and support 90 full-time
equivalent jobs per annum via additional spending by existing visitors and the spending of new visitors to the precinct.

The following table summarises the outcomes of the economic impact and benefit cost assessments:

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 4

Executive Summary

Option D Option A Do Nothing

Costs
Project Capital Costs $29,214,648 S$701,674 S0
Potential Reduced Business Activity During Construction $2,965,115  $1,482,557 S0
Benefits
Construction Contribution to Gross State Product $30,850,668  $740,968 S0
Construction FTE Jobs Supported 198.51 4.77 0.00
Additional Business Revenue Per Annum - Existing Visitors $5,930,230 S0 -$794,651
Additional Business Revenue Per Annum - New Visitors $593,023 SO SO
Total Additional Business Revenue Per Annum $6,523,253 S0 -$794,651
U Additional Visitor Spending (New and Existing Visitors) Contribution to Gross State Product Per Annum $8,715,066 SO -$1,061,653
8 Additional Visitor Spending (New and Existing Visitors) FTE Jobs Supported Per Annum 90.17 0.00 -10.98
(IEJ Shadow Area Propert Value Uplift $1,598,995 SO SO
8 Community 30 Year NPV and BCR
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Benefits $183,089,368 $740,968 -$18,358,146
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Costs $32,179,763 $2,184,231 S0
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Costs and Benefits (NPVCB) $150,909,605 -$1,443,263 -$18,358,146
Community 30 Year Benefit Cost Ratio (Total NPV Benefits/Total NPV Costs) 5.69 0.34 N/A
Conclusion

The Hutt Street Revitalisation Project presents a strong business case with significant economic, social and community benefits. Option D is recommended for
implementation to ensure the long-term success and sustainability of Hutt Street and the broader community. In relation to the potential for reduced business
activity during construction, it is recommended that Council consider the preparation of a business support strategy to minimise such impacts as is common in
other major urban revitalisation projects. Finally, In addition to the estimated Option D benefits, the case studies reviewed for this project also demonstrate a
history of private sector re-investment in properties and lower vacancy rates following main street revitalisation projects not factored into the Hutt Street BCRs.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 5

Section 1: Introduction

Hutt Street Revitalisation forms part of the City of Adelaide’s Main Streets Revitalisation Program. As the hub of the south-east precinct, Hutt Street provides a
village-like cluster of cafes and restaurants, alongside day-to-day essentials and community services.

The overall objective of the revitalisation of Hutt Street is to preserve and celebrate Hutt Street’s leafy green streetscape and historic village charm while providing a
well-planned street that supports local businesses, increases opportunities for social interaction and is welcoming and accessible to community and visitors alike.

Economic impact and benefit cost assessments for major infrastructure projects are often prepared by Councils to demonstrate the broader community benefits of
projects and to support State and Commonwealth grant applications, which often require demonstration of strong benefit cost ratios (BCRs). Examples of projects

with strong BCRs that have recently been successful for grants include Prospect Council’'s Barker Inlet Central Stormwater Plan (BCR of 5.5) and Whyalla Councils

-
& Foreshore Plaza Revitalisation Project (BCR of 5.91).
®

B Hudson Howells has been engaged by the City of Adelaide (Council) to prepare and compare economic impact and benefit costs assessments for two major
= : : : .
options currently under consideration plus a ‘do nothing’ scenario.

The Economic Impact Assessments (EIAs) detail and compare the direct and indirect (multiplier) jobs, incomes and Gross State Product (GSP) associated with the
options’ capital and ongoing costs. Hudson Howells' Input Output Model for South Australia has been used as the basis for estimating these economic impacts.

The Benefit Cost Assessments (BCAs) extend the ElAs to include community and business benefits and costs to determine and compare Benefit Cost Ratios (BCRs)
and Net Present Values (NPVs).

It was agreed with Council that the assessments would be undertaken via a desktop study only based on information/data supplied by Council plus Hudson

Howells' experience undertaking similar projects, plus research into the economic impacts and benefit/costs of other global and Australian mainstreet revitalisation
projects. The specific methodology is detailed in the following section.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 6

Section 2: Study Methodology

The Economic Impact Assessments detail the Gross State Product (GSP) and direct/indirect (multiplier) jobs associated with the project during construction and

when fully operational (post construction). Hudson Howells' Input Output Model for South Australia has been used as the basis for estimating these economic
impacts.

A Microsoft Excel model has been developed to assess the economic impacts of the project. The model and multipliers are based on:
* The 2020/21 ABS national table based on the national 2021 Census.
* The tables have been created using the location method and data from the South Australian Accounts and Labour Force Survey.

~ The assessed economic impacts include the direct value added (Gross State Product) and employment impacts, plus the flow through effects as estimated using the

@ model multipliers, with employment impacts adjusted for inflation since 2020/21.
N

N Value added is defined as the extent to which the local economy adds value to the product or services supplied, and essentially is the returns to labour and capital
in the region for that activity — it represents the incomes to labour and capital. It is consistent with the predominant national measure of economic activity of Gross
Domestic Product (GDP), Gross State Product (GSP) or Gross Regional Product (GRP). The value added and employment impacts have been measured at two levels.
Firstly, the direct impact — the value added, and employment contribution or share associated directly with the expenditure (e.g. the labour and profits involved in
the activity). Secondly, the indirect or multiplier impact — i.e. that associated with the suppliers to the project, the industrial impact, and the spend of employee
wages, the consumption impact.

The Benefit Cost Assessments include all economic (e.g. increased GSP), financial (e.g. lost/gained retail revenue) and community (e.g. property valuation uplift)
benefits and costs to determine Benefit Cost Ratios and NPVs for each option. Key assumptions for these assessments are based on outcomes for similar projects as
identified in the desktop research.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 7

Section 3: Desktop Research

Overview

The desktop research identified a range of economic benefits that could arise from the Hutt Street revitalisation and are incorporated into the economic impact and
benefit cost assessments:

* Increased business activity: Main street revitalisation projects attract existing visitors to the precinct to spend more, and more visitors and shoppers, leading to
increased foot traffic and consumer spending. This provides a boost to the local economy and supports the sustainability and growth of existing businesses.

* Job creation and employment opportunities: Economic growth driven by revitalisation leads to job creation and expanded employment opportunities directly
in the project, and indirectly via the multiplier effect, through suppliers to the project and the spend of salaries and wages by employees.

* Business diversification and entrepreneurship: Revitalisation attracts new businesses and entrepreneurs looking to capitalise on the improved environment.

geg abed

+ Attraction of investment and development: The upgraded precinct will act as a catalyst for attracting private investment and development projects. As the
precinct gains recognition as an appealing destination, developers and investors are highly likely to show interest in establishing new ventures or revitalising
existing properties. This will lead to further economic growth, infrastructure improvements, and job creation within the Hutt Street area.

* Increased local spending and circulation of wealth: Thriving streets encourage residents to shop locally, supporting nearby businesses. When residents
choose to spend their money within the community, the wealth generated circulates within the local economy, creating a multiplier effect.

* Partnership opportunities : Revitalised streets open doors for partnerships and collaborations between local businesses. Joint marketing campaigns, package
deals, and promotional initiatives can be developed to attract tourists and encourage longer stays.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 8

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies - Australia

Main street revitalisation and upgrade projects play a crucial role in enhancing urban environments, driving economic growth, and fostering community
engagement. This section examines the socio-economic benefits of six key projects across Australia and South Australia.

* King William Road, Adelaide
* Prospect Road, Prospect, Adelaide
* Jetty Road, Glenelg, Adelaide

* Chapel Street, Melbourne

y€z abed

* Hay and Murray Street Malls, Perth
* Fortitude Valley Mall, Brisbane

Each project demonstrates significant contributions to local economies, businesses, tourism, and social well-being, and also support the assumptions and findings
of the Hutt Street revitalisation economic impact and benefit cost assessments.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 9

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
Case Studies — Australia (Cont.)

King William Road, Unley, Adelaide

(Source: www.unley.sa.gov.au )

The King William Road Upgrade was a comprehensive project undertaken by the City of Unley between May and December 2019. The upgrade aimed to modernise
the streetscape while preserving its heritage charm and intimate scale. Key improvements included enhancing pedestrian spaces, upgrading infrastructure, and
implementing a co-design approach with the local community to ensure the changes reflected their needs and aspirations. The project successfully delivered a

9 more beautiful, active, and accessible streetscape, reaffirming King William Road as one of Adelaide's main streets. Socio-economic benefits include:

* Boost to Local Businesses & Hospitality - Pedestrian-friendly infrastructure supports boutique shopping, dining, and outdoor seating.

Geg obe

» Sustainable & Liveable Urban Space - Green spaces and improved cycling paths contribute to environmental sustainability.
* Enhanced Social Interaction & Inclusivity - More seating, shade, and event spaces foster a strong sense of community.
Prospect Road, Prospect, Adelaide

(Source: www.proppect.sa.gov.au )

The Prospect Road upgrade transformed a key suburban main street into a thriving urban corridor with improved infrastructure, pedestrian amenities, and public
spaces. Socio-economic benefits include:

NN ===


http://www.unley.sa.gov.au/
http://www.proppect.sa.gov.au/

h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 10

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — Australia (Cont.)

* Increased Economic Activity & Retail Growth - The streetscape improvements led to a surge in foot traffic, benefiting local retailers and cafes; Enhanced
accessibility and aesthetic appeal attract new businesses and investors.

«  Community Engagement & Social Benefits - New seating areas, landscaping, and street art create a more inviting space for social interaction and community
events.

» Sustainability & Environmental Improvements - Tree planting and stormwater management initiatives enhance urban resilience.

* Property Value Growth - The revitalisation of the precinct has contributed to an increase in property values and business occupancy rates.

9gz abed

Jetty Road, Glenelg, Adelaide

(Source: City of Holdfast Bay, Jetty Road Glenelg Upgrade Business Case)

The current Jetty Road Glenelg Mainstreet Upgrade Project in the City of Holdfast Bay projects significant economic, social, and environmental benefits for the
community by revitalising the streetscape, enhancing pedestrian and cyclist infrastructure, and improving public amenities.

The Business Case, prepared by Hudson Howells, provides additional support for the methodology, assumptions and findings of the following Hutt Street Economic
Impact and Benefit Cost Assessment.

In terms of economic impact, it is estimated that the $40 million five-year design and construction phase of the Jetty Road project will contribute $42.24 million to
Gross State Product and will support 271.9 FTE jobs, peaking at 139 FTE jobs per annum in 2024/25.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 11

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — Australia (Cont.)

When completed, estimated additional visitor spending of $11,683,650 per annum from 2027/28 will support an additional 161.5 FTE jobs per annum, with an
annual value added or contribution to Gross State Product of $15,609,356 million per annum. There will also be an estimated additional once-off retail and
commercial property value uplift of $9,487,631.

In summary, based on the estimated costs and benefits the Jetty Road Glenelg Upgrade project is projected to have a Community Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) of 5.44
with a 30-year Net Present Value (NPV) of $276 million. thereby demonstrating a strong business case for the project.

S Key assumptions applied in this business case, supported by other evidence, include:

» Estimated visitor increase post construction — 1%

1€2 ob

» Estimated increase in spending by existing visitors — 10%
* Property value uplift in the project ‘shadow area’ — 1%.

Chapel Street, Melbourne

(Source: www.connectstonnington.vic.gov.au )

The City of Stonnington has initiated the Chapel Street Transformation project, aiming to revitalise Chapel Street into a world-class destination. The overarching
goal is to create a vibrant, inviting, and sustainable environment that reflects the community's aspirations. In addition to the broader transformation project, the
historic Jam Factory on Chapel Street is undergoing a significant $2.75 billion redevelopment.

* Housing & Mixed-Use Development - New residential spaces provide urban living opportunities, increasing demand for local businesses.

NN ===


http://www.connectstonnington.vic.gov.au/

h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 12

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — Australia (Cont.)

The Chapel Street Transformation and Jam Factory redevelopment aim to revitalise this iconic precinct, enhancing its retail, hospitality, and cultural offerings. Socio-
economic benefits include:

» Economic Growth & Local Business Support - The Jam Factory redevelopment is expected to contribute over $800 million annually to the Victorian economy.
More than $28 million in consumer spending from new residents and workers.

» Tourism & Hospitality Boost - Enhancements will increase visitor appeal, driving retail and dining revenues.

» Social Inclusion & Community Well-being - Pedestrian-friendly spaces and more greenery improve public enjoyment and accessibility.

Hay and Murray Street Malls, Perth

gez abed

(Source: www.engage.perth.wa.gov.au )

» The Murray Street Mall has recently undergone a Retail Core Refresh to reinvigorate this central shopping area. Commencing in February 2023 and completed by
June 2023, the project introduced new street furniture, wayfinding signage, murals, and other minor works designed to encourage visitors to spend more time in
the mall. The enhancements aim to create a more structured and inviting space, balancing the needs for small event areas and pedestrian movement. Adjacent to
Murray Street Mall, Carillon City, a 1980s shopping mall precinct, is set for a substantial $400 million redevelopment by Fiveight, the property division of

Tattarang. The plans include transforming the site into a vibrant entertainment and accommodation precinct, further revitalising the area and complementing the
recent upgrades to the nearby malls.

The Retail Core Refresh for Murray Street Mall and the $400 million Carillon City redevelopment aim to rejuvenate the area by improving infrastructure and retail
experiences. Socio-economic benefits include:

NN ===


http://www.engage.perth.wa.gov.au/

h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 13

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — Australia (Cont.)

* Retail & Economic Activation - New seating, wayfinding signage, and murals enhance the shopping experience, increasing customer dwell time and spending.
*  Public Realm & Community Engagement - Creation of open, welcoming spaces promotes social interactions and deters anti-social behaviour.

*  Employment & Business Growth - Construction and retail expansion generate long-term job opportunities.

» Tourism & Urban Renewal - The Carillon City redevelopment is expected to attract investors and visitors, further revitalising Perth’s city centre.

D Fortitude Valley Mall, Brisbane

6

@ (Source: www.brisbanedevelopment.com.au )

ee

© The Brunswick Street Mall in Fortitude Valley underwent a $4 million revitalisation aimed at transforming it into a vibrant urban space. The redevelopment focused
on constructing five new retail 'pods' to rejuvenate the retail strip and enhance the mall's appeal. The project emphasised strengthening the Valley's daytime
economy, attracting new investments, and reinvigorating established businesses. Socio-economic benefits include:

* Revitalizing the Night & Day Economy - Encourages businesses to operate during the day, diversifying economic activities beyond nightlife.

Job Creation & Economic Diversification - Attracts new retail investments, fostering entrepreneurship and business growth.

* Crime Reduction & Safety Improvements - Increased foot traffic and well-lit spaces reduce anti-social behaviour.

Cultural & Social Integration - Enhancements to public spaces support artists, musicians, and local events, strengthening Brisbane’s creative economy.

NN ===


http://www.brisbanedevelopment.com.au/

h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 14

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies - International

The following international reports/case studies provide valuable insights into how revitalisation projects can boost local economies, support small businesses, and
enhance community well-being. They support the assumptions and findings the Hutt Street revitalisation economic impact and benefit cost assessments detailed
later in this report.

Main Street America

(Source: Main Street America, Economic Impact of Main Streets, www.mainstreet.org )

g Main Street America offers insights into the broader economic impacts of main street revitalisation projects, including data-driven trends and strategies that can be

(,f, applied to Australian contexts. Their resources highlight the significant job creation and reinvestment potential of these projects. Over a 10-year period, 2008 —

S 2017, Main Street America reports that U.S. cities spent $74.73 billion on downtown revitalization projects that resulted in 614,716 jobs. Each $1 million spent was
associated with net gain in jobs of 8.2.

Mountain Home (USA)

(Source: Mountain Home, Economic Impact Assessment of the Downtown Revitalisation Project 2018)

This study estimates the change in employment, incomes and output in the local economy of the Mountain Home's Downtown Master Plan. The revitalisation
project costing approximately $US 3.5 million included Main St. and N. 2nd E St.,, between E. 5th N. St. and E. Jackson St. The project involved improving walkability,
creating bike lanes, reducing the number of lanes and traffic speed and sidewalk landscaping. The economic impact of this precinct revitalisation project by 2023
was estimated to be:

NN ===


http://www.mainstreet.org/

h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 15

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — International (Cont.)

* A permanent increase (direct and multiplier) in annual employment in Mountain Home of 26.8 workers per annum, or 7.7 per $ million invested.
* An annual labour income increase of $569.0 thousand.
* A total income increase of $807.0 thousand.

Michigan Main Street Centre (USA)

g (Source: PlaceEconomics, The Economic Impacts of Main Street in Michigan)
)

‘® The MMSC assists communities in creating an economic environment where local businesses thrive. Each Michigan Main Street community is locally organised, run,

N

& and funded. The Main Street communities seek to refill vacant store fronts, focus reinvestment on the downtown district, and support small businesses. In the 10
years to 2014, the MMSC recorded the following outcomes:

* Over $200 million invested in Main Street buildings, infrastructure, and public improvements
* For every $1 invested in the State Main Street Centre, Michigan Main Street districts have seen downtown building investment of $67
* 250 net new businesses established

* Over 1,300 net new jobs created in Main Street districts — 6.5 jobs per $ million invested.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 16

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — International (Cont.)

Louisiana Main Street Centre (USA)

(Source: Louisiana Office of Cultural Development, A Study of the Impacts of Louisianna Main Street, July 2018)

This report considers the first 34 years of Louisiana Main Street and the participating Louisiana Main Street communities. The report both quantitatively and
qualitatively demonstrates the impact of Louisiana Main Street on the economic and social health of the state of Louisiana which included each year for a typical
main street:

T )
& 2.8 Net New Businesses
®

¢ 11.8 Net New Jobs
N * $517,890 in Public Investment
* $860,367 in Private Investment
High Streets Heritage Action Zone (United Kingdom)

(Source: www.thetimes.com/uk/history/article/how-breathing-new-life-into-old-high-streets-proved-profitable )

Between 2020 and 2024, the HSHAZ initiative invested £103 million to regenerate 67 historic high streets across the UK. This effort led to the restoration or
repurposing of numerous buildings and ultimately generated £245 million in economic activity and created 700 jobs valued at £34 million annually. For every £1
invested, there was a return of £1.34 (BCR 1.34), demonstrating a positive economic impact and increased community engagement.

NN ===


http://www.thetimes.com/uk/history/article/how-breathing-new-life-into-old-high-streets-proved-profitable

h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment

17

Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)

Case Studies — International (Cont.)

When taking into consideration the USA/Australia exchange rate of approximately 1.6, the South Australian Jetty Road Case Studly ratio of additional ongoing jobs

(161.5) to investment ($40 million) of 4 jobs per $ million appears conservative but compatible with the outcomes of Main Street America (8.2), Mountain Home
USA (7.7 ) and Michigan Main Street (6.2).

This is important in the context of the Hutt Street revitalisation project as similar assumptions and methodologies are applied to the following Hutt Street
assessments.

£tz abed

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment

Section 4: Revitalisation Options

Two concept design options ae being considered for the revitalisation of Hutt Option D

Street between South Terrace and Carrington Street — Options A and D as
follow: The features of this concept design are:

. « Changes to parallel parking to improve sightlines and reduce collision risk, aligning
Option A with Austroads Guides' recommendations.

« Off-peak parking in the outer traffic lane between Gilles Street and Carrington Street
(southbound in the AM, northbound in the PM).

+ Creates a protected cycle path separated from traffic to support all wheeling
modes, including e-scooters.

The features of this concept design are:

« Retains the existing 60-degree angle parking layout, maximising the provision of
parking but not complying with the current Australian Standards.

o < . . h . . . . .
S « Provides high parking convenlence, with many spaces located directly in front of Provides rau;e_d thresholds at minor side streets, to improve pedestrian accessibility
«Q rlvsinie and connectivity.
D destinations.
N . ) « Expands pedestrian spaces for outdoor dining, public seating, and community
ﬁ « No changes to footpath width, cycle lane, or parking approach. gathering areas.

* Targeted footpath maintenance of existing footpath to enhance the pedestrian + Widens and declutters footpaths, improving accessibility.

rience. : :
iperiense « Full footpath replacement, for enhanced pedestrian experience.

» Minimal enhancement to street tree surrounds, due to limited space. o <
» Introduces additional greening to reduce street temperatures and enhance
» Retains approximately 132 on-street parking bays. environmental amenity.

« Enhances street trees’ long-term health and management within protected
footpath zone.

« Traffic safety improvements including a dedicated right-turn slip lane for McLaren
Street and Davaar Place.

» Closure of the median gap between Gilles and Halifax Streets to mitigate vehicular
conflict.

« Retains approximately 72 on-street parking bays.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 19

Section 5: The Do-Nothing Option

Should the proposed Hutt Street Revitalisation Project not proceed, there are several risks and potential negative consequences that could impact the City of
Adelaide community including:

* Economic decline: Without revitalisation, Hutt Street may face future challenges in attracting visitors and customers. This could result in a decline in business
activity, reduced sales for local retailers and service providers, and potential closures of businesses. The economic vitality of the street may diminish, leading to
job losses and reduced opportunities for entrepreneurship and investment. People will simply choose more attractive places to live, spend time in, shop and
invest.

* Deterioration of infrastructure and heritage: Neglecting upgrades could result in deterioration of the street’s infrastructure, including roads, sidewalks, and
public spaces. This can create safety hazards, reduce accessibility, and detract from the overall aesthetic appeal of the area. Additionally, the preservation of
heritage buildings and structures may be compromised, leading to irreversible damage and loss of historical value.

Gz abed

* Limited community engagement and satisfaction: Without upgrades, the community may perceive a lack of investment and commitment from Council and
businesses. This can lead to a sense of disconnection and dissatisfaction among residents, potentially resulting in reduced community engagement and
participation. The overall liveability and sense of pride in the street may be affected.

* Missed opportunities for improvement: Without revitalisation, the Hutt Street community could miss out on the potential benefits that come with revitalising
street. These benefits include enhanced retail experiences, improved public spaces, increased tourism, job creation, and a vibrant and attractive precinct that
contributes to the overall quality of life for residents.

It is important to recognise these risks and potential consequences to motivate the funding and implementation of the proposed revitalisation, ensuring the long-
term success and sustainability of Hutt Street and the community as a whole.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment

Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions

Tables 1 and 2 opposite contain the key economic modelling assumptions
supporting the economic impact assessment and benefit cost assessment.

Table 1 details generic assumptions that apply across all options. Hutt
Street visitor counts and the value of properties in the project shadow area
were supplied by Council. The average daily spend is based on the 2022
McGregor Tan survey of spending by City residents. The remainder are
Hudson Howells assumptions and calculations agreed with Council.

Table 2 details option specific assumptions that drive the different

9tz abed

economic impact and benefit cost outcomes for each option. Construction
costs and times are as estimated by Council’s cost consultant RLB. The
remained are Hudson Howells' assumptions and calculations agreed with
Council based on the preceding case studies and similar projects in South
Australia.

Hudson Howells Input-Output Tables and associated multipliers have been
used for estimating Gross State Product (GSP) and Full Time Equivalent
(FTE) job impacts, and a project specific Microsoft Excel model has been
developed and employed to estimate all costs and benefits, 30-year Net
Present Values (NPVs) and Benefit Cost Ratios (BCRs).

N

Table 1

Discount Rate for Net Present Value (NPV) Calculations

Number of Visitor Counts Per Annum (Total Hutt Street Foot Traffic 2024)

Number of Counts per Visitor

Number of Visitors per Annum

Percentage of Visitors Going to the Revitalised Precinct
Number of Visitors to the Revitalised Precinct

Average Daily Spend

Value of Properties in the Project Shadow Area

Table 2

Construction Cost

Construction Time

Estimated New Visitor Increase % p.a.
Additional Visitors Per Annum

Existing Visitor Estimated Increased Spending % p.a.
Property Value Uplift %
Estimated Visitor % Decrease During Construction

Option D
$29,214,648
78 Weeks
1.00%
6,309
10.00%
1.00%
5.00%

20

4.00%
2,523,502
2

1,261,751

50.00%

630,876

$94
$159,899,500

Option A Do Nothing

$701,674 S0
26 Weeks N/A
0.00% 0.00%
0 0
0.00% -1.00%
0.00% 0.00%
5.00% 0.00%

=



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 21

Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions (Cont.)

Map 1 opposite details the project shadow area surrounding Hutt Street Map 1

defined as those properties that can be expected to receive a property N\ | 552,20, Hutt Street - Property Shadow Zone - (01)

value uplift following the precinct revitalisation. It is assumed that these
properties have a current valuation of $159,899,500 as estimated by Savills
Valuations in a recent report to Council.

Finally, it is assumed that a reduction of 60 on-street car parking bays

I associated with Option D will not significantly impact Hutt Street precinct

@ foot traffic and business income, which will be positively impacted by the

':4% precinct revitalisation and additional facilities including outdoor L o
restaurant/café seating. Although dated and the last survey available, this lr.“‘“ﬁ

assumption is supported by the 2019 Austraffic Hutt Street Parking Survey
detailing the availability and high vacancy rates of 2,130 car parks within a
5-minute walk of Hutt Street as shown on Map 2 following.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 22

Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions (Cont.)

Map 2

Hutt Street

Reissued Novemeber 2024

« Car parking along Hutt Street = - Pulteney Street
is supplemented by on-street * — Hurtle Square Hindmarsh
R 7 Square /
parking in the surrounding / Tangkaira Mukata:
streets which is timed, largely 400m - Smin walk @
unticketed and doesn’t require e o e e P = e ) i o @
3 2 s o
a permit during business hours. . @ C\)
,' Pelzer Park / §/
+ Outside of business hours, g Pyaiia
X (Park 19) b/ \
demand for parking rebalances ] </~ v
o as city workers leave the area, I @ e @ @ Z
> 1 3 2 3
Q residents return home, and 1 2 g 1 =
(@) patrons arrive at evening 1 2 2 1 3
(] hospitality venues located : : g 2 : ﬁ
N predominantly within the 1 Y/ lZEm B o 1 . & - = I
NG southern sector of Hutt Street. : ' | 1 :
% \ f) vespermin ark /1 @ @ 0 @ O @ @ @ 0 @ Q @ ! '
+ Parking controls are intended : / Wita Wirra (Park 18) : O : - :
to respond to the parking /A _ : - = 74\ 1
demands of the street and 1 M o N HUTY mmr -m”'m?ww : Hu" Rreet 1 1
precinct across week days and : : e = = 0 mgm @ o | @ :~. :
the weekend. They are reviewed 1 1 @ @ @ Q ’ @ @ o @ 1 1
to assess how effectively they : 1 @ - - E [ ! : \
are operating and adjusted as H R B~~~ = — = - — - FEpREN T e 3 spepepp— B 1 \
required. : g Rymill Park /\ \ : \
1 § Murlawuupurka \ 1 Rundle Park /
P,
1 Carriageway Park / King Rodney Park / {Fakds) NV Kaditpina
1 Tuthangga Ityamai-itpina N (Park 13)
1 (Park 17) (Park 15) P
\ [ —=
\ e
. / 7
. /- .
3 // .
“‘-————————— —————————————— - ————— - =
i) | Victoria Park / “400m - Smin walk | A N
= | Pakapakanthi (Park 16) ‘ //
\ Off-street car park I Total 2130 on-street precinct 684 on-street car parking spaces within 125m (sub 2min walk) 1446 on-street car parking spaces within 125 - 400m
k __/ (paid parking) arking o) tunities catchment of Hutt Street, excluding residential permit only, (5min walk) catchment of Hutt Street, excluding residential
parking oppor
and motorcycle. permit only, and motorcycle.

NN ===



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 23

Section 7: Summary of Results & Options Prioritisation

Table 3 below summarises the outcomes of the economic impact and benefit cost assessments:

Table 3
Option D Option A Do Nothing

Costs
Project Capital Costs $29,214,648 $701,674 SO
Potential Reduced Business Activity During Construction $2,965,115  $1,482,557 SO
Benefits
Construction Contribution to Gross State Product $30,850,668  $740,968 SO

T Construction FTE Jobs Supported 198.51 4.77 0.00

8 Additional Business Revenue Per Annum - Existing Visitors $5,930,230 SO -$794,651

S; Additional Business Revenue Per Annum - New Visitors $593,023 SO SO

@ Total Additional Business Revenue Per Annum $6,523,253 SO -$794,651
Additional Visitor Spending (New and Existing Visitors) Contribution to Gross State Product Per Annum $8,715,066 SO -$1,061,653
Additional Visitor Spending (New and Existing Visitors) FTE Jobs Supported Per Annum 90.17 0.00 -10.98
Shadow Area Propert Value Uplift $1,598,995 SO SO
Community 30 Year NPV and BCR
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Benefits $183,089,368 S$740,968 -$18,358,146
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Costs $32,179,763 $2,184,231 SO
Community 30 Year Net Present Value of Costs and Benefits (NPVCB) $150,909,605 -$1,443,263 -$18,358,146
Community 30 Year Benefit Cost Ratio (Total NPV Benefits/Total NPV Costs) 5.69 0.34 N/A

In addition to the above benefits, the case studies reviewed for this project demonstrate a history of private sector re-investment in properties and lower vacancy
rates following main street revitalisation projects. Based on the above modelling results, Option D clearly delivers the highest Benefit Cost Ratio and Community
Net Present Value of benefits and costs, and is therefore rated priority #1 for implementation, followed by Option A and the Do-Nothing Option.

NN ===



05z abed

hudson howells

City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 24

Section 8: Detailed Economic Impacts — Option D Construction Phase

Graphs 1 and 2 opposite contain the estimated economic impacts
assoclated with the project construction based on an estimated capital cost
of $29.2 million.

In summary, it is estimated that the Hutt Street Revitalisation Project
Option D will contribute $30.9 million to South Australia’s Gross State
Product and will support a total of 198 full time equivalent jobs during the
construction phase.

There is an estimated 59 Direct FTE jobs associated with this construction
activity, mostly on-site. The construction phase will support indirect
industrial and consumption jobs in addition to the direct jobs. Industrial
support, for example suppliers to the project such as materials and
services, is estimated to contribute an additional 85 FTE jobs. Consumption
induced, for example jobs supported by the spending of employee wages,
is estimated to contribute an additional 54 FTE jobs.

Industrial support and consumption induced GSP is estimated to be $12.8
and $10.2 million respectively in addition to $7.9 million of direct GSP.

Graph 1

250.00

200.00

150.00

100.00

Construction Phase Jobs Supported (FTEs)

198.54

85.08
3 I =

Direct Jobs Indirect Jobs - Industrial I d ect Jobs Total Construction
Support Con: ptonl nduced Supported Jobs (FTEs)

Graph 2

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

s$o0

Construction Phase Contribution to GSP ($)

$30,850,668

510 211,571 I

Indirect GSP - Industrial Indirect GSP -
Support ptonl nduced

512,803,027

$7.836,070

Direct GSP

Total Construction
Supported GSP ($)

x\\\\\\-/



h U d SON h owe | | S City of Adelaide | Hutt Street Economic Impact & Benefit Cost Assessment 25

Section 9: Detailed Economic Impacts — Option D Operational Phase

Graphs 3 and 4 opposite contain the estimated economic impacts Graph 3
assoclated with the project’s operational (retail) phase post construction Operational Phase (Retail) Jobs Supported Per Annum (FTEs)
based on the assumptions detailed above. e 0012
In summary, it is estimated that the operational phase of the Hutt Street oo
Revitalisation Project will contribute $8.7 million per annum to South e S
Australia’s Gross State Product and support a total of 90 full time o
equivalent jobs per annum. ———
o [ ]

There is an estimated 51 Direct FTE jobs on-site. The operational phase will Girect Jobs Indirwct jobe - Industral _ ncirect ot Total Ops

Support Supporte H | (Hr )

TGz abed

also support indirect industrial and consumption jobs in addition to the

direct jobs. Industrial support is estimated to contribute an additional 16 Graph 4

Operational Phase (Retail) Contribution to GSP Per Annum ($)
$10,000,000

FTE jobs. Consumption induced is estimated to contribute an additional

23 FTE JObS $9,000,000 $8,715,066
58,000,000
Industrial support and consumption induced GSP is estimated to be $1.9 jzozo
and $3.3 million per annum respectively in addition to $3.5 million of direct 55,000,000
GS P $4,000,000 $3,547,032 SS 250,719
. $3,000,000
$2,000,000 31,917,314
51,000,000 I .
S0

Direct GSP Indirect GSP - Industrial Indirect GSP - Total Operational
Support Consumption Induced Supported GSP (S)

&\\\\\\-



	Agenda
	1 CEO Briefing - Hutt Street Revitalisation
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Table of Contents
	Slide 3: Executive Summary
	Slide 4: Executive Summary
	Slide 5: Section 1: Introduction
	Slide 6: Section 2: Study Methodology
	Slide 7: Section 3: Desktop Research
	Slide 8: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 9: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 10: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 11: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 12: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 13: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 14: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 15: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 16: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 17: Section 3: Desktop Research (Cont.)
	Slide 18: Section 4: Revitalisation Options
	Slide 19: Section 5: The Do-Nothing Option
	Slide 20: Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions
	Slide 21: Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions (Cont.)
	Slide 22: Section 6: Key Economic Modelling Assumptions (Cont.)
	Slide 23: Section 7: Summary of Results & Options Prioritisation
	Slide 24: Section 8: Detailed Economic Impacts – Option D Construction Phase
	Slide 25: Section 9: Detailed Economic Impacts – Option D Operational Phase





